
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, JUNE 17, 2024 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Meeting) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – LARGE CONF. RM, CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS
a. Property Location for Pocket Park (Interim City Manager)

4. NEW BUSINESS
b. James Street Black Business District Memorial Parklet Presentation (Barbara Dantonio, Chair)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Archbishop Anthony Slater)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A1. Minutes of the Budget Meeting of May 28, 2024
A2. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of June 3, 2024

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by James “Ted” Best as an Employee of The 

City of Goldsboro for More Than 33 Years  
C. Gun Violence Awareness Month Proclamation 

VI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS
D. National PTSD Awareness Day Proclamation
E. Juneteenth Proclamation

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS
F. FY24-25 Annual Action Plan Public Hearing (Community Relations and Development)
G. SU-12-24 Ahmed Aljabali: (Retail sales establishment) (Planning)
H. SU-13-24 (Contractor’s Office and Storage Yard) (Planning)
I. Z-4-24 Rosewood Outdoor Power Equipment and Supply – Located at the corner of W. US 70 Highway

and Carolina Circle (Planning) 

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

IX. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
J. Contract Award for Goldsboro-Wayne Transportation Authority (GWTA) Marketing and Public

Relations Services (Planning) 
K. Set Public Hearing - Contiguous Annexation Petition – Oak Forest Holdings, LLC. – Corner of Central

Heights Rd. and N. Oak Forest Rd. (Planning) 
L. Purchase of Idemia MBIS Latent Workstation (Police)
M. Award contract for audit services for fiscal year ending June 30, 2024 to Forvis, LLP. (Finance)
N. Operating Budget Amendment FY23-24 (Finance)
O. Amending a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME

Investment Partnership Program (HOME) Special Revenue Fund (C2101 and C3101) (Finance) 
P. Amending a Capital Project Fund Ordinance – Street Improvements Capital Project Fund (G1105)

(Finance) 

-     A Proclamation of Thanks for The Life and Accomplishments of Mrs. Hilda Grace Hicks-Branch

- Continued to July 15, 2024 meeting



2 

Q. Amending the Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Ordinance (G1108) (Finance) 
R. Grant Project Budget Ordinance amendment for the State Grants Miscellaneous Grant Project Fund 

(G1109) (Finance) 
S. Amending a Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Federal and State Drug Forfeiture Special Revenue Fund 

(P3101) (Finance) 
T. Ordinance amending the Phase IV Sewer Rehabilitation Project (Debt #036-E) (S1102) (Finance) 
U. Grant Project Budget Amendment for the Stormwater Capital Projects Fund (T2201) (Finance) 
V. Departmental Monthly Reports  
 

X. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION  
W. Adoption of the Annual Operating Budget Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2024-25 (Finance) ** Agenda item 

and Ordinance to be submitted before the meeting on June 17, 2024.  
X. Adoption of a Resolution for Utility Fees and Charges for FY2024-25 (Finance) **Agenda item to be 

submitted before the meeting on June 17, 2024.  
 

XI. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS  
 

XIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIV. ADJOURN 



What Are Pocket Parks And 

Why Should They Matter To Us?

Matthew S. Livingston, ICMA, AICP

Interim City Manager 

June 17, 2024

w.s. item a



Pocket Park 

This Pocket Park in Ayden is a single lot between two 
commercial buildings on a main street.

A pocket park (also known as a parkette, mini-
park, vest-pocket park or vesty park) is a 
small park accessible to the general public. The 
locations, elements, and uses of pocket parks 
vary considerably. 

The common defining characteristic of a pocket 
park is its small size. Typically, a pocket park 
occupies one to three municipal lots and is 
smaller than 0.5 hectares (1 acre) in size.



• Option A.

• Preferred location for Pocket Park at 
the corner of Ash Street and North 
Georgia Avenue in a visible location.

• Good location on relatively flat land 
with close proximity to West Haven.

• Will be monitored and well lit for 
security purposes. Clearing and 
grubbing will be needed.

• Will need Wayne County concurrence 
to build on the property.

• Property is located in the floodplain.
• City recently improved the sidewalks 

in this location.



Option B Goldsboro GWTA Site: 
• City owned property with future arts 

district 
• Could complement existing city 

owned facility
• Could be developed in conjunction 

with future parking expansion
• Is not in the floodplain



Conceptual Rendering as Provided by Camiros



Pocket Park Overview

• Joint initiative between HUD, Housing 
Authority and the City of Goldsboro.

• Funding is through HUD Early Action 
Initiative Grant Funds.

• City leverage is 46.5K. CDBG leverage dollars 
as costs are determined eligible.

• The City agreed and is obligated to provide 
matching funds as part of the Choice 
Neighborhood Grant agreement for an early 
action project.

• Matching funds will not come from the City 
General Fund.



Construction timeline

• July: RFQ review and select qualified 
Landscape Architect to design pocket park

• August: review design submittals

• September: award contract for landscape 
construction services

• October-November: Pocket park 
construction

• December 15: dedication of pocket park



Questions, Comments, or Final Thoughts:

• Pocket parks matter because they 
make our city more livable and 
attractive.

• Adds value to public open spaces 
that were previously vacant by 
encouraging re-investment.  

• Builds community through outdoor 
enhancements and reflecting 
areas. 

• Promotes public art and education 
of various plant and tree species.



West Oak Choice Neighborhood Plan; Steering 
Committee Goldsboro City Council Update on the West 
Oak Choice Neighborhood Plan JanJuuanrey 33,0 
2, 0220424



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 7

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING A PROPOSED POCKET PARK LOCATION

FOR THE CHOICE NEIGHBORHOOD EARLY ACTION PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro City Council approved a resolution authorizing the city manager to sign a
memorandum of understanding for the Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant at a recessed meeting on July 15, 
2022; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has been working with the Goldsboro Housing Authority on the
Choice Neighborhood Grant in the West Oak Neighborhood; and

WHEREAS, the benefits of the Early Action Project are to beautify a vacant parcel of land, create a
place for neighbors to gather and interact and to create an amenity for new residential development; and

WHEREAS, staff has worked tirelessly to locate a parcel for the pocket park that addresses the needs of
the Council, the community and the Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant; and

WHEREAS, city staff recommends their first choice as Option A for the pocket park to be located at 213
North Georgia Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the property is owned by the city and the county and it is known and understood that this
property may be used in the future as a potential rail spur. As such, the city agrees to relocate the pocket park in
the future, if needed; and

WHEREAS, option B is a property located in front of the GWTA building, would complement the
existing city owned facility, could be developed in conjunction with future parking expansion and is not located
in the floodplain. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that the City of Goldsboro
supports the Choice Neighborhood Early Action Project by supporting one of the options recommended by city
staff. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro and shall be in full
force and effect from and after this

17th

day of June, 2024. 

Attested by: 

aura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, IV

t7®`'! 
Mayor

P' 



w.s. item b







aP

c

o0

o

O

O. 

O

N -

0

O

0

Nx
p "

0

0O

0

C

Gi

O

O

O > 

U ' 

N

N

O

U

U

U

O

N

oo

O

CO

i

N

N

U

ti

U

p

O

toQ

N >' 

t ;

3

t. 

CA

0 =>

I

O

W

m

v] 

v 

b

p

v, 

U

N

O

s. 

O •- , 

ct3

N

p

s. 

w

cd

04

X

a

3 ° 

o > 

a

U

F 

on

t,

4u

o

y

o

0

I= 

co

U

O

O

U

N

U

c '

t — 

N

O

O

zo

O ::

s

bq

o > 

N

N

y

aai .- 

N

toO

OUmd
U

o °

4

0 = 

o

qo
o

co (

A

crs

to

N

O

O

ti

N

y

N

Cd

N

U

cC

U .°

C

s

o

U

O

cz

72

CO , 

U

ocn . 
A

U

O

GJ- 

bn '

nz 

CA

d

Z °

U + 

s. ° 

O

rn + 

m

U

o•

a

0°

m

0

M. 

io
U

N

GJ }+ 

c 

U

U

G

to

sU. 

c

N =

co '

n

cd -, 

4 

U

p +- .

O ... 

sem.  

y .

r

Z

O

0

b

cd

p

U

i.   . 

O

yU

U   

ti .. 

b

N  

N

N

O ' 

O +' 

o

O

O  " 

TJ

O

O

N

U

t. 

N

U

U

bn

O

on ' 

ti

U

0

a >, 

W> 

o

fs. -

o

0

v

c 

r 

0 ° 

0

O

0

0

3

0

o -

o

pq

W °' 

3

U

0

c 

y , ' 

o

U

U

o

a

0

5

a. 

o

Q

U

C7

x

o

i °

o, 

U

0

a

3 °° 

o

o0n

E- 

cn

w

a

a0
C13

0

OR

3i

U

w°

b°

o

o

o

o

V

n

o

y

crsp
U

pp

n $. 

v

n .

0

v

CZ

0

rem0' s. 

p„ 

cd >> 

U

ai

a 

10

mcUU
U > 

o °> , 

uai

cz

0

ae

0

0

0-

0

0

O

O

0

V

OYUon
N

cC

p

cz

V  

0 >, - 

r

cz •

Cd

M= 

3

0

0

Lv

U

Ua

o ? 

C7

0

o

a

N

x

cz

ti

o

m

o

U

ai

a

Q

A

U

3

3

ai

v

3

0

0

0

0

b

F" 

C7

U

C

3

42

c

O

U

O

O

0

C

U

O

O

0

cz

0

c 

W, ONd4ma



40

0

O

y434y
cCC

N

vi

bp

bA

y

0. 

42' 

N

u

cd

co

C

C 

U

N

CO

Cd

QAC +'  

ccdd

C7

O

Q "

Cl '

d

0to
p

N

s. 

cd

V

G) 

3 . 

C

i

O

2

m

Q. 

N

C6

0

o  `' 

a •   

o ° ° 

i  `    .

o

a. 

ani ?  •   

A   

C7

ami

x

o21
maF" 

oi
OJ) 

c 

M  

cz

cC

O

o ^

C

U

CZ

cn

t1

y

cl

C

N ' 

C

4 -

t4

0

co

CC

O --

g

p

C

N

C

U

bA

bA

Q

s-

4

U

Z

a°

Ai

d

bn

C7

3

p  = > 

U

a>

i -

C >' 

bu

t

EL4

10

7EL'= 

A

O

w

O

bA ;

z

W- 

t. 

O ° 

C

N , 

v 

bAr. 
U

p

p

bA

A

O

03

0

0

141

Cd

eq00

O

V " 

oa • 

nN

pto
V' 

bb

10- 

ci 

A

AcC;
3. °

b>°

AO
N

N

P4

c•

0

O

D

U '' 

m

C  "° 

n` °  

C

Q

Cd

y

3

O> 

y

riw
M

ai

0 = 

A

Q

Q

H

E

oC'
i

0

a\ 

C

O + 

V

U

C

w ' 

N

3

v 

cd

y

o

a°

i —

Cz

fay . 

Cd

El

O

O +•' 

U

y

U

O

C

m

C

y ..

0

C •+•, 

N  

O

c  

N ]. () 

O  

A ., .. 

c0  

6, 

O ° 

C

a

N

Y ° 

Q

bA

44  

ai - 

t

moi, 

N "

D '

C ¢ 

O

v 

ft3 _ 

G) 

3

C

C 

U+ 

4r

N

by

C .

s.  

bA

O

N

0

y

V

U `

n

C

O

N

bq

bUA ¢ 

P, 

p

4. >, 

N .+ 

U

O• "+ >' 

N

U

by

64

sUN
m '-

a

n

U

C

N

m

O

N , 

U

C

cr3

U

N

bq

N" " 

bA

U

C

4r

Uco
m

cd

rA

bn

0

3

w

C , 

C7 °' 

a .

o

o

a -

C

o

x

3

b . 

p ° 

p

c 

y

cC

O

bq

O

ti

N

N

v' ' ` 

C .

0 -

C ^

C

L" 

U

C >

cq3'

C

ti

ti

vU^
s". 

c3l ^

C

aN .:: 
y

W

b

y .

0Nal
Z

U5

O

ocC

C

n

U

U 

c) 

U

cd

u

cC

A

to

O

N

Cl

bA

co

C*

d

d

CON

aj

cz

bOi •

Yo

a

o

3

bp

to

cz

N

FU (

t  '

o

0 a 

E

cn

y

C

p -. 

U

4•" 

U

U

U

p '

U '

U''" 

a

V

U

4 

V

U

O •

V

O

O

N

p

bip

N

A ° • ° . 

COC
O

OC '' 

CO

p

O

bA ^ 

O

p

rn

cC

U

u. 

U

U

3

U

U

o

U- 

U

U

U

Ucz

0

y

U

y

N

CCfj

0

cl

bAco

0C

M

O

d

tocd

C

o

c8

U

0

Cis

N

m

H

YU

oO

z

Cd

bAtCd

cd3

0

O

N

z

tt

b

co . U

a 

yC. 

N

U

s_ 

to

u

N

asM

m

0

It

C

03

0

U

a

7 

co

y

N

Cd

N

Cd

3 

M

aiU

0

N

CO .. 

cc

U

U

A



r, 

UUUN

U

























1 of 6 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
JUNE 3, 2024 

WORK SESSION 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina met in a Work Session in the Large 
Conference Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina at 5:00 p.m. on June 3, 2024. 

Call to Order.   Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present:  Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 

Also Present: Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

Adoption of the Agenda.  Councilman Boyette asked to add a discussion regarding downtown parking to the 
work session. Councilwoman Weeks made a motion to adopt the amended agenda. The motion was seconded by 
Councilwoman Jones and unanimously approved. Council adopted the amended agenda.  

Old Business 
Work Session Item a.  5K for 5P Presentation. Mikayla Barfield shared the presentation attached as Exhibit A. 

Mayor Gaylor shared comments regarding the 5K for 5P run.  

New Business 
Work Session Item b.  Saving Union Station Day Presentation. Julie Metz shared the presentation attached as 

Exhibit B and invited everyone to the Saving Union Station Day on Tuesday, June 4, 2024.   

Councilman Boyette thanked Ms. Metz for her work on Union Station and downtown. 

Work Session Item c.  Choice Neighborhood Update. Interim City Manager Livingston shared the presentation 
is an update on the West Oak Neighborhood Plan and Early Action Initiative (pocket park).  Bill James with Camiros 
participated via Zoom and shared the presentation attached as Exhibit C. 

Mr. James shared information regarding the pocket park. An updated presentation is attached as Exhibit C.  
Councilwoman Jones asked about the location of the pocket park. Council and Erin Fonseca, Downtown Development 
Director discussed the proposed location on the corner of Mulberry and George Streets which is owned by the DGDC. 
Interim City Manager Livingston shared information regarding the Early Action Initiative.  

Council discussed the presentation and pocket park. Mayor Gaylor asked if the park would be part of the City’s 
Parks and Recreation department. Mr. Anthony Goodson, Goldsboro Housing Authority CEO, shared that is the proposal 
and the city would be responsible for the upkeep.  

Mr. James shared they have until December 23 to expend the funds. Mr. Goodson shared $55,000 was committed 
by the city through CDBG funds. He also shared time is an issue and the Housing Authority is ready to move forward. He 
shared if we do not move forward with the Early Action Plan, they may as well move on from Choice Neighborhoods.   

Mayor Gaylor shared we need to get feedback from the neighbors and see where the funding is coming from. 

Council discussed the location of the pocket park, getting input from the neighbors and where the funding will 
come from if CDBG funds are not available.  

Councilwoman Jones shared she would contact the neighboring residents. 

Council deferred the item for two weeks to speak to neighboring residents and discuss funding. 

Work Session Item d. Downtown Parking Discussion. Councilman Boyette shared the first block of Center 
Street does not have adequate public parking on the first block of Center Street. Councilman Boyette made a motion to 
pause the timed parking on first block of Center Street. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Taylor. Mayor Pro 
Tem Matthews asked to pause the timed parking for everyone. Council discussed the proposal. Councilman Boyette 

Item A2



2 of 6 
 

withdrew his motion. Councilman Boyette made a motion to extend the moratorium for the first block of Center Street 
until the end of July. The motion died for lack of a second.  

 
Councilman White addressed parking concerns for downtown residents. Mayor Gaylor shared comments 

regarding parking for downtown residents. Councilwoman Weeks asked about the vehicle and salary for the Code 
Enforcement officer (parking enforcement). Interim City Manager Livingston shared he has a vehicle, and he thinks the 
salary is $45,000-$47,000. Interim City Manager Livingston shared he does more than traffic enforcement.  
Councilwoman Weeks agreed the moratorium should be for everyone.  

 
Mayor Gaylor shared the discussion will be continued at the regular meeting under Items Requiring Individual Action.  

 
Mayor Gaylor recessed the meeting at 6:55 p.m. 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 

214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on June 3, 2024. 
 
Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 

  
Also Present: Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 

Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

           
Father David Wyly provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 
Mayor Gaylor shared Item d from the work session will take place during Items Requiring Individual Action. 
 

Approval of Minutes.  Councilwoman Weeks made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session and 
Regular Meeting of May 6, 2024 and the minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of May 20, 2024.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously approved.   

 
Public Hearings. 
Item B.  Non-Contiguous (Satellite) Annexation Petition-Mallard Oil Co. – Corner of N. US 117 Hwy. and 

Tommy’s Rd. Public Hearing Held and Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Mark Helmer, Planning 
Director. 

 
Wayne County Tax Parcel:  3600-49-0841 
 

The City Council, at their meeting on May 6, 2024, scheduled a public hearing for the proposed annexation of the subject 
property.  A public hearing notice was properly advertised stating the time, place, and purpose of the meeting for June 3, 
2024. 

 
Pursuant to G. S. 160A-58, at the public hearing all persons owning property in the area proposed to be annexed, as well 
as the residents of the municipality, shall be given an opportunity to be heard on the proposed annexation. 

 
If the Council determines that the proposed annexation meets all the requirements of G. S. 160A-58, it has the authority to 
adopt an annexation ordinance. 

 
A report prepared by the Planning Department in conjunction with other departments, concerning the subject annexation 
area is available in the agenda packet.  All City services can be provided to the property. City water and sewer utilities are 
available to the property and the owner will be responsible for extending these utilities to the site. 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Ordinance annexing the subject property effective June 3, 
2024. 
 

Mayor Gaylor opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 
 



3 of 6 
 

Councilman Boyette made a motion to accept the properties. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Taylor and 
unanimously approved. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-24 “AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN NON-CONTIGUOUS REAL PROPERTY 
TO THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 

 
Item C.  Public Hearing on FY2024-25 Annual Operating Budget. Public Hearing Held. The item was 

presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director and Interim City Manager Matt Livingston and is attached as Exhibit D. 
 

The North Carolina General Statute §159-12 requires the governing board to conduct a public hearing prior to the 
adoption of the annual operating budget.  Statute further requires that the budget officer file notice of the availability of 
the budget for public inspection and the date and time of the budget hearing.  The advertisement was run in the Saturday, 
May 11th edition of the Goldsboro News-Argus.  The Manager’s Recommended Budget was published as advertised on 
May 15, 2024 on the City’s website.  City Council met on Monday, May 20, 2024 during the 5 pm work session in the 
large conference room of City Hall for an overview presentation of the FY2024-25 budget. 

 
Upon closing of the public hearing, Council may engage in additional discussion regarding the budget.  Staff will then 
take any agreed upon changes by Council and then prepare the FY2024-2025 annual operating budget ordinance for 
proposed adoption at the June 17, 2024 meeting. 

 
It was recommended that Council conduct a public hearing on the annual operating budget at the June 3, 2024 council 
meeting at 7:00 p.m.; engage in further discussion and provide staff direction to make any additional changes for the 
proposed adopted budget and establish any additional budget work session(s) date(s) and times, if necessary before June 
30, 2024 at midnight. 
 

Mayor Gaylor asked if Council had any discussions.  
 
Councilwoman Taylor shared last year, former Councilmember Polack made a motion for a 1% tax increase for a city 
employee $400.00 bonus. She thought his intention was for this to be a recurring bonus. She shared since the 1% tax 
increase is still in effect, that we should continue to uphold our commitment to city employees and use those funds to give 
them the bonus. Interim City Manager Livingston shared this is a fiscally austere budget, based on Council’s priorities and 
doesn’t think there is room in the budget for further cuts.  
 
Mayor Gaylor, Council and the Interim City Manager discussed the $400.00 bonus and taking additional funds from the 
fund balance in order to reduce the proposed tax increase. Council also discussed going through individual department 
line items for additional cuts, discussed if there were additional cuts that could be made in departmental budgets, Friends 
of Seymour, Goldsboro Housing Authority cameras, and ways to bring the proposed tax rate down. Councilman White 
shared he would offer his services for a year, and we can go back and negotiate a better settlement with Friends of 
Seymour next year.  
 
Mayor Gaylor opened the public hearing and the following people spoke: 

1. Dr. David L. Craig shared comments regarding the proposed budget to include surpluses in the general fund, 
amounts of cash and investments, concerns regarding the proposed property tax and utility rates, padding the 
budget, and raising taxes prior to next year’s property tax assessments. He also submitted a handout attached as 
Exhibit E. (Full comments are available on YouTube at 2:45.) 

2. Lance Yamakawa shared comments regarding the proposed budget to include concerns regarding the proposed tax 
increases and increasing sales tax so that everyone pays. (Full comments are available on YouTube at 2:52.) 

3. Phyllis Merritt-James shared comments regarding the proposed budget to include comments regarding decreasing 
the proposed tax increases, cutting fluff, bringing in industry, concerns for people on a fixed income, cameras and 
safety and Herman Park Center. (Full comments are available on YouTube at 3:01.) 

4. Charles Wright reviewed the handout attached as Exhibit F and spoke about the expansion of neighboring 
communities, crime and contracts with Seymour Johnson Air Force Base. (Full comments are available on 
YouTube at 3:06.) 

5. Inga Loftin shared concerns regarding property tax and water bill increases and asked Council to come up with 
another way of getting funds. (Full comments are available on YouTube at 3:24.) 

6. Nicole Loftin shared concerns regarding the property tax increase and asked Council to keep everyone in mind 
when they make these decisions. (Full comments are available on YouTube at 3:28.) 

No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

Mayor Gaylor discussed the next steps for the budget process with Council, Interim City Manager and City Attorney 
Lawrence. Further discussion will be held during Items Requiring Individual Action.  
 

Public Comment Period. Mayor Gaylor opened the public comment period. The following people spoke:  

1. Amber Long shared comments regarding downtown parking (Full comments are available on YouTube at 3:37.) 
2. Charles Wright shared comments and a handout (Exhibit G) regarding a proposed business on Cuyler Best and 

New Hope Road. (Full comments are available on YouTube at 3:41.) 



4 of 6 
 

3. Peter Stewart shared comments regarding speeding on Throughfare Road. (Full comments are available on 
YouTube at 3:44.) 

4. David Craig shared comments regarding a proposed business on New Hope Road and comments regarding the 
city’s finances. (Full comments are available on YouTube at 3:48.) 

5. Warren Edwards shared comments regarding speeding on Throughfare Road. (Full comments are available on 
YouTube at 3:49.) 

6. Victor Cox shared comments regarding speeding on Throughfare Road. (Full comments are available on 
YouTube at 3:52.) 

No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  
 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. Interim City Manager Matt Livingston presented the Consent 

Agenda.  All items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call 
vote.  If a Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and 
considered separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and 
roll call vote. Councilwoman Weeks moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items D- F be approved.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilman Boyette and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion. 

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 

Item D. Amending a Grant Project Ordinance – Fire Truck Capital Project Fund (F3111). Ordinance 
Adopted.  The item was submitted by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 
 
City Council created a capital project fund for a Quint Aerial Fire Truck on July 11, 2022.  At the Council Retreat 
February 2024, Council indicated that fire apparatus was a priority, and at the May 20th Council meeting, Council by 
consensus authorized their approval to bring forth a proposal to fund a new pumper truck through debt financing. 
   
The construction and delivery of the truck will take longer than a fiscal year, and the City plans on borrowing the funds 
for the purchase of the truck.  General Statute §159-13.2 authorizes local governments to account for this type of project 
in a grant project ordinance which will span the life of the project. 
  
Chief Stempien presented a resolution for the approval of the purchase of the pumper truck through the cooperative 
purchasing group, Sourcewell, and to allow the City Manager to sign the contract with Atlantic Coast Firetrucks.  The not 
to exceed cost is $873,952 and an additional $17,500 needs to be added to cover the cost of financing the equipment for a 
total project cost of $891,452. 
 
It is necessary to appropriate the expenditures so that staff may execute a contract and purchase order for the fire truck, 
and this will be funded with an appropriation of debt proceeds. 
  
It was recommended that the following entitled Grant Project Fund for the Fire Truck Capital Project Fund (F3111) be 
amended. Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Boyette (7 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-25 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING A GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE FIRE TRUCK 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND (F3111)” 
 

Item E.  Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Sign a Contract with Atlantic Coast Fire Trucks 
(ACFT) to Purchase a 2025 Spartan Pumper. Resolution Adopted. The item was submitted by Ron Stempien, Fire 
Chief. 
 
The Fire Department has presented the need for replacement vehicles to the City Council. Council agreed to review the 
purchase of a new fire truck to replace Engine 7, a 1991 Pierce Pumper at the May 20, 2024, Council Meeting.  
 
In accordance with the Goldsboro Fire Department Capital Improvement Plan, the purchase of a new Spartan Emergency 
Response S180 Model 2114 Pumper will replace the existing 1991 Pierce Pumper that is in dire need of replacement. 
After reviewing options and cooperative contracts, the Spartan offers the best option to meet our needs as well as the best 
customer service and warranties. ACFT provided a contract to be signed by the City Manager to secure the building of the 
apparatus. The current build time for the apparatus is 270 days. To avoid any additional potential price increases, Council 
is asked to give consent to the City Manager to sign a sales contract securing the Purchase Price.  
 
It was recommended that the Council approve the following entitled Resolution allowing the Interim City Manager to sign 
the contract with Atlantic Coast Fire Trucks for the purchase of a 2025 Spartan Pumper not to exceed $873,952.00. 
Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Boyette (7 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-70 “RESOLUTION ALLOWING THE INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE SALES 
CONTRACT WITH ATLANTIC COAST FIRE TRUCKS FOR THE PURCHASE OF A 2025 SPARTAN EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE S180 MODEL 2114 PUMPER FOR NOT MORE THAN $873,952.00” 
 



5 of 6 
 

Item F. Contiguous Annexation Petition – Oak Forest Holdings, LLC – Corner of Central Heights Rd. and 
N. Oak Forest Rd. Referred to the Clerk.  The item was submitted by Mark Helmer, Planning Director. 
 
Tax Parcels #: 3519839488, 3519922922, 3519849058 
Acreage: 25.6 acres 
 
The applicant is requesting that contiguous property described by the attached metes and bounds description be annexed 
into the City of Goldsboro. Maps showing the property proposed to be annexed are attached as well. 
 
Pursuant to G.S. 160A-31, City Council shall fix a date for the public hearing on the proposed annexation if the petition is 
considered sufficient by the City Clerk. Sufficiency requires the City Clerk to make the following findings: 
 

1. The petition contains an adequate property description and annexation plat of the area proposed for annexation. 
 
2. The area described in the petition is contiguous to the City of Goldsboro primary corporate limits, as defined by 

N.C.G.S. 160A-31. 
 
3. The petition is signed by and includes addresses of all owners of real property lying in the area described therein. 
 
4. The applicant acknowledges that zoning vested rights have been acquired pursuant to G.S. 160D-108 & 108.1 and 

declared and identified on the petition: (Z-22-22) Caviness & Cates (R-16 to R-6CZD) for the development of 
312 multi-family apartment units. 

 
The City Council, at their meeting on June 3, 2024, would request the City Clerk to determine the sufficiency of the 
petition.  If the petition is determined to be sufficient, a public hearing would be scheduled and a report would be prepared 
by the Planning Department, in conjunction with other City departments, for submission to the Council. 
 
It was recommended that Council request that the City Clerk examine the annexation petition to determine its sufficiency. 
Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Boyette (7 Ayes) 
 

End of Consent Agenda. 
 
Items Requiring Individual Action. 
Downtown Parking Discussion. Mayor Gaylor shared information regarding the work session discussion regarding 

downtown parking. Mayor Gaylor shared city owned vehicles will be moved and a mobile unit providing the chilling for 
this building is taking up spaces in the city parking lot. The mobile unit is currently taking up six spots and will be 
removed at the end of July.  
 
Councilman Boyette made a motion to extend the moratorium for this block of Center Street until the end of July. 
Councilwoman Taylor seconded the motion. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews asked the moratorium to be extended for all of 
downtown where we have implemented parking, and for Council to have more conversation regarding downtown parking. 
Mayor Gaylor and Council discussed the proposed moratorium and downtown parking.   
 
Mayor Gaylor called for a vote on the motion. Mayor Gaylor, Councilwoman Jones, Councilman Boyette, and 
Councilwoman Taylor voted for the motion. Councilwoman Weeks and Councilman White voted against the motion. 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews did not vote, however, pursuant to NCGS G.S. 160A-75, her vote would be considered an 
affirmative vote. The vote passed 5:2.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews shared concerns regarding accommodating the downtown residents and would like to discuss 
downtown parking at a future meeting.  
 

Proposed FY2024-25 Annual Operating Budget Discussion. Mayor Gaylor and Council discussed holding a 
budget work session.  Consensus was that Council will find another date and another time for a budget work session.  

 
City Manager’s Report.  Interim City Manager Livingston had no report.  
 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 
Councilwoman Jones expressed her gratitude to the city manager, finance director and staff for their work on the 

budget. She shared this is going to be a very challenging budget and the budget increases are impacting individual 
households.  She shared Wayne County is a Tier 1 status, under the Department of Commerce. With the loss of jobs at 
Seymour Johnson, we are very fortunate to have Councilman White here, that could be part of Friends of Seymour, but 
am advocating for us to remain with Friends of Seymour.  She shared Congressman Davis has proposed some provisions 
under the National Defense Authorization Act. She shared that she wants us to really take a look at that and see what he 
has proposed so that we cannot lose our jobs. She also shared information about Seymour Johnson.  

 
Councilman Boyette shared it was a busy week with the gathering that at the Parks and Rec building, the help with 

that project was greatly appreciated by our congressman and representatives that were there, including the money that's 
going to be applied for the grant to help with Union Station.  He shared that there's a lot of good stuff going on in our 



0

cn

00

N

O '  

cmc

v

3

N

0

0

O •

O° `" 

p -° " ° 

Cn

cz

p

o

co

o , 

O

o -

t3

c ' > -

G

0

C7

0~ 

c 

o

bA

cz

p

0

0

cq3

0

o

U

0

0

0

o

x -

o , 

3 , 

O -

d (

1) 

03 • .

o

O -

fl ° °' ^ 

ai

O

fl

00 °' -

O

C `" 

o ` 

0 . 

3

o • 

0 >, 

b1p ° 

o

o: 

o: 

o

0

0

ai

a>

i

0 -

d

o, ` 

0

f >, } 

0 , 

Z

0 '   

4. 

p

U

o

0

3

3

a°

i

U

b

a

0

U

0

c

o

0 >, 

0

x

0

c °? 

o

o •., 

0

x

o

o -° 

0

0

x

03

w

U

o

o .

c

o

cd° 

y -

o

0

0

O

it

p .+ > 

U

p

O

cC

0

s, 

cC

c ' 

O

by

O

bA >' 

O + 

0

U

cCy- + 

U ` 

U •  

0

00 ° 

0  > 

0 >, 

U -

o

b '' 

a

rA ' 

O

Cl ' ' ° 

3

3

O

Cv

3

0 ` 

a0i

y

p. -

d

o

Q" 

api

0 ? 

4) >, 

000

00 ° °' >, . 

0

0

2

0

3

0

P. = -

o

0

0

0

0' 

0'

mss

y

cC

m

o

o

c 

0

0

p

y (

U

t , 

00

O

0 •>, '~ 

X

3

0

3

v0i

p -

d

w •.. 

00

0  

cd " °  " 

0

0> 

F' 

3

1

0

0

0

C7

3 ° 

o >' 

O

p

o

p

W

O

p

Lei

ct-

d

c 

0

v, 

Q. 

0

U

0 '" 

Q. -

C

N }^ 

N

N

0A ° _

sU, " °' 

cC

O > 

ai

x

O

0

x

O '" °' = 

v

k . 

s > >, • 

0

00 , 

0 . 

U

o

r. 

0 . 

0

0

a

0

3

o

0 ° 

0

y

a

s

0rA

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

U

0

Q •

r  

b .. 

0 , °

0

00

0

0

0

0 ~°

o

r_ 

o

CA

o

o

a, 

o . 

C

0 ., 

O

o

p. 

0

0 > 

o` >, 

k

E 

0

0

00

00

0

0

0 -

d ^° 

a

o

on

00

o

p

o

b

o

U

o° ° 

00

3 ' ° 

U

a 

0

00

0

U

3

a :

mo

i. 

o >, ` ' 

cz

0

C) '

A

0 ° 

U

0

u

o

c 

U

0

z

0

3 = 

0> 

to

cs

3 .

3 .

a

0

0

0

cq3

0

0 . 

p

0

3 •.. 

0

b

00

0 .

o

00

00

0

o " ° 

0 . 

000 -

0

0 (° . 

0 ° 

o

00 ' 

o

0 ' > " 

o

c°> 

00

0

0

b0 ° > 

O

C

M

cd . > 

U

O

b

y ' 

N

N

U '

fl

y

O '

G

0

p

O , 

O + 

bA

cC

0

cc, . 

N

0 -

G >, 

0+ 

U

C,, 

3

0 -

0

O ,-- -

0

N

O

bq
v 

0

O ... 

N

0

cz ` 

O

N

j

cC

to

cl '

0 '

G •> 

O ' • °" 

cC

O

0

3

p0

4. 

v 

3 -

d .

r

0

0

0

00

3 ` 

3 `{- -

v

N

o

U

o '

o

0

b ' -° 

O

b0

M

o

O

0

0

O — &

0

pip

o

4

c 

crs

0

0

p

y

o

0 ' 

0

cd

0

Q. 

3

0

0

0

ami

i

i

0n

o

o ° ' 

w

00

0

o ; 

o > `" 

b4

0

c'"
i

3

0

0 -

b

o :

o

0

0 >, 

o  

3 -

o  

x >, 

o

0

0

M

U  •  

0

0

0

0

y

0

0

0

0

0

at

0 + °' ° 

cl - °' 

o •

p , 

x

0

0

c

0A • •.. 

a

o. 

U

0> 

0

0

Q. > 

a

actj , 
o

p

o _°,

i0

0

0

0co

rn ^" 

0 

p . 

cd

O

co

to

0 .

0

cC

Q

0A

ti

bs.' 

t0" 

U

j' +' 

O

Cis' 

0

3

O

C13

n ° 

N

rco
oln

cCi. ? - +

y+ + 

y >, +" 

0 ~ 

r

X00 ^' 

E . 

O

0

vQi" 

y

x

3 -

0

0

cl

0

3 >; 

p

o

o .

y

x

0

o

0°,
p >, 

0

0

0

x

b .; 

ami }' 

0 ` 

c 

0

t

O

0

0

U

y

b' 

U +-' 

P. 

rp

m

N

N

O

dj

O . 

p> 

0

p

s. 

Ri

t]. 

3

3 -

G >' 

0

y

cd

0

o

o

0A

0

0 '.

0' 

0

v, 

03 . 

0

0

w + 

u

p

o

o ' 

w

0

0 -

p

0

u

p

00

0

0

cd

ctS

0

0

0 -

p ) 

o

0

W

o

m

o -

0

Cc ., 

A

0 > 

o

0..

p , 

00 ., 

N

o

b

m ' 

3

n '

p ', 

0 .;; 

U ' ° 

0 '

o

b

a

o . , 

F 

u

U

o

0 °' 

0 '

0 ' 

3

3 >' ` 

a

Y

0

0

0

Q

JQ

O

0

0

b ° 

0

o °

co) 

crs '" °

Y' 

o , -

o

w

H ; 

0

0 ' 

cn

o -

o

c 

a`

i

o

0

0

a°

i

o

api ° 

u -

o ? 

3

N

o -

o

w  ' 

ti '~ 

U

0

ca

V

0

0

o

0

v -

o °' 

x

o -

o

o

0

0

b

0

0

3

0. 

00

Q

5- ', 

0 ' ': 

o

o

o'° 

0

0 ' 

U ^'

A

c 

O ++;  

0 - 

l - 

0 "  +-' 

N

s. 

t

3 = 

0

0

0 .

i: + 

v, 

b °

u °

o. 

c`
z

E-+ 

0

0  

ani

M

0

0

0 ; 

0

0

p

U

c ' 

0

0' ' 

0

c 

H

o, 

o , >, 

p

o

00

0

cc

o> 

w

o

v 

3

s. > 

0

O

o

c 

co

o

0

0Lv

o

Y

0

u

3

0 -

o

0

0

0 , 

a0i

0

o

x

w_ 

3

0 '

0o'
b

oCZ
o

3 .

o

0

3

o

p

U , 

U

rn > 

0 :  

0

0

b0

4 - 

3

a .

o

U -

o '~ 

o °? 

a

U

3

o

C -

d

o

cl . 

o

0

0 

0

0

0010

0 . 

0

3

3 ' `

0

v

o

0  ° ?? 

0 -

d 

o ' ° . 

o

U ? 

w

U

CO

0

0

11 • 

0

0 .? 

0

0

0 '

0

0. 

o

o

U +"-+ .

0

0 ... 

c
3

O

CA .,_. «

3

O

v0

M

00

m .

c

3

b0

bA . 

0

3

r

i

cd ..`". 

Ga

bA

H

x + .+ 

O '

C + 

ti

0

w

M` 

0C7

O

UaU
0















































RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 72

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY

JAMES " TED" BEST

AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 33 YEARS

WHEREAS, James " Ted" Best retires on July 1, 2024 as a Meter Reader, with more than 33 years
of service with the Public Works and Finance Departments; and

WHEREAS, Ted began his career on December 13, 1990 as a Temporary Leaf Collector with the
Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, on February 6, 1991, Ted was hired as a Laborer II with the Public Works

Department; and

WHEREAS, on January 6, 1992, Ted was promoted to Water Meter Reader with the Public Works
Department; and

WHEREAS, on July 1, 2000, Ted' s position was reclassified to Meter Reader with the Finance
Department, where he has served until his retirement; and

WHEREAS, Ted has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained

the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of
themselves, City employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Ted Best their
deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that we express to Ted Best our very best wishes for success, happiness, 
prosperity, and good health in his future endeavors. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in
full force and effect from and after this

17th

day of June, 2024. 

Attested by: 

i

Laura Getz

City Clerk

G
Charles aylor, IV

Mayor

O







Item D



Item E







G

FAILED





hjones
Pencil

hjones
Pencil



hjones
Pencil

hjones
Pencil













H



















I

Continued to July 15, 2024











ORDINANCE NO. 2024-_____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP  
OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
WHEREAS, after notice duly given according to law, a public hearing was held before the City Council at a 

regular meeting held in the City Council Chambers, 214 N. Center St. in the Historic City Hall building, on 
Monday, June 17, 2024, at 7:00 p.m., for the purpose of considering and discussing the passing of an ordinance 
amending the Official Zoning Map of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, and the Planning Commission heard 
the item on May 28, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the John Compton Family LLC. c/o Montey Lochamy has submitted a petition to rezone Tax 
Parcel 2680-83-1822 from Residential (R16) Zoning District to General Business Conditional Zoning (GB-CZ) 
District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the proposed rezoning area in the 

Medium-Density Residential development land use designation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed General Business Conditional Zoning (GB-CZ) District is inconsistent with the 

City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the General Business Conditional Zoning (GB-CZ) District is intended to promote high quality, 

accessible developments serving the needs of the community and surrounding area; and  
 
WHEREAS, the General Business Conditional Zoning (GB-CZ) District discourages low density residential 

and forbids industrial uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, the General Business Conditional Zoning (GB-CZ) is intended to accommodate the widest 

range of uses providing general goods and services to the community encourage; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed conditional rezoning is reasonable due to the fact that the range of uses permitted 

in the requested zoning district are compatible with the surrounding zoning patterns and land uses along US 
Highway 70 West; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed conditional rezoning request will not impair or injure the health, safety, and 

general welfare of the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, after completion of said public hearing and receipt of the recommendation of the Planning 

Commission, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro deems it advisable and for the best interest of the City and 
those residing within its zoning jurisdiction that the Official Zoning Map of the City of Goldsboro be amended as 
herein below set forth. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina: 
1. That the Official Zoning Map of Goldsboro, North Carolina, be and the same is hereby amended by 

changing: 

From Residential (R-16) to General Business Conditional Zoning (GB-CZ) District.  

Z-4-24 Rosewood Outdoor Power Equipment and Supply:  A site-specific development plan located 
on a 11.33-acre tract of land. 

City of Goldsboro Future Land Use Map is amended from Medium Density Residential to 
Commercial land use classification.  
 
Wayne County Tax Identification Numbers: 2680-83-1822 

2. The above amendment is effective upon the adoption of this Ordinance.  
 

Adopted this 17th day of June, 2024. 
 

___________________________   
Charles Gaylor IV 
Mayor 

Attested by: 
 
 
______________________ 
Laura Getz 
City Clerk  



























J





RESOLUTION NO. 2024— 13

RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION

OF A CONTRACT FOR THE GOLDSBORO- WAYNE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY ( GWTA) MARKETING AND

PUBLIC RELATIONS SERVICES

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, acting as the Lead Planning Agency for the
Goldsboro MPO, has heretofore found it in the public interest to expand the public outreach and marketing

strategy for Goldsboro -Wayne Transportation Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro MPO Transportation Advisory Committee approved Quest Corporation of

America ( QCA) for marketing and public relations services on June 12, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the total fee proposal was submitted by QCA of Land O' Lakes, Florida in the amount of
50, 032; and

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation has agreed to allow the use of Section

5303 funds to fund 80% of the contract in the amount of $40, 026; and

WHEREAS, the State of North Carolina will be responsible for 10% of the contract in the amount of

5, 003, and the City of Goldsboro will be responsible for 10% of the contract in the amount of $5, 003; and

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of Goldsboro to accept and award
the contract to QCA of Land O' Lakes, Florida in the amount of $ 50, 032 for the Goldsboro -Wayne

Transportation Marketing and Public Relations Services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute a contract with QCA in
the amount of $50, 032 for the Goldsboro - Wayne Transportation Authority Marketing and Public

Relations Services. 

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
17th

day of June, 2024. 

Attested by: 

L_L: Ag L
Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, IV

Mayor



Item K













L





RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 7q

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF SOFTWARE AND EQUIPMENT

USING SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENT EXCEPTION

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro currently uses AFFIX Tracker system for local latent evidence
comparison; and

WHEREAS, Idemia MBIS Latent Workstation would allow for latent comparison in State and Federal
databases at a cost of $27, 867; and

WHEREAS, the Idemia MBIS Latent Workstation is the only workstation compatible with the NC SAMS
as indicated in written correspondence from the North Carolina State Bureau of Investigations ( NCSBI); and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro is granted authority under § 143- 129( e)( 6)( iii) Purchases of apparatus, 
supplies, materials, or equipment when: ( ii) a needed product is available from only one source of supply; and

WHEREAS, § 143- 129( e)( 6)( iii) and the Procurement Manual of the City of Goldsboro require governing
board approval for sole source procurements; and

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the citizens and residents of the City of
Goldsboro to authorize this purchase. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council ofthe City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that: 

1. City Council authorizes the purchase of the Idemia MBIS Latent Workstation purchase for the sum of
27, 867. 00 from Idemia Identity & Security USA, LLC, and authorizes the purchase of this software and

equipment for said amount as a sole source purchase in accordance with N. C. G. S. § 143- 129( e)( 6)( iii). 

2. City Council further authorizes the Interim City Manager and other staff as designated to execute
agreements in order to enter into the purchase contract. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro and shall be in full
force and effect from and after this 17" day of June, 2024. 

ATTEST: 

a- 
raura'Getz
City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, I

t Mayor

U 1 
c w





M



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 7
RESOLUTION APPROVING FORVIS, LLP AS OFFICIAL AUDITOR OF THE CITY' S

ACCOUNTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 159- 34, annual independent audit, requires each local

government to have its accounts audited as soon as possible after the close of each fiscal year by a
certified public accountant; and

WHEREAS, it is the duty of the Council to select an auditor, and approve the Mayor or his
designee, and Finance Officer to enter into a contract for the audit of the City accounts for the fiscal year
ending; and

WHEREAS, City staff conducted a competitive request for qualifications and request for proposal
process and it has been determined that Forvis, LLP to be the top scoring firm with the required
qualifications needed to conduct the City' s audit of accounts in a competent and thorough manner; and

WHEREAS, both the firm, Forvis, LLP, and the partner in charge, John Frank, CPA, are both in

good standing with the North Carolina Board of Certified Public Accountant Examiners; and

WHEREAS, City staff recommends that the contract to audit the accounts of the City of Goldsboro
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024 be awarded to Forvis, LLP. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

1. Forvis, LLP is hereby selected as the auditor for the City of Goldsboro for the fiscal year ending, 
June 30, 2024. 

2. The Mayor and Finance Director, and other staff as required, are authorized to execute the

necessary documents and contracts for the audit of the City accounts. 

This Resolution is effective upon its adoption, this 17' day of June, 2024. 

ATTEST: 

j -.LL
lcu - 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, I17

Mayor



N





NON

uo

cn

O

U

N

0i

cn ^

Cct
vi

cn

b

s

yU

L

CID

y     - 

UD

eq

OO
U

U

U

O

N

N

U

U

cd

cd

F- 

N

U

C

CA

CA

v 

cd

v, 

U

cl

Oaxe
a 

U

o

0-

4

v

o.

0

000
0  

a, ° 

a? 

a 

3

0`- 

U

d

0

Cl

ct

cd

U

N

N

tU

cn

cn

cn

a 

V)

45

V)  

U

U

y

b

y ' 

N

Lt

C, 

a

w

o

Ow

W

N

W 

W

o

g

W 

3

W 

3

W ¢„ 

o

W 

W . • 

W

o

o

W "  

E- . 

00

cl

Y

3

3wR.
3

3

3

o

z

cn

U

y

o

a1  

C7   

a. . 

3

3 , . +. •

v

3

o

U

O

3

U

0UU

0
0

0O
m

0
0

co
0

0

0

0

0

LO

0

CD

y
U

cy 

C6

cfl

O

O

00

0

U

O

is

O

CD

CO

CV

W

O

O

A

C7

p

Gel

Ge- 

Go; 

609- 

O

00

O

0

0

0

6' 

o

d0' 

y

a

N

o

00

00

m

Q) 

a

v

o

N

q

r

o

E~ 

GO

y

cC

It

o

m

0

00

x

bf "

t eD- 

Gp 

Gq

o0
0

0

Lo

0

LO

00
0

zww

awa

H

F

00

ot

p

coo
cm

c

o

000

w

o

a> 

O

C

U

s

GPD- 

0
00

O
m

0
0

co
0

cc

cfl

cc

41

y

C7

p

co

a

co

bi

Q) 

a

v

G0

G

a

C

Ui

E~ 

GO

w

x

bf "

t

U) 

Iz

x

zww

awa

H

F

0
00O

m
0
0co0



0

0

ct

0

timss

c", 

o

LOLl -

t

LO

Lt

m

1-

4

Gro

cs- 

ds

coq 

torr

t

0

cm

lI

0

1" 

1" 

r° 

II

N

eq

0011

11

cm

0

0011N

o

0

00

0

0

o

co •-

4

00

r+ .- 

co

N

6f311

G& 

LC -

1111

cq

m

6sl  0

cq

0

C) = 

o

cq

4  

0

Qq

to

cq

M

000

Cn

I -

q

C'

e-

u

S& 

0

Gom 

t- 

m

Nm

U

1u

G09- 

0

0

cfl

U

coo

tfr

UWW

a U

AG09- 

C6

coo

o

oc

ci  

0  

4

q

0

tC

O  

C6

4

N

W

O

O

O

A

COD- 

0

0

ct

0

timss

c", 

o

LO
Ll -

t

LO

Lt

m

1-

4

Gro

cs- 

ds

coq 

torr

t

0

cm
lI

0

1" 

1" 

r° 
II

N

eq

0011
11

cm

0

0011
N

o

0

00

0

0

o

co •-

4

00

r+ .- 

co

N

6f311

G& 

LC -

1111

cq

m

6sl  
0

cq

0

C) = 

o

cq

4  

0

Qq

to

cq

M

000

Cn

I -

q

C'

e-

u

S& 

0

Gom 

t- 

m

Nm

U

1u

G09- 

G09 -

u

I

os

11

0

0

ci

o

coo

0

000

u

N

L-

4

O

a 

U

o 

C6

coo

o

oc

ci  

oc

4

q

0

G09 -
u

I

os

11

0

0

o

0

0

000

u

N

L-

4

O

a U

Lo

C6

14

O

oc

t

oc

4

q

0

tC

O  

C6

4

coi

u

W

O

O

O

A

COD- 

Go] 

609- 

LO

00

0

g

o

0

0

000

u

co0rcoo
L-

4

cs

q

Lo

C6

14

w

oil

t

coo

4

q

0

tC

O  

C6

4

coi

u

U

C.0 -

I" 

t

L

g

o

0

0

000

u

co0rcoo

q

0

m

C6

14

w

oil

t

coo

4

q

0

tC

O  

C6

4

coi

u

U

001

co

O

O

co

cC

4 

o + 

N

O

q

O

O

Z

m .

dO

O

O

CZ

y

o

CZ

o

0cz
y

an

d

A -

a) 

g44

so

a - 

w

a

r" - 

F

O

rr

m -

o

00

a

oO`
O

s.

o

1-

4 °

y 

d

1-

4

k

4 $

4

cd - 

a; 

G. 

N  

eClw
0

x

d , 

m

a) ^

o = 

d

W

m

C: '- 

W

m ..

cz .. 

W

Q

4 ' 

W

o7

cq

W

W

W

q

q

ai

u $

o+ 

C3

P., 

F

fJ, 

w

F

a "" E° &

4

G4F

E 

F, 

C'

S

0.' 

FaQ'

UU

rJ 

E4

ciso  

N

ci

c6

aq

o

o

o

ocfr

4

4

0v

o  

0

4 (

A

6

00
1" 

10

eq

o

co+'
r

0

rr" 

ci

cis

Hsll

ecD-

l6r

cc 

n

O

rr

oo

N

o

I- 

M

o

0

0

000

u

0

m

o

coo

q

o

0

tC

O  

C6

4

00U
O

O

O

j

a0

Lo

LO

wA

0000
cooco
a 

O

In. 

oo

0000coLooco
od

o

ci

4

o

rr

of

c 

34) 

N

o

N

0o

u0

o

N

N

o ., 

00

t

C

Cc

mc
LO=

NNI" 
o

o

C

o

C

L6

ci

t. 

o

CS
d+ 

0

06

ci

d

N

o

N

om" 

4

o0

3)

Uy

00t- 

W

m

m4
w

w

N

1-

1

a

a

m

co

ci

c6

4

O

cis

cis

W

C

0oo0000co
c+

0

F

oo0
P 

00000000m

y, 

o

s`

o, 

G4

O

F

o0

0

ci

cC

4 

4

ci

cc

Eo., 

o

00LoONtoN - 
w

It, 

L

o

L- 

m

m

UID = 

01-
4

0

et

017

0

o

m

cit
o

L

o

0

oo

O

vim

O

0

0

0

cm

ci

c6 '

IF

C6

U

1-
1

1-

4cm

cs

cAs

001

co

O

O

co

cC

4 

o + 

N

O

q

O

O

Z

m .

dO

O

O

CZ

y

o

CZ

o

0cz

y

an

d

A -

a) 

g44

so

a - 

w

a

r" - 

F

O

rr

m -

o

00

a

oO
Ò

s.

o

1-

4 °

y 

d

1-

4

k

4 $

4

cd - 

a; 

G. 

N  

eClw
0

x

d , 

m

a) ^

o = 

d

W

m

C: '- 

W

m ..

cz .. 

W

Q

4 ' 

W

o7

cq

W

W

W

q

q

ai

u $

o+ 

C3

P., 

F

fJ, 

w

F

a "" E° &

4

G4F

E 

F, 

C'
S

0.' 

FaQ'

UU

rJ 

E4

ciso  

N

ci

c6

aq

o

o

o

ocfr
4

4

0v

o  

0

4 (

A

6

00
1" 

10

eq

o

co+' r

0

rr" 

ci

cis

Hsll

ecD-

l6r

cc 

n

O

rr

oo

N

o

I- 

M

co

U

on

q

a0

O

In. 

s0. 

a

34) Cc

c

a

0F1.

4

a

r'

7

C

4o0

3)

Uy

d

a

W

C

W

y

W

F

D" w

0

P 

y, 

o

s`

o, 

G4

O

F

Eo., 

E,, 

H

F



U
UUiwWWrWAwNaFA

ocd
c 

U 

N

WCdU
N

Q

a

U

77d

o

0

0

0

0

N

ct

U

O

00

C

C

00

cc

C

c'

l 

CY

U

r

ti

W
WA

EA

H3

FA

59

EA

E03

fA

EA

O

p9

O

O

CG

O
t- 

0

0

m

CA
o

l

O

C` 

O

N

C

J

O

CQ (

D

O

O

O

OCoco
o
O

la

NC

C

4

CV

O

00

cV

CIS

C

C6

O

O

O

C

C

C

C

OAclCGGGOcN
O

O

4

CD

Qcq

O0O
1" 

00

C

l

O

U

O

ttj

N

N

O

O

Cj

L6

CrJ

00

O

cr

C

L6
d' 

O

O

d 

CG

O

m

0
C'

D

tl m

isy

00

10

m

m

m

O

O

LoNq

O

CYJ

C6

C` 

U

O

GFY

GAI

Q

d

U

0000cG0000c 
cG
m

r

ONo
N
N

coo
cqo

0000
0000
O
0

6o6
4

cls

cy 

coo

ocoo
o

0

cV

N

0

00

cmm0
m

o

4jq

00

0
0

00q

O

ickcg1

O

O

OX000
U

or

pro

16C

L6

oL

oiLo
1

d

O

cG
oNLOC'
D-

4

N

00

ut

m

CO

m

O

o 

O

LO

c 

ct

cG
4

b

Ge

Gr 

609- 

G09

GO'.) 

G09

64D

W

U

a) 

Usz

m

CO

A

m

G

a

c

d

m

w

Z

E-

164

y

U

Cd

06

7.

4

ai

E" 

O

ai

D

ami

am> 

ani ^ 

c~

d

O

m

m

F

M ^

t

m

E

b;.

4

0

1

m

w

v7

rn

F

a 

aa) i

m

Iaa

O

c. 

41

O> 

ami

in

M

w° 

4 ,- 

y

F

ani

W

ani

m

w °' . 

ani

cc

W

y ^ 

C. 

N

C

N

ami

o

ani

y

U "

LY

7

a) 

c+

aW
W

q

V

O

O

sm. 

m

co> 

ai

ani

4

cz '=

U

U

Q

W

ccz

x
c> 

C 

U

4.
1

F: 

mr'.

F

O

F

E

E 

P 

F

E 

ocd

c 

U 

NWCdU N

Q

a

U



O



o

c? 

bn

M >, 

cn

r,  

C7

0

t - 

W

W

W

U

o

N

N

N

co

Q

m

Q)

O

N

N

x

Q ¢ 

N

Zc
Cl)

o

x

o

W

Cd

o

3

x

b

x

x

y

b; 

a 

M

7d

Cd

t)

UD'

C

Q

bA (

1) 

N

N

p , 

cd

Cl) 

O

Cd

Cd

cd

Z

U 

O

cd -

o

a 

b

a-

0

Ux-
o

x

W

N

rn

N

O

x

o'

C

Q

Ct

C,

3

a

CE) 

4, 

A

y

o

U

7s  

a> '

D ' 

3 ° 

M

y }' 

p

N° 

E

cd

t", 

O

j, 

N 

Z

N

0t3

OO '
C .

s

b
A

s, 

yoU
c- '" > 

j _" > 

O

U

U

M '

C -" 

O

cq

cn

44

CA

O

N -

C ,+ 

U

O , 

C

U

ani

M

o

o ' + °

k'  

o , 

v ° 

u 

M•° 

M° 

al

E

W

a°

i

yin

eb, 

v

rA

O

W

o

o

o

n= 

M

o

0,  p

o

o° 

o

o

o

Ox64

71

Q 

i•• , 

U

Q ,

r,..,' 

N   

Vii

G 

i-, 

Cd ' 

vii

N

V •'" 

C '

CS

N

C 

cd

c   

01   

i. '

i

Q ' 

64

Q -

n

Q

M

In

Id

N '

CN 1̀

v1
N° 

bA

dCd
d

a

W

W

W

W

WW
o

W

aW

3 -

0

ate° 

a

a

a

w'

4. 

Wa; 

WO

N

N

wo

o

o

x

7

x

o

xi

N

xi

w

O

u

O

p,,

ME

U

Cl) 

o

0

U> 

U



os

1-

11

Gn1-

1 -

1-

1 -

1-

1 - 

1-

1

Els

1-

1 - 

I`"

i 

19

11,

11  

1

1 

1

1

i 

V

O

O

O

O

O

O

S

S

S

S

00

enp
N

O

O

000 

oo

Op

M

M

6 

00

00O 

O

O

C

oo

N

C

S
O

N

NO
O

O

00

NO

7

0 '

n

O

S

00

00

O

O
p O

O

O

lf! 

O

OO

00 In
00

p

0 "* 

O -- 

vi 

C

N

i

O

i

i

i

N

00

00

W) 

T

7
O
8

7

NN

N
r`

i

O

O

M

O

00

C

oo

epi

O

oo

O 

N

O 

Q\ 

N

ty

O

V

Vl

O

O
en

O

in

U
y

N

r- 

N

00 

D

M

V1 

O

M

r

to

N

N

oo

O

01

O

O

vl

O

h [ 

DD -- 

O

00

00

t

r ( 

O

O

N

7

0 '

n

C

O

M

C

N

P7

M

M

M

C 

M

O

O

C

t- 

M '

n

M

10

M

r

M

00

M

Vl

Vl

CON

M

M

N

O '/

1

M

O

M

N

M

M

00

O

f` 

V1

00

Vl

O

M

M

G

M

M

V

V3

11

69

Yi

1

Efd

V3

64

os

1-

11

Gn1-

1 -

1-

1 -

1-

1 - 

1-

1

Els

1-

1 - 

I`"

i 

19

11,

11  

1

1 

1

1

i 

V

O

O

O

O

O

O

S

S

S

S

CC

00
0 

0p

M

M

Na\ 

N

N

O

N

O

D, 

D\ 

O
N

O

O

C

oo

N

C

C
p

O

O

00

NO

7

0 '

n

O

S

p

O

S

S

O

S

O
p

h

O

O

O

1h

C

O

00

0

0

0

N

O •- 

p

v1 

0

Oi
l 

fel [ 

C

t 

O

O
t'

V

o0

C 

r- 

h 

O

O

00

Vl

p

vi
h

O 

N

7
O
8

a

fV

vi

V'
i

1

h 

O

N

M

C

t 

1 

C

M

O

00

C

oo

epi

O

oo

O 

N

Vi
t+

i

O 

O 

n

pp

00

S

Vi

00

M

C -- 

h

O

O

h

N

D\ 

7  

v': 

vi

o0

v' -. [ 

0 

O

b

t- 

n

00

M

W

O 

00

C..

Ic

O

O

vl

O

M

DD -- 

O

R

t

r ( 

O

O

N

7

0 '

n

C

O

V7

M

N

h

W

N

M

M

C 

C .- 

Ci '

n 

cM

O

O

C

t- 

M '

n

M

10

M

r

M

00

M

N

en

tri

0

vi

a0

v' 

CON

r

00

V'
f

C

h

001

V

M

M

M

M

M

O

N

O

O

O

Cl

M

M

G

V

V3

11

69

Yi

1

Efd

V3

64

H3

611)- 

fiff

EA

D

O

CO
S

S

Ao0
OSN
O

O

M

MM
M

00

O

00S
S

N

S

S

j

N

00

h

C

th

M

OO

O

00

N

0 '

ri

Nl

O

O

O

O

9 ' ' 

N

n

M" ' 

O ' 

O

S ' 

N

N

r

N

N

O

Q

O

O

h

O

1

00

OOC

O 

O

O

00 '

n '

n '

n

t'

1

oC

O 

O

M

O

0= ^ 

W

7

00

O

V

O ' 

O

D; -

n

C, 

O '

n

O

r

O

O

D

M

M

M

O

p

00 /' '

n

W) 

O

N ( .... 

O\ 

0

M

M

M -- 

00 '

n

V"
i

M '/

1

00

M

R

l '

n

00

Vl

00

O

O

l 

L
i. 

en

In

en

eq

tn

fn

en

aU

G/

3

E/

i :/-

1

bH

EA

Y3

69

b9

69

fi19

69

Eif

u!) 

Vi

ff] 

fA

Eft

Y3

69

519

6f3

O

S

S

S

S

O

O

O

S

N

N

ON

N

N ;.:

i

O

O

C

U

O

U

O

V

O

S

a

N

O

O

O

C

O

M

M

M

M . 

M •

Eb

M

M

M

0v

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

o

a`

i

a`

i

a`

i

a`

i

ai  

j ' 

v ' '  

U

U

U

N

N

N

N .- " °

Z! ° ° 

N ^

r ..' '

r" '. 

y ., 

P.
i " 

P. •' , '. 

C

bn

O ' 

O

O O

ti

N

O

M

A

d

O

GG

OQ

CA

iA

W

a1

W

a1

O

C

QI 

t

Cz

C

C

O

00

O

oy

O

p

N

N

N

O

M

O

m

M

p

A

fA

t? 

O

A

M

O

A

M

O

M

O

u

C

N

N

N

N

N

cg

Y

t"

t

N

N

N ` 

N

N + 

N

N

N

C

b  

oo ^ 

d

tV
e+ 

g

y

C7 '

1114

a 

c

C7

N

N

N

N

N

y

m

E'' 

ECEE'' 

EE''''' 

0q ' 

U' [ 

W

m

M

Q 

bL

ri

N

N

W

W

W

W

W

W . 

V

V

V

N

V

V

N 

O ?^ ..

N

r "' „

y

00

YE

O\ 

A

O

A

N

N

A

N

N

A

y

t.,

t

M

A

y

t,

i

C

U

U

U

C7

C7

C7

C7

C7

C7

C7

C7

E

E

E

E

E

E

8m ^

r - 

U

c ' 

U

N

U

c

c

N

U ; 

U

Q

ci
u

Ci

0.
1

CO

CA

Cq

0.
1

pa

W

O

O

O

U

O

O

U

O   

N

N ' 

l 

00

O

O\ 

O

O "'

i

N

M ,

y

R

y

i } 

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

m "' 

m "'

i ' 

m "'

i '"' 

m

N

U

m

N

U

m

N

U

y •

G

m

N

U

m

N

C. 

m (

y

7

4= 

4r- 3 .

3. .`

3 .

moi .

moi .`

J

z

tm

e

C

m

tm

y 

t

3

rii

a

A

r

a

A

O

4

A

O' 

O

r"
C, 

G^+ 

W

Q

O

Q

G

y

G

A

e+ 

G

cVi

G

V

A

C

U '

O

O

O

eGo

cGC

cae

cGe

G 

Gy

cCC

cG0  

E 

iU 

iD

GD

bh

6D 

G

p  .`! 

U   

U .

w  

U ^ .

R

7

U

N  .

Q
i 

V

N

A

O •.'' 

U

N

Q

43

U

N •

Q

Q ° 

U

C

O

z

G

N ].. 

i

O

O

O

O

O

V

tz, 

y > 

Ur

C7

cJ

C7

c7

C7

C7
C 

row
a

a

w` 

a

aQ

a` > 

W

U

w

U

w

U

w

G 

g

r 

a

t 

y 

a

as

y

w  

w '

w 

7 `°.. 

icd., 

i

t

tA. 

w

Ee°. 

C7

C7

C7

C7

O

C7

C7

4 '

C

U` (

7

Y

C7

y

t% 

C7

O

CJ ' 

L" ° 

L

V

p

O .

a

V

y

ca

O

a0+ 

m ;' 

ce

O

a°+ 

ro

a+ 

C7

V ° 

a 

g

CG

CG

oq

CC

GO

CO

Gt  

m

GC

S

m

m

0

CC  

m  

p °' 

s

m

s   

m

o     

m

n

c

o

p .

G

E

o

s

r 

m> 

m

abi

ami

abi

ami

ami

abi

A

A

p

O 

w

p

A 

S

a

o

A

b

a 

a

w^ 

a

C 

a

a 

a 

c

A '

o

a° 

mo

o

U

m

a

aQwwwwLEw2LEwcn000UUUUF
Qtn

UUA

UUv, 
u

F.

WP.¢

rn

U¢

a;

atn
U¢

u`

cs!

adtn

UQaci:
Av 

U¢

aa:

Atn

Zorn
E°- 



6A

1-

11

611-

1 -

1-

1 -

1-

1 - 

1-

1

6A

I -

I

GC'

l

ISI

6A

11011

6A

I

I", 

I

I"

I

S

S  MS

M

O

p

8

S

S

Q\ 

F

O

VM1

Oh

S

S

O 

p 

O

S

p

en

0

S

S

h

O

enIn

M

O

i , 

i , ^ 

O

7p 

R

00

ryMj

M [ 

N

00

0

7

NM

00

00

O
0

O

C_ 

00

O^ 

i

I . -. 

I

I

r.. 

eD
M

pp

M
m

O

M

O
N

6.,

6

O 

00

p1

N

r- 

O

O

r 

oe

7

OHO

W

r14

C14

O . 

1 ^ 

O

l

o0

t 

l 

N

M

M01

O

Q\ 

O

O

t [, 

O

l

l

O

N

M

N

O

r

N

N

r

l 

N
N

N

M

r

M

v1

O

h

O;, N

01 

pp

00

V'

1 ' 

O

I 

VI

h

M

V

N

l 

N

N

N

d' 

O

M

r

t- 

N

O

t, 

M

N

0

O

N

t 

N

M

h

00

O\ 

O

O

l

V

N

S

M

P

r„
i

00

N

ti

N

M

O

as

N

N

O

M

N

C

y

N

M

N
kn

N

N

N

N

N

7

N

M

Qd

6A

1-

11

611-

1 -

1-

1 -

1-

1 - 

1-

1

6A

I -

I

GC'
l

ISI

6A

11011

6A

I

I", 

I

I"

I

S

S  

00

O

p

8

S

S

p

O

VM1

S

S

O 

p 

O

S

p

en

0

S

S

h

O

enIn

V1

a1

O

O

O

O

to

V 

c

00 

d ' ^ 

O

pp1M
l 

M

M

l [ 

M

OO

O

7
p 

R

C_ 

Oti

M [ 

N

00

0

7

NM

i

O 

M

Oi

Q '

n

l 

ct [-- 

00
00

O
0

O

C_ 

00

O^ 

N
O

7

vi

fV

ori

eO

fry, 

eD
M

pp

M
m

O

M

O
N

6.,

6

O 

00

p1

N

r- 

O

O

r 

7

OHO

W

n

O . 

1 ^ 

O

l

o0

t 

l 

N

M

M01

O

Q\ 

O

O

t [, 

O

l

l

O

N

M

N

O

r

N

N

r

l 

N
N

N

M

r

M

v1

O

h

O;, 

N

01 

pp

00

V'

1 ' 

O

I 

VI

h

M

V

N

l 

N

N

N

d' 

O

M

r

t- 

N

O

t, 

M

N

0

O

N

t 

N

M

h

00

O\ 

O

O

l

V

N

S

M

P

r„i

00

N

ti

N

M

O

as

N

N

O

O

kn

M

N

vMl

N
kn

N

N

N

N

N

7

d

Q69

Gn

69

69

b9

69

69

601

6R

6A

6R

6N

6A

61l

69

69

69

69

6H

S

S

S

O

O

S

a\ 

p

en

0

S

S

h

O

enInS

S

S

S

8880p

t 

a+  

O

O

O 

O

C_ 

N 

O

00 ' 

M
l 

M 

VM'1

a1

l 

t 

rr

Q` 

p

Oh

pp

O

Op

7

l 

O

1

O
l 

6.,

6

00

p1

N
r- 

O

O

r 

7

OHO

N

O

00

N

O

t [, 

O
l

l

O

N

M

N

00 ^ 

N

M
wn

O;, N

v1

00

Cl

r

r

l 

O

00

M

O
t, 

M

N

0

O

O

l

V

N

S

M

P

r„i

00

d' 

N
r- 

N

M

h

o0

N

N

r- 

M

N

N

O

kn

M

N

vMl

N
kn

O00

OU

Fig

6A

69

69

6A

6A

64

69

6A

fA

6A

6A

6A

b9

b9

6A

69

69

Y3M

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

V

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

r- 

06

Cr

6

r 

r 

rr 

r+. 

N [ 

M

5

00^' 

w

00

0\ 

N

0

0

0

0

0

0

M

M

tL

ti, 

k. 

fs

tz, 

fi

a 

Go

t 

ao

o

O

O

O

N

N

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

c

W

o . 

W

N

o

ai ,

Yi

o

V .- ; 

U

o ; 

U

o ; 

U -

P

U

t? 

N

o

o

O

M  

O

d .. 

o

O  

Q

oo

p

o  

ti ' 

O

o 

N

0

0  

c

a

c

c

c 

o5b5b5b
yy^" 

y= '" 

tix 

x "" 

d¢

2

N

od¢ 

ox

N

ddb

NN'
r

U

da.
2

C. 

N

N «

3

e0

ed

ca

cO

RS

O

c3

O

O

O

O

L

O , 

O , 

O , 

N , 

h

t5u 
u''

c5

5c55c5a
a.

a.

o,

a > 

U

U

44

00000
p,

OOy

OOy
00 

Ox
o'

Q

Ox
o

a

i 

Ox
o'

er

O

x

o

S'

Q

Ox
o

v

LL. 

wwwwwwwxxxxxF
Wx
x 

xx 

x

xri

SdUxv 
xdUzrs!
v1

x <

u

on

xdUxa:
dv 

SdUxa
m

F



N

00

c

1

U

hN

rr) 

M

M

OM

O

Cd

rn

M

en

69

fH

69

fA

OW

Oa

O

aSrS
R

S

8

N

on

O

M

Mo

O

M •-- 

O

ON

r

or

r

M

o

o

r

r" 

r

aj

e

S

e

v

S

tn

en

a 

Y

O

N

M

O

N

M

Tr

V1

M

W

V 

M

W

to

O

W

M

M

U

sf, 

sR

v3

cd

C

ds

xIt

03Con

U

cd

N

Wx

O

VC

N

d

Q

M

Q

M

C

3

O

V
O

w

O, 

O

N

U

N

N

U

N

y

O

u

tri

U

c

oN

U - 

a

Cf)

dU

U

w

Q

y

U

w

d

w

w

a

d

U

U

x

o

x

U

U

x' 

x

o

U

N

W

U

N

Q

1

U



P



A

N
N

U

Wd

aU

O

fti

m

00

cd

69

U  

w

z

co

W

r 

O

00

N

l 

vii

N

W

o

cz

pp0

Ni 

O

U

OU

vi3

Cd9°° 

O

hN], 

vCj
S

oho

N'" 

tel, 

N '

n

pa

moo
O

d

v

art

oC; 

cq3

6. 

42

cl, 

bo

pi

S

r
e

O

o

NW
U

y

N

A

U

O

N

S

g
v '

e! 

vn

M

C,^ 

A

O

p

N

N  

pO

O
00

N

ClN
CA

O

o

ca

0

pF
o..• 

O

W4. 

v

5

cn

o

W

d

4.
O

CO

O

v

0 • 

i

o

o

U

00

O

cm

2

d 

w

p

d

d

d -

d

y

2

nu

Q  o

7;' 

b

a

0

C

S

x

a

V

F

o

F

A

NN

U

Wd

aU



Q

cgwynn
Typewritten Text
6/8/2024



a
0

r

t— 

o, 

N

14, 

C, 

C7, 

0 

o

r

o` 

O

cd

10

1

I

O

y

M

cd

U

C

N

O

4

l

U

d

dbs

ss

ss

s

s

cn

In. 

n

UG

U

vl

N

O

L

O

U

d

NEn
O

cn

N

1

N.°.

0

Lnr  
En -

yI

U

9

U

ti

Skim

Cd

3

U

3 

cn

a0

16,

111

tun

7

O

r

o

O

r

t— 

o, 

N

O

a` 

O

7

10

C, 

C7, 

0 

o

r

o` 

d

I

I

10

1

I

00

y

M

Noc ~ 

C

N

C

a

A

ss

d

dbs

ss

ss

s

s

16,

111

tun

7

O

r

o

O

cc

o0

In

orn

o 

c

00

O

a` 

O

7

10

C, 

N

r

10

00

7

7

h 

M

R

N

10

00

N

Ic

000

N

M

Noc ~ 

M

N

C

V) 

ss

d

dbs

ss

ss

s

s

O

O

O '

d' 

lO

O

r- 

1.

0

7

O

17

NO - 

In

M

V

nIO
M

w)(— ri

v1

7

00

l— 

00

00

d

Uds
V) 

ss

0E0

lu

U

ma

411

c
O

U

O

W

N  

x

s

U

lu

0

0

U

co

w `

0

0

I

l

l

l

w

8 ; & 

G. 

0

0

0

0

0

r

Uc
c

o  

c

R

8. 

R

8. 

Y

CAV)
V

N

A

O

A

A

A
f 

MA, 



R



zWUnu

F  Q

aQ
F

WU

F

z

A
E" 

W

WWUdF

q

qOaw
Q7

en '

0U •
3-

i

Vi ~ 

gi

S .:. 

y

f -
i ' 

O ' ' 

S

S

M

M ' 

S

O

M

v, , 

C. 

3

c 

oA

o

o

o 

n

C -

14
3. 

N

N

O

4. 

4. 

O

i

y

v 

V1

O

N

vi

Vl

O

O

U  

o. 

0. 

N

O = `

n

O

O

Encn
O

ds

s9

O

O

O

U° 

N

vi

p

00

c 

O

cz

cYC

O " 

O

U

Z  

N

y

o

0

0

0

o

0

0

0

b1D

i

O

0

0

o

S

00

00

X

0

0

00

ani

un

N ¢'

o

o ° 

3

oddc 
r•

i 

I

O . 

4. 

o

C

o

8

M

K`"
j, 

o
d°

O', 

oMo

D

o

m

U

W ^ '

C _ ".•' 

OO

i• 

O ••' ..+ 

O

O

v 

vi

N
C'

4

r.+ 

Co 

N/ • 

C 

U

fd

iy"' '

A

M ,_, 

p

M

4-
i

C. 

cC

cd

p

N ' 

y

W .

N. . 

r '

d

bA . '

C

C . 

r

j

ri

O

5

C «

i

y

N . -" 

O

O

0. 

co

WO
O

y

N

Q

N

Cyt

U

Q

69

b9

69

b9 .. 

Q

C13

10

tQ

cd." 

O

Q= 

O

O

p

P/y

N

40. 

0 "

0O

0° 

aUi

N

N

y

on

o

S

o

c

o

N

0

0

to

O,

3

64

4 

Q

O

O. 

co

b

O

C

r. 

cd

p .

fl

U

O

b

O . 

N . 

o

S

v

O

0

o.

W

cv

U

O > 

ACOZ

co =- 

U

ss

ss

s9

ss3

U -
S

to

Qkr) 
Cd

o ° 

O

M ,, 

arA
z ° 

O °

Cd

ct

a

U

Cd

M

C>

a' 

p.

moo

N ° 

o

v

a

M 

wco
to

eq

cd

p

N

N

O  

C

v

cd , 

4. 

F

r"  ° 

ti

cc3

i

O

N

o

N

bq

O

O

U0 . ° 
t

CO

fl

v ° 

i

oi  
C{

Uy

a    

o   

rx

a $ 

c

c

u

0  ^° 

N¢ Q. , 

co

0Q3 . 

o «

3

S

O. - ccl 

0

o

O

C7 .

v

E•°- 

Gc

Acv

E

a 

O

4. 

cz

bpq° ` 

wwcc
o.,
ip

o

o 

o

W

o

M =

s

o

U " 

NNO
U'

p

NU

v

to

0

0 = >

OLN > 

y

Gw ` 

0`" 

o

N

N

N

N

V] 

U] 

F^ 

A

A

y

Z

00

s . + .!

z ¢ 

N

U

cz

Q

N

M

to .

fl

o

N

Mdai °

cz

CO, 

vo

a

o'°

i-.

O = 

N

N

N .

0 

c

o

C, 

WW
a; 

O

W

O' ° ' " 

iG

F

v, 

O

U

O

0= 

a°

i

v

ami

ani

Q .

o .

o

v

v

y

N

1' 

U

W

F°., 

La

0en
O

V

U

as

a>

i

vl

v] 

vi . 

o

cn

O

y

N

0

cOC

30. 

C% 

r0. 

ON

V] 

C 

C%] 

C% 

V1

f 

F

W

F" 

C/) 

F 

L 

N

yam•. 

W

U



S



MNONAu

U

W) 

W) 

IO

c 

V) 

UCd

O

O

0

it

O

rNCd
s

GQO

U

N

yam•,  

d

M

U

C> 

r1l. \ 

o

o

O

cd

4- 

c 

O

00

110

00

b

Q

o

M

N

MM- 

O

C

O

u

N

cd

C

3

QaC4

N

U

S". 

0

Cd

M

O

s,-. Cly

r- 

cc" 

U

U

y

Cn '

t •  

bA

M-. 

Q) 

a

Q.) 

N

O

Cn

ALL. 

U

42

CE

a

o

o

C7

cd

O

czcz

Z

w

w

U

cl

K

U

u - 

u

R: 

aoi -

o

cd

4, 

a

cd

V1

V 

Z3

U

W

b

cin

r

o

x

W  • 

W , 

W • ' 

3
0

x1334° 

3°

C3

CJ

M

W) 

W) 

IO

W) 

V) 

C) 

O

V) 

aU

y

CV Q 

M
C 

C1

Y

L

i.

i

M

M

M

M

U

C> 

r1l. \ 

o

o

A

Vl

IO

O

00

110

CJ

M

W) 

W) 

IO

W) 

V) 

O

V) 

aU

00

C 

C1

M

r- 

11C

C, 

M

pa

o

o

r1l. \ 

o

o

o

Vl

IO

O

00

110

00

b

Q

M

N

MM- 

O

C

O

Mr

N

QaC4
N

4

M

O

r- 

UI 

s

ILII

Of) 

IV 

ND

IC

aU

O

w

O

N

O

M

O

I- 

Vl

IO

O

00

110

00

b

Q

M- 

O

C

O

Mr

N

QaC4
N

4

M

O

r- 

N

M-. 

Q) 

a

Q.) 

N

a

o

o

UI 

s

ILII

Of) 

IV 

U

ND

aU

X

w° 

oY

Q

Q) 

a

Q.) 

N

a

o

o

Q-) 

Z

w

w

U

w

K

R: 

aoi -

o

Q.) 

w

cin

r

o

x

H

w

H

U

ND

aU



T



R

W
5

FwH

NN

U

4

U

ct

N

Q

C

O

r- 

N

N

N

0

tt

L: 

y

O

06

00G

00G

I

CZ

a)

D

0N

M

Q

3

Z

V

U

V

IO

d

z

5

yy

0 

zO

b

U

o

oc

a

F

Nct
Z

c,

LW
NC

O

4

p

OC

00

00

00

04

a3

Ie

15 

loq

N

V

A

m

oO

V

0

3

O

W

W

0

0

0

0

0

0

U 

4

oo\' 

4

o0

Uo
U

ooo

W

r+ 

c

O

Cl

oMo

do

oa
o' 

A

ocC,

00 

N

a,

a

Q

z

ros

x 

Uz

U

d 

o

Wi

C7

3

OrA0-

0

Q

b

0

0

00

0

Z

Zco
Q

Q

d

ca

d

3OG

z

N

O

n

O

z

Y

R

W
5

FwH

NN

U

4

U



U



4NON

y

o

o

p

S

8

10
m

N

8

N

rq
N

O

M

O

Cl) 

10

Ic

cd

U

Id

41.
1

O'•

C '" 

OS-"" 

U

U 

1

iC

A

N

N

N

N

O

GJ

N

6n

In 

on

cd

O

cCi

L: 

4. 

O

N

4-

4

c

ycd-

cn ;

5 '

NMC,
oB >

1cd
a

N

b

3

U

3

O

v°
O

vOO

00

06m

t

0000

I

U

O

O

O

N "

C

O

U

w

cn

0I..
n421

00

00

000^ 

vfl

N

N14

rn

ds

V)

Cd

ss

N

U

O  

U4. 
O

Olt

10

10

C) 

Cdu

Cd

cn

U

004c 

N

H

64

cn '

C

W

4

W

o

ma+ 

o

o

cn

CG1

CIA

cn

ID

Cd

cd '

a

o

i

C), 

v

N

Cd

Cd

tp

U

x

3

x

y

xN
x

w ' ' °° 

mow' 

a 

cn

C

x

cn

10N

W

U  

U

Q

U



City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

May 2024 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater

10. Parks and Recreation-GEC
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

Item V



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
May 2024 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  June 4, 2024 
 
• The Goldsboro Mayor’s Youth Council (GYC) met for a regular monthly meeting on May 1st.     
• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) did not meet for a regular monthly meeting on 

May 14th due to no quorum. 
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) met for a regular monthly meeting on May 16th. 

 
• Community Relations Activities:  

1. Staff served on Housing Roundtable at UWW’s Nonprofit Summit held at WCC on May 2nd.  
2. Staff attended a meeting with Duke Energy on May 6th.  
3. Staff attended a meeting with Trillium on May 7th. 
4. Staff attended the Region 10 Continuum of Care meeting on May 8th.  
5. Staff facilitated Juneteenth planning meeting on May 14th.  
6. Staff attended a Trillium Town Hall at WCC on May 15th.  
7. Staff completed a Housing Complaint Intake on May 17th.  
8. Staff attended a Parking meeting to discuss accessibility issues on May 22nd.  
9. Staff attended ‘A Day In the Park’ at Herman Park with MCPD members on May 23rd.  
10. Staff attended a City Hall Parking Lots meeting on May 29th.  
11. Staff attended CALM’s community social at W.A. Foster Center on May 30th.  
12. CR&D department staff meetings were held on May 17th, 21st, & 30th. 
 

• Community Development Activities:  
1. Staff attended a Choice Neighborhood meeting on May 13th.   
2. Staff met with housing developer Mark Morgan on May 15th.   
3. Staff facilitated a CDBG Rehab. Pre-Bid meeting on May 16th. 
4. Staff met with Interim ACM to discuss HUD projects on May 16th.  
5. Staff attended a Choice Neighborhood Housing Committee meeting on May 28th.  
6. Staff attended a United Way meeting with Salvation Army on May 30th.  
7. Staff engaged in 3 HUD Consultations in the month of May.  

 
• The Department received one (1) complaint and twenty-two (22) requests for assistance for the month of May. 

*Please refer to Community Relations & Development Addendum for a detailed summary.   
2024 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 2 0 1 2 1        1 
Other Requests 18 17 16 22 22        19 

 
2023 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 1 1 1 1 4 0 2 1 1 1 0 2 1 
Other Requests 27 36 14 15 19 25 32 25 20 20 15 17 22 

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT Addendum 
May 2024 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared: June 5, 2024 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
         

 
Nature of Complaint       

 
Resolution 

Housing Intake completed on 
5/16/2024; Case referred 
to Legal Aid of NC 

 
Assistance with Resources 
  

Resource Requested            
   

Number of 
Requests 

Resolution 

Home Repair 8 Application provided /Application follow-up provided/Resources 
provided to Mt. Olive resident 

First-Time Homebuyer 
 

6 Provided program information and/or update on submitted 
application  

Housing Assistance 3 Completed Coordinated Entry Intake/Referred to United Way for 
rent assistance 

Housing Development 1 Followed up with developer on funding application 
Neighbor’s Grass 1 Referred to Code Enforcement 
GYC 1 No answer when called back 
Disability Programs 1 Referred to P&R Special Populations & MCPD 
Accessibility Issue at 
Senior Apartment Bldg. 

1 Contacted GFD who provided regulatory details on the issue 

Total Requests: 22  
 



1 

Downtown Development Department 
May 2024 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Erin Fonseca 
Date Prepared: June 10, 2024 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 16 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or 
business interest regarding downtown. Met with 24 existing business owners.  

• Parking schedule and sign update. Developed messaging to help with rollout of enforcement on June 3rd. 
• South Center Street Development planning. Revisiting RFQ process. Plans to re-advertise in May. 
• Union Station stabilization discussions continued – focus on development of scope for the city’s $375,000 

contribution through the 2024 state budget appropriation. 
• COG Budget preparation for FY24-25 
• Staff continuing to work with Choice Neighborhoods Team, attending bi-weekly calls. Also attending Economic 

Development, Urban Form and Housing subcommittee meetings. 
• Assisted with redesign of Special Event Application and policy. 
• Received Annual Accreditation at State and National levels from Main Street. 

Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           

• Planning for Downtown annual events –Center Street Jam, Sprinkler Fun Days, Litter Sweep. 

• Staff assisted with a year-end Arts District Steering Committee meeting. 

• Other Meetings: Chamber of Commerce Board Meeting, TDA Board, NCFF Board and Planning Mtgs, 
Choice Neighborhoods, Parking Committee, Arts District Committee, Black Business District Committee. 

DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  
• Saving Union Station Committee meetings in preparation for Saving Union Station Day. Rescheduled from May 

14th to June 4th due to weather. Partnership with Eastern Carolina Rail and NCDOT Rail to present an update on 
passenger rail. State legislators are also being invited to participate.  

• State budget appropriation paperwork for receipt of grant - $300K to DGDC for downtown maintenance 
• Arts Council Grassroots Grant – Mural complete on the side of Torero’s property (112 N John St) – Ribbon 

Cutting planned for June 28th at 10:00am 
• Assisting United Way and SJAFB with planning Days of Caring around a scheduled work day for SJAFB. 250+ 

volunteers are scheduled to assist. 
• DGDC Merchants on April 2. DGDC Committees met on April 9th, 10th and 17th. 
• Plans to honor 2 long-term businesses, Direct Carpet and Elite Fashions, for 60+ years of service.  
• Aly’s Garden completion in the Waynesborough Parking Lot. Ribbon Cutting held on May 21st.  
• Foodie Week planning assistance for Wayne County Chamber – April 29th – May 3rd   

Upcoming Events/Activities:  
• HUB Events: Center Street Jams – May 2nd – Aug 8th , 3 Eagles Beer Fest – May 11th, 5K for 5P – May 18th , Foodie 

Friday – May 3rd.  
• Mulberry Market – May 3rd, Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni Parade – May 25th  

Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased & Other Updates 
• New Businesses: The Borough – 115 E Walnut St, Shy Boutique – 108 S Center St 
• Coming Soon: 144 N Center St (bookstore concept), 120 E Mulberry St – Momento, The Loft expansion – 224 N 

Center St 
• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers: 16.9K Followers, 265K reach  



 

 
 

1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
May 2024 
Prepared by:  Jonathan Perry                     
Date Prepared:  06-06-24 
                
Stoney Creek Greenway   

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 
linear feet; 

• Final payment has been made to the contractor; 
• Staff is working on project closeout with NCDOT. 

 
Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 

• Staff is working with DWI to close out this project. 
 
Mount Olive Pickle Expansion 

• Phase 1 has been completed and Mount Olive Pickle is in operation. 
• Phase 2, River Bend Pump Station, is under construction and will take approximately a year to 

complete; 
• Funding is in the State’s Budget to complete Phase III of this project. 

 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections are on hold until the vacated Construction Inspector 

position has been filled. 
 
Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 

• Final scope of engineering services has been approved by DWI;  
• CDM Smith continues to work on the final report and to facilitate meetings with all interested parties 

in Wayne County. 
 
Stormwater Inventory Project 

• Projected completion July 2024. 
 

2” Galvanized Water Line Project 
• NCDWI awarded the City a grant for the project in the amount of $5,999,395; 
• Staff is working on the design/contract phase for this project. 

 
Lead and Copper Inventory 

• Staff is coordinating the information required by EPA for lead and copper inventories; 
• City Council awarded a contract for $2,037,500 to Duke’s Root Control, Inc. of Elgin, Illinois on 

October 2, 2023; 
• This project is 82% complete. 

 



2 

 
SJAFB MAG Meter 

• The Wooten Company has completed the SCADA integration and electrical design; 
• Staff is working on contract documents. 

 
NCSU Floodprint Project 

• Letter of interest scored high with the BRIC Grant; 
• Project has moved into full application submittal stage. 

 
WRF Plant Expansion 

• Staff recommended and City Council approved the selection of Crowder Construction/Hazen and 
Sawyer for the WRF Expansion Project based on the committee’s overall evaluation of their 
demonstrated capabilities and collaborative approach. 
 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
MAY 2024 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: June 8, 2024 
 

 

FY 22-23
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues April-23 Adjusted Budget April-24 Collected
General Fund 37,528,010$      53,111,246$           38,862,779$      73.17%
Utility Fund 19,700,307        27,237,001              20,673,941        75.90%
Downtown District Fund 102,804               112,215                    104,528               93.15%
Occupancy Tax Fund 936,287               1,465,450                 931,992               63.60%
Stormwater Fund 1,723,778           2,070,655                 1,434,469           69.28%
     Total 59,991,186$      83,996,567$           62,007,710$      73.82%

Expenditures
General Fund 32,850,593$      53,111,246$           38,661,326$      72.79%
Utility Fund 13,549,653        27,237,001 17,306,183 63.54%
Downtown District Fund 51,834                  112,215 62,813                  55.98%
Occupancy Tax Fund 999,656               1,465,450 929,834 63.45%
Stormwater Fund 1,740,553           2,070,655 1,392,770 67.26%
     Total 49,192,288$      83,996,567$           58,352,925$      69.47%

FY 22-23
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

April-23 Adjusted Budget April-24 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 18,654,408$      20,647,821$           19,864,077$      96.20%
Charges for Services 23,591,782        30,835,722              25,476,614        82.62%
Revenue Other Agencies 10,349,201        16,427,501              9,784,852           59.56%
Other Revenues 4,066,798           4,200,125                 3,191,753           75.99%
Fund Balance -                         8,194,985                 -                         0.00%
Shared Services 3,328,996           3,690,414                 3,690,414           100.00%
     Total 59,991,186$      83,996,567$           62,007,710$      73.82%

Expenditures
Labor 20,854,491$      36,969,947$           27,416,352$      74.16%
Non-Labor 28,337,797        47,026,620              30,936,574        65.79%
     Total 49,192,288$      83,996,567$           58,352,925$      69.47%

FY 22-23 Actual Total 
Collections Actual April-24 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 46,249$               23,984$                     30,999$               
Surplus 81,510$               -$                            305$                      

FY 23-24

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 23-24

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



Prepared Date: 6/4/24 8:24 AM
Prepared By: Terrie Webber
Reviewed Date: 6/8/24 1:54 PM
Reviewed By: Catherine F. Gwynn

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 5/31/2024 4/30/2024 5/31/2023 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 2,593,926.92$               4,098,128.62$               3,777,263.82$               0.00%
PNC - Money Market 25,493,467.60$            25,401,990.38$            5,068,521.69$               4.33%
PNC - Debit Account 2,000.00$                       2,000.00$                       2,000.00$                       0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 632,782.41$                  632,049.60$                  624,170.82$                  1.52%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 -$                                 -$                                 258,438.44$                  n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 -$                                 -$                                 9,106,314.71$               n/a
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,762,480.01$               4,741,433.73$               4,520,738.69$               n/a
Truist MMA 27,458,979.12$            27,383,571.06$            24,872,906.05$            3.25%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY23 Rolling Stock 2,380,502.95$               2,380,482.79$               2,380,264.54$               0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 343,396.07$                  343,335.70$                  1,872,619.90$               0.25%
Totals 63,667,535.08$           64,982,991.88$           52,483,238.66$           

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
May 31, 2024

Cash & Investment FY2024_1.xlsx 5-31-24 6/8/2024 1:54 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2023 through June, 2024

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out
Human Resources Bernadette Dove Operational Supplies 1,200$                         -$                                   
Human Resources Bernadette Dove Software License Fees 1,200$                         -$                                   
Human Resources Bernadette Dove Consultant Fees -$                              (2,400)$                             

Transfers - May 2024 - Human Resources 2,400$                         (2,400)$                             

GEC Felicia Brown Contract Services 1,000$                         -$                                   
GEC Felicia Brown Salaries & Wages Part-Time -$                              (1,000)$                             

Transfers - May 2024 - GEC 1,000$                         (1,000)$                             

PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Building Maintenance -$                              (9,020)$                             
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Garage Bay Door -$                              (11,980)$                           
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Sprayer 21,000$                       -$                                   

Transfers - May 2024 - PW Buildings & Grounds 21,000$                       (21,000)$                           

PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher Machine/Equipment Maintenance 1,000$                         -$                                   
PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher Contract Services -$                              (3,100)$                             
PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher Tree Service -$                              (1,000)$                             
PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Part-Time 3,100$                         -$                                   

Transfers - May 2024 - PW Cemetery 4,100$                         (4,100)$                             

Finance Catherine Gwynn Medical Exams 229$                             -$                                   
Finance Catherine Gwynn Operational Supplies 1,000$                         -$                                   
Finance Catherine Gwynn Travel -$                              (1,300)$                             
Finance Catherine Gwynn Postage 25$                               -$                                   
Finance Catherine Gwynn Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (500)$                                 
Finance Catherine Gwynn Education Reimbursement -$                              (1,909)$                             
Finance Catherine Gwynn Office Supplies 1,500$                         -$                                   
Finance Catherine Gwynn Consultant Fees -$                              (11,868)$                           
Finance Catherine Gwynn Vacation Pay Out 12,569$                       -$                                   
Finance Catherine Gwynn Printing 590$                             -$                                   
Finance Catherine Gwynn Equipment Expense 3,000$                         -$                                   
Finance Catherine Gwynn Office Machine Maintenance -$                              (1,020)$                             
Finance Catherine Gwynn Bank Fees -$                              (4,000)$                             
Finance Catherine Gwynn Mayor's Star Award 412$                             -$                                   
Finance Catherine Gwynn Cash Over/Short 1,272$                         -$                                   

Transfers - May 2024 - Finance 20,597$                       (20,597)$                           

Planning Kenny Talton Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              (1,100)$                             
Planning Kenny Talton Laptop Computer 1,100$                         -$                                   

Transfers - May 2024 - Planning 1,100$                         (1,100)$                             

PW Streets Rick Fletcher Travel -$                              (1,500)$                             
PW Streets Rick Fletcher Sidewalk Repairs 4,955$                         -$                                   
PW Streets Rick Fletcher Vehicle Fuel 1,402$                         -$                                   
PW Streets Rick Fletcher Street Repairs -$                              (3,455)$                             
PW Streets Rick Fletcher Vehicle Fuel-Internal Charges -$                              (1,402)$                             
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              (55,000)$                           
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Medical Exams 744$                             -$                                   
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Uniforms 1,324$                         -$                                   
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Recycling Fees -$                              (39,867)$                           
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Leaf Vacuum Loader -$                              (23,000)$                           
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Vehicle Fuel 10,456$                       -$                                   
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Trash Container Purchases -$                              (909)$                                 
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Part-Time 2,490$                         -$                                   

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY24_10.xlsx Transfers May 6/8/2024 2:17 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2023 through June, 2024

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Vacation Pay Out 1,850$                         -$                                   
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Electricity 361$                             -$                                   
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Mayor's Star Award 68$                               -$                                   
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Vehicle Fuel-Internal Charges -$                              (10,456)$                           
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Fence/Railings 57,400$                       -$                                   
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher 1/2 Ton Pick-Up W/Lift Gate 46,150$                       -$                                   
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Postage-Internal Charges only! 489$                             -$                                   
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Pressure Washer 7,900$                         -$                                   

Transfers - May 2024 - PW Streets 135,589$                     (135,589)$                         

Engineering Jonathan Perry Travel -$                              (475)$                                 
Engineering Jonathan Perry Subscriptions 475$                             -$                                   

Transfers - May 2024 - Engineering 475$                             (475)$                                 

Fire Ron Stempien Uniforms -$                              (5,000)$                             
Fire Ron Stempien Building Maintenance 5,000$                         -$                                   

Transfers - May 2024 - Fire 5,000$                         (5,000)$                             

Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              -$                                   
Police Mike West Medical Exams 2,032$                         -$                                   
Police Mike West Education Reimbursement -$                              (2,032)$                             

Transfers - May 2024 - 2,032$                         (2,032)$                             

Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Operational Supplies 10,000$                       -$                                   
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Equipment Expense -$                              (7,000)$                             
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Operational Supplies - Maint. -$                              (3,000)$                             

Transfers - May 2024 - Parks & Recreation 10,000$                       (10,000)$                           

Golf Felicia Brown Travel -$                              (430)$                                 
Golf Felicia Brown Contract Services 200$                             -$                                   
Golf Felicia Brown Tree Service -$                              (835)$                                 
Golf Felicia Brown Other Training -$                              (800)$                                 
Golf Felicia Brown Salaries & Wages Part-Time 11,865$                       -$                                   
Golf Felicia Brown Pro Shop Expense -$                              (10,000)$                           

Transfers - May 2024 - Golf 12,065$                       (12,065)$                           

Finance Fuel Inventory Catherine Gwynn Machine/Equipment Maintenance 15,000$                       -$                                   
Finance Fuel Inventory Catherine Gwynn Diesel Fuel -$                              (15,000)$                           

Transfers - May 2024 - Finance Fuel Inventory 15,000$                       (15,000)$                           

Stormwater Rick Fletcher Vehicle Fuel 1,900$                         -$                                   
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Vehicle Fuel-Internal Charges -$                              (1,900)$                             

Transfers - May 2024 - Stormwater 1,900$                         (1,900)$                             

Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Vehicle Fuel 1,680$                         -$                                   
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Vehicle Fuel-Internal Charges -$                              (1,680)$                             

Transfers - May 2024 - Distribution & Collections 1,680$                         (1,680)$                             

Water Treatment Bert Sherman Fees & Dues 500$                             -$                                   
Water Treatment Bert Sherman Chemicals -$                              (500)$                                 

Transfers - May 2024 - Water Treatment 500$                             (500)$                                 

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (1,500)$                             
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Protective Clothing 1,500$                         -$                                   

Budget Transfers Summary FY24_10.xlsx Transfers May 6/8/2024 2:17 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2023 through June, 2024

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Transfers - May 2024 - Water Reclamation 1,500$                         (1,500)$                             

Compost Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (1,800)$                             
Compost Bert Sherman Cleaning Supplies 400$                             -$                                   
Compost Bert Sherman Bank Fees 1,400$                         -$                                   

Transfers - May 2024 - Compost 1,800$                         (1,800)$                             

Downtown MSD Erin Fonseca Operational Supplies -$                              (580)$                                 
Downtown MSD Erin Fonseca Advertising 580$                             -$                                   

Transfers - May 2024 - Downtown MSD 580$                             (580)$                                 

Occupancy Tax Amanda Justice Travel -$                              (7,000)$                             
Occupancy Tax Amanda Justice Advertising 16,000$                       -$                                   
Occupancy Tax Amanda Justice Printing -$                              (9,000)$                             

Transfers - May 2024 - Occupancy Tax 16,000$                       (16,000)$                           
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - May 2024 508,636$                     (508,636)$                         
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul 2023-May 2024 1,358,126$                 (1,358,126)$                     

Budget Transfers Summary FY24_10.xlsx Transfers May 6/8/2024 2:17 PM



Red Font-Not formally accepted by Council at this time.

Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report -May 2024

Reviewed: cfg 6/8/2024 1:49 PM

Granting Agency Granting Agency (Full) Grant Description Source (Full) S Date Received
 Grant Portion 

Budget Amount  Budget Total x
 Current Amount 

Rec'd  
 Amount Rec'd  
Project to Date x2

 Current Amount 
Spent  

 Amount Spent to 
Project to Date 

x
3

 Positive 
(Negative) Cash 

Flow 
HUD CDBG FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F -$                       976$                      -$                       976$                      -$                       
HUD CDBG FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F 3,626$                   3,626$                   -$                       3,626$                   0$                          
HUD CDBG FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 19,523$                 19,523$                 182$                      19,705$                 -$                       19,705$                 (0)$                         
HUD CDBG FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 353,346$              353,346$              3,291$                   219,747$              -$                       219,747$              (0)$                         
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 351,643$              351,643$              7,632$                   178,281$              3,559$                   181,840$              (3,559)$                 
HUD CDBG FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 354,302$              354,302$              -$                       87,559$                 -$                       87,559$                 (0)$                         
HUD CDBG FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 358,697$              358,697$              -$                       25,149$                 -$                       25,149$                 -$                       
HUD CDBG FY23-24 Entitlement Federal F 26,347$                 26,347$                 -$                       25,371$                 976$                      
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2 & 3) Federal F 10/7/2020 427,303$              427,303$              246$                      134,038$              12$                        134,051$              (13)$                       
HUD HOME FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F 22,201$                 22,201$                 -$                       22,201$                 -$                       22,201$                 -$                       
HUD HOME FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F 73,557$                 73,557$                 10,000$                 77,480$                 -$                       77,995$                 (515)$                     
HUD HOME FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 22,910$                 22,910$                 -$                       22,910$                 -$                       22,910$                 -$                       
HUD HOME FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 214,732$              214,732$              4,129$                   53,683$                 -$                       53,683$                 -$                       
HUD HOME FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 245,547$              245,547$              21,089$                 49,561$                 4,786$                   54,346$                 (4,785)$                 
HUD HOME FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 252,710$              252,710$              26,410$                 59,002$                 -$                       59,002$                 (0)$                         
HUD HOME FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 280,171$              280,171$              -$                       27,467$                 -$                       27,467$                 (0)$                         
HUD HOME FY23-24 Entitlement Federal F 39,248$                 39,248$                 -$                       39,248$                 -$                       
HUD HOME ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) Federal F 907,913$              907,913$              6,929$                   43,365$                 177$                      43,542$                 (177)$                     

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Fire Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 4,050$                   4,050$                   -$                       8,186$                   54$                        977$                      7,209$                   
Debt Debt Funded Smeal Aerial Fire Truck Debt D 9/2022 1,151,600$           1,151,600$           -$                       1,151,600$           270$                      1,151,689$           (89)$                       
Debt Debt Funded Herman Park Center Debt D Not Issued yet 11,150,000$         11,150,000$         -$                       376,000$              -$                       376,000$              -$                       

Donation Private Donations 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Private P Ongoing 80,000$                 80,000$                 -$                       32,691$                 -$                       -$                       32,691$                 
Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19-FY24 Private P Ongoing 632,943$              632,943$              -$                       557,943$              -$                       251,072$              306,871$              

Debt Debt Funded 2018 Street Bonds (Debt #026-G) Debt D Ongoing 5,050,596$           5,050,596$           -$                       5,046,649$           -$                       5,048,522$           (1,873)$                 
Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 45,636$                 45,636$                 -$                       59,615$                 -$                       47,728$                 11,887$                 
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 18,252$                 18,252$                 -$                       34,181$                 -$                       32,515$                 1,666$                   

NC OSBM NC Office State Mgmt & Budget State Grants Misc-OSBM FY23 St Approp State S 2/2/2023 150,000$              150,000$              -$                       152,338$              10$                        87,514$                 64,824$                 
DOJ Dept. of Justice Federal Forfeiture Federal F Ongoing 274,138$              274,138$              -$                       311,638$              -$                       156,305$              155,333$              
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2023 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/26/2023 47,702$                 47,702$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 65,018$                 65,018$                 -$                       69,919$                 130$                      22,524$                 47,395$                 
FEMA FEMA Hurricane Florence Federal F 6/1/2019 2,340,773$           4,604,077$           -$                       4,982,838$           -$                       4,179,246$           803,592$              
FTA Federal Transportation Admin. FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Federal F 10/1/2018 6,751,751$           7,189,383$           -$                       7,385,809$           -$                       6,527,315$           858,494$              

SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Phase IV Sewer Rehab Federal F 11/26/2019 8,905,676$           9,083,790$           -$                       8,455,451$           -$                       8,519,172$           (63,721)$               
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Sewer Rehab (Big Ditch & Carolina) Federal F 3/24/2021 730,990$              730,990$              -$                       730,990$              -$                       730,990$              -$                       

DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA-D-VUR-0004 & AIA-W-VUR-000State S 1/24/2022 300,000$              304,500$              -$                       302,300$              -$                       302,300$              -$                       
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR MRF Project MRF-M-VUR-0001 State S 1/24/2022 100,000$              101,500$              -$                       1,500$                   3,590$                   99,080$                 (97,580)$               

City Fees Stormwater Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects City Fees C Ongoing 1,594,366$           1,594,366$           -$                       1,861,258$           23,381$                 1,498,635$           362,623$              
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Insta Federal F 6/6/2019 32,400$                 265,513$              -$                       233,113$              -$                       265,513$              (32,400)$               
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Federal F 8/18/2022 5,999,395$           6,029,395$           -$                       30,000$                 -$                       25,000$                 5,000$                   
City Fees None Lead and Copper Rule Revisions (LCRR) (EPA) Private C 10/2/2003 2,037,500$           2,037,500$           -$                       2,037,500$           530,565$              797,606$              1,239,894$           

Total 51,347,341$         54,495,503$         149,130$              34,911,863$         566,534$              31,218,121$         3,693,742$           

Prepared: tlw 6/5/2024 1:18 PM

INFLOWS OUTFLOWS

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Notes:
* DWI still reviewing 30+ Change Orders on Ph IV SRF.  Will authorize reimbursements after DWI has concluded the review process.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2024-05 May_1.xlsx Grants 2024-05 May 6/8/2024 1:49 PM



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
May 2024 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: June 3, 2024  
 

    

  The cause of fire incidents was determined 86% of the time. 14% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   
  

  The average response time of the first arriving unit was 4:43.   
  

  A full response within 8 minutes occurred for 96% of all calls.   
 

  24% of Inspection Violations were cleared within 90 days. 
  

  There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries and 0 Fire Service deaths.   
  

  The American Red Cross assisted 0 families due to displacement because of fire damage.   
 

   Fire prevention and community service activities included: Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 
County, Day in the Park, Smoke Alarm Installs, Station Tours, and Truck Displays. We reached 42 Adults 
and 41 Children with fire prevention materials.  
 

 

 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning.  

    
1  

2024 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 412 365 427 420 425        410 2049 

Structure Fires: 4 6 5 0 1        3 16 

EMS Calls: 236 202 249 243 217        229 1147 

Vehicle Accidents: 27 33 49 40 46        39 195 

Fire Alarms: 50 44 49 58 66        53 267 

Other: 95 80 75 79 95        86 434 

Training Hours: 3307 3887 2958 2815 2239        3041 15206 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 1 6 1 2 2        2 12 

Inspections: 131 150 169 157 150        151 757 

2023 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 277 222 229 262 263 277 389 415 376 420 409 475 334 4014 
Structure Fires: 2 3 7 4 4 4 4 4 7  4 8 4 5 55 

EMS Calls: 117 94 93 86 103 116 203 195 192 215 205 270 157 1889 
Vehicle Accidents: 31 26 28 36 42 27 31 39 42 45 41 37 35 425 

Fire Alarms: 42 38 33 55 45 58 67 73 61 68 54 73 50 599 

Other: 85 61 68 81 69 72 84 104 74 92 101 91 82 982 
Training Hours: 3118 2873 3074 2218 2063 1777 1707 1680 1593 1688 1507 1003 2025 24301 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 7 4 0 1 0 4 4 0 0 4 0 0 3 25 
Inspections: 115 116 155 149 110 88 105 130 156 93 167 133 126 1384 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
May 
Date Prepared:  June 7, 2024 
 
 
Human Resources  

• Implementation of  Lactation Policy 
• NC4Me Training 
• Reviewed & Submitted Clear Point Strategy 2023 Information 
• RFP Review & Reference Checks 
• OEWS Survey submission 
• Revised Safety Policy 
• NeoGov Training – “Stress Mgmt. at Work and Elsewhere”  
• Single Sign-On Integration  
• Terminated I-9 Audit 
• Scheduled NeoGov Perform Training 
• May Fire Extinguishers and Defibrillator inspections at City Hall. 
• Assisted with Drug testing for Parks and Recreation summer staff. 
• Department of Labor complaint at Old Train Station 
•  Investigation paperwork by Department of Labor paperwork completed  
• Planning for June’s Wellness grilling event 06/05/2024 
• Planning for Independence Day Celebration 07/03/2024 
• Preparing for New Hire Orientation 08/28/2024 
• Preparing to re-design Recruitment and Retention process 
• Preparing for Wellness Walk Initiative “Walk the City” 
• Preparing for ARC Blood Drives in September 
• Preparing for City vs. County blood drive January 2025 

 
Safety   

• May City Hall Fire and Defibrillator Inspections. 
• City Hall Safety Inspection 
• Department of Labor visit at Train Station Facility 
• Created a Safety Schedule of classes for Public Works till December. 
• Assisted with Drug screening for Parks and Recreation summer staff 
• Assisted with Workers Compensation claims while City Nurse was out of office 
• May 30 – NCFF planning meeting 
• Safety Inspection of the OLD Train Depot 
• Safety and ACCIDENT Review Meeting canceled due to no accidents 
• Claims with Gladfelter Insurance 
• Assisting with HR on an investigation. 
• Interviewing employees on an HR investigation 
• Staying on top of insurance claims daily. 
• Field Safety for private contractors 
• Field Safety with crews 
• Daily office duties 

 
 



2 

 
Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  There were 123 visits this month.  

 

 

Health Training Sessions: 
• Vital signs=10 
• 54 Annual Hearing Screens completed for Fire Department shifts May 23rd and 24th. “B” shift 

scheduled for June 14th 
• Random, Promotion, and New Hire Drug screens 
• FIT tests at WRF May 23rd and 28th (2 employees) 
• BBP training for new WRF employee- May 1st 

Meetings: 
• Employee Wednesday Wellness Walks led by City Nurse every Wednesday 12:00-1:00 around 

Center Street 
• American Red Cross blood drive at Public Works May 22nd (24 units collected) 

 
Other health-related information pertinent to employees include:  

• No reported COVID positive cases 
• 1 OSHA recordable WC injury 
• April Nurse Newsletter: “Thyroid Health Awareness” emailed and distributed to employees April 

16th 
• 4 employees began FMLA and 1 ended FMLA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DRUG SCREENS = 29 TOTAL 
New Hire CDL:  0 
New Hire non- CDL:  3 
Promotion CDL:  0 
Promotion non-CDL: 2 

Post-Accident DOT:  0 
Post-Accident Non- DOT:  0 

Instant Drug Screens:  22  
Random Safety Sensitive Drug Screen: 1 
Random Safety Sensitive Breath Alcohol Test: 0 

Random DOT Drug Screens:  1 
Random DOT Breath Alcohol Test: 1 



3 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

 
2024 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

432 422 422 429 432        427 

Employees –            
Part Time 

106 109 112 114 134 
 

       115 

Total Employees 538 531 534 543 566        542 
Male  413 407 408 413 422        413 
Female 125 124 126 130 144        130 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

339 319 319 326 334        327 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

182 181 184 186 196        186 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

17 18 18 18 21        18 
 

Ethnicity – Asian 4 4 4 4 4        4 
Ethnicity – Other 8 9 9 9 11         9 
Vacancies  32 32 31 33 31         32 
Applications 240 289 303 502 381        343 

Applicant Notices 97 216 179 168 352        202 
New Hires  1 2 1 2 12        4 
Promotions 1 5 1 1 1        2 
Resignations 5 5 2 7 5        5 
Retirements  3 0 0 0 1        1 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2 2 1 1 0         1 

Turnover Rate  2.3% 1.7% .01% 1.9% 1.4%        1.5% 
Vehicle Accidents 2 2 1 1 0        1 

Workers’ Comp 2 4 1 1 3          2 
Covid Related 9 2 1 0 0          2 

Telework 14 14 14 14 14        14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



4 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

428 430 428 426 427 431 432 425 423 420 425 438 428 

Employees –            
Part Time 

92 89 91 94 110 121 125 126 123 121 121 108 110 

Total Employees 520 519 519 520 538 552 557 551 546 541 546 546 538 
Male  402 402 400 399 412 419 422 421 416 411 415 420 412 
Female 118 117 119 121 126 133 135 130 130 130 131 126 126 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

317 318 318 318 325 331 332 340 337 
 

328 331 332 327 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

179 173 172 175 183 188 193 182 180 183 185 185 182 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

15 16 16 16 19 21 20 18 18 18 18 17 18 

Ethnicity – Asian 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 3 
Ethnicity – Other 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 8 8 8 8 8 8 
Vacancies  39 45 41 41 37 37 38 38 38 32 29 26 37 
Applications 137 389 354 320 185 138 363 538 339 311 217 135 286 

Applicant Notices 43 90 218 173 63 127 185 341 95 426 218 32 168 
New Hires  10 4 8 1 12 4 12 3 7 1 7 18 7 
Promotions 0 0 0 0 10 1 3 7 2 2 6 0 3 
Resignations 3 8 4 4 5 6 6 8 7 1 2 2 5 
Retirements  1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

1 0 0 0 0 2 1 
 

2 1 1 1 0  1 

Turnover Rate  1.2% 2.1% 1.2% 1.2% 1.2% 1.9% 1.4% 2.4% 2.4% .05% .01% .01% 1.3% 
Vehicle Accidents 3 3 2 2 4 1 3 2 0 6 5 5 3 

Workers’ Comp 0 2 3 2 5 2 8 2 4 2 2 0 3 
Covid Related 13 3 3 0 0 0 1 2 3 3 2 1   3 

Telework 13 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 
 

 

Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
May 2024 
Prepared By: Angela Price 
Date Prepared: June 5, 2024 
 

• Repaired fiber issue for one facility. 
• Resolved Wi-Fi issue downtown. 
• Updated video servers for security cameras. 
• Completed copier replacements for two facilities. 
• Completed adjustments after ArcGIS Domain Migration. 
• Recruiting for two vacant positions.  
• Security system & camera training for one staff member. 
• Updated Garage software. 
• Completed site prep, data connections, and programming for WRF gate project. 
• Network training for one staff member. 
• Setup for video/slide show at Union Station tours. 
• Upgraded security certificates for servers. 
• Updated Finance software. 
• Completed PCI Compliance scans. 
• Completed setup for wireless in Freedom Field. 
• Completed setup for ArcGIS Monitor. 
• IT staff attended training class. 
• Updated Wireless Controller. 
• Upgraded converged infrastructure. 
• Upgraded mobile device management software. 
• Updated Engineering and Public Works iPads. 
• Five staff attended NCLGISA Spring Conference. 
• Updated traffic ticketing notes. 
• Updated Security Certificates. 
• Updated ArcGIS Web Adapter. 
• Updated Mobile Device Management software. 
• Restored communications with a pump station. 
• Updated PCs for SCADA System. 
• Set up a kiosk for paying parking tickets at Public Safety. 
• Trained GPD staff on processing parking tickets.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
2024 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

801 817 708 965 592        777 3883 

Tickets 
Closed 

819 838 714 963 580        783 3914 

Open  
Tickets 

329 412 306 351 359        351  

 
 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

825 719 842 692 730 689 710 722 694 847 676 585 728 8,731 

Tickets 
Closed 

776 840 805 694 694 778 746 701 693 769 696 576 731 8,770 

Open  
Tickets 

433 312 349 347 383 294 258 279 280 358 338 347 332  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
May 2024 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 06/05/24 
 
The valuation of all permits issued (Residential, Commercial, & Miscellaneous) for May totaled $10,304,619. New 
Residential permits are included in this valuation. Significant projects this month: Walmart remodel at 2908 US 70 
Hwy West at $2.5M and 6 new single-family dwellings at $1.1M. 
 
The valuation of all buildings (Residential & Commercial) permits totaled $7,742,224. Miscellaneous permits 
(plumbing, mechanical, electrical, fire, etc.) are not included. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $48,227.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $4,350 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $3,350. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled 1,000. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 735 inspections for the month.  During the month of May, twelve (12) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 337 permits were issued for the month.    Forty-five (45) plan reviews were 
completed for May. 
 
 
 

 
 

2024 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $21.3 $7.5 $5.7 $17.5 $10.3 $12.5
All Bldgs Valu. $ (M) $11.4 $3.8 $2.5 $11.7 $7.7 $7.4
New Residential $ (M) $3.0 $898K $624K $870K $1.1 $1.3
Misc $ (M) $10.0 $3.6 $3.2 $5.8 $2.6 $5.0
Permit Fee $ (K) $53 $65 $38 $43 $48 $49
Inspections 798 741 918 738 735 786
Permits Issued 361 295 301 383 337 335
Plan Reviews 68 68 45 24 45 50

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.7 $43.8 $23.8 $9.2 $10.4 $7.6 $36.5 $59.7 $11.8 $19.5 $20.3 $27.6 $23.2
All Bldgs Valu. $ (M) $3.5 $42.1 $6.3 $5.0 $6.7 $5.3 $25.8 $48.6 $7.7 $16.1 $14.4 $15.7 $16.4
New Residential $ (M) $1.5 $652K $2.8 $2.6 $4.1 $2.9 $4.3 $3.5 $1.4 $3.5 $2.8 $85K $2.5
Misc $ (M) $4.2 $1.7 $17.5 $4.2 $3.7 $2.3 $10.7 $11.2 $4.2 $3.4 $5.9 $11.8 $6.7
Permit Fee $ (K) $31 $40 $65 $39 $50 $35 $61 $81 $53 $98 $49 $74 $56
Inspections 511 517 626 542 717 781 709 747 827 887 780 676 693
Permits Issued 287 413 347 414 333 348 359 463 366 364 354 316 364
Plan Reviews 49 35 49 53 83 58 75 74 107 110 66 77 70



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT 
May 2024 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 6/10/2024 

 
 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 
 

• May activity included 23 rental/use days, including 22 public performances. 
o Notable Activity: 

 Zeta Phi Beta Sorority 
 Tippy Toes Recital 
 Arts Co. Recital 
 Goldsboro Bellet Recital 
 A Step of Class Recital 
 Wayne Country Day Graduation 
 Robin Webster Recital 

 
• May cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 0 days, 0 public performances. 
• On target to be under budget in expenses, over projections in revenue for fiscal year ’24. 
• Repairs, Maintenance, Issues:  

 All Maintenance, Inspections, Licensing, and Service complete and up to date 
 Wheelchair lift replacement requested in 2025 budget, not yet approved. 
 HVAC controls upgrade requested in 2025 budget, not yet approved. 

 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

 

Expenses: $64,071:   Labor: $44,447 / Operations: $11,942 /Artist and Renter box office Payout: $7682 
  

Revenues: $38,650:    Tickets: $22,061 / Building Rentals: $15,186 / Concession: $1403  
 

  
 
      

 

Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 FY 24 Total Average

Exp $25,165 $64,018 $37,664 $62,732 $102,055 $124,902 $48,590 $77,450 $151,532 $62,388 $64,071 $820,567 $74,597

Rev $15,366 $13,492 $19,419 $31,322 $67,792 $98,965 $43,947 $71,743 $52,220 $53,068 $38,650 $505,984 $45,999

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 FY 23 Total Average

Exp $47,039 $34,677 $52,943 $64,232 $38,325 $149,481 $63,274 $46,490 $66,591 $75,399 $100,423 $110,336 $849,210 $70,768

Rev -$867 $9,685 $27,448 $27,531 $54,098 $99,030 $49,176 $12,457 $67,200 $47,572 $77,666 $71,398 $542,394 $45,200



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation/Golf Course/Goldsboro Event Center 
May Monthly Report  
Prepared By: Russell Stephens  
Date Prepared – 6/5/2024. 

 
 

• Mahogany Tennis Tournament (80 participants)              
 

• Youth Spring Sports season ongoing (Soccer, T-Ball, Coach Pitch and Baseball)  
 

• Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) hosted seven (17) events during – 2210 guests and (8) City of Goldsboro 
events – 600 guests.  
 

• GEC turn away 17= potential revenue not gained due to previous booking.  
 

•  2,343 rounds of Golf This Month  
 

• Dillard Class of 1968 Golf Tournament 
 

• 5/6 Council Tournament 5/23 92 PPL  
 

• Day In The Park/ Specialized Recreation – 527participants 
 

• Senior Games concluded - 289 participants/Holly Grove Farms Trip  
 

• Senior Card Group Play at T.C. Coley Community Center – 99 participants. 
 

• Line Dancing is held on Mondays and Thursdays at T.C. Coley Community Center – 149 participants. 
 

• Neighborhood watch meetings continue to be held at TC Coley Community Center 
 

• Youth Karate Program at WA Foster Center in May met 2 dates – 57 participants.  
 

• Attendance in our Youth and Adult Game Rooms at WA Foster Center – 245 visitors  
 

• Gym Open Play at WA Foster Center for Adults and Youth during March –650 participants  
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily. 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff, and Seasonal staff. 

 
 



 

 

2024 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN 
J
U
L 

A
U
G 

S
E
P 

O
C
T 

N
O
V 

D
E
C 

AVG 

Goldsboro Event Center                         
Rental Revenue $6,484 $26,818  $10,194 $15,938  $19,325               $15,751 
Facility Usage 1488 1788  2,072  1850  2210               1483 
Expenditures $14,632 $34,260  $19,026  $12,484  $18,058               $19,692 
                            
WA Foster Recreation Center                         
Program Revenue $710 $380  $570  $490  $430               $516 
Rental Revenue $425 $1,050  $1,190  $1,475  $3,462               $1520 
Facility Usage 3368 2166  2305  2383  2,708               2,586 
Expenditures $14,075 $14,460  $14,225  $14,470  14,980               $14,442 
T.C. Coley Community Center                         
Program Revenue $1,742 $1,271  $787  $433   $586               $963 
Rental Revenue $570 $1,150  $835  $530  $490               $715 
Facility Usage 343 750  537  542  407               515 
Expenditures $5,662 $5,866  $5,780  $5,905 $5,205               $5,683 
                            
Specialized Recreation                         
Program Revenue $0 $0  $0  $0  $0               $0 
Rental Revenue $0 $0  $0  $0  $0               $0 
Facility Usage 168 144  126  138  527               220 
Expenditures $2,364 $2,952 $3,298  $3,116  $5,160               $3,374 
Senior Programs & Pools                         
Program Revenue $0 $0  $125  $0  $50.00               $35 
Rental Revenue $0 $0  $0  $0 $0               $0 
Facility Usage 113 170  211  142  289               693 
Expenditures $2,475 $2,594 $ 3,685  $3,980  $4,140               $3,374 
                            
Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                      
Program Revenue $14,100 $15,090  $19,807  $60  $6,500               $11,111 
Rental Revenue $0 $0  $1,325  $0  $375               $340 
Facility Usage 36,489 37,080  37,195  39,417  41,484               38,333 
Expenditures $16,198 $16,363  $16,420  $16,865 $17,676               $16,704 
                            
Golf Course                         
Revenues $36,586 $53,758  $62,463  $80,212  $81,257               $62,855 
Expenditures $48,038 $52,214  $52,886  $47,582  $78,744               $55,892 
Rounds of Golf 938 1487  1493  2,675  2343               1,787 
Net -$11,452 $1,544  $9,577  $32,629   $2,512               $6,962 
                            
Special Events                         
Revenues / 
Sponsorships $0 $2,430  $0  $0  $1,650               $816 

Participation 0 454  1,606   1,094  110               652 
Expenditures $0 $4,080  $536  $760  $1,700               $1,415 
                            
TOTAL REVENUE $60,617 $101,947  $97,296  $99,138  $109,798               $93,759 
TOTAL EXPENSES $103,444 $132,789 $115,856  105,162  $145,663               $120,582 
TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $468,796          

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $602,914           

 



 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Goldsboro Event Center                          

Rental Revenue $21,154 $17,487 $22,241 $18,705 $11,441 $11,359  $12,152 $30,435 $9,465 $9,609  $13,162
  $18,076  $16,274 

Facility Usage 1250 1975 1802 3225 2065   2165  2016 2536  1921  1315  1400   1985 1971 

Expenditures $6,742 $8,122 $7,537 $6,475 $13,627 $17,384  $8,527  $9,749 $14,049  $22,354
  $65,822  $23,045 $16,953 

                            
W. A. Foster Recreation Center                         
Program Revenue $2,860 $2,977 $2,195 $1,170 $1,165 $14,570   $825 $230 $1,210  $1,180  $630 $520 $2,461 

Rental Revenue $948 $1,827 $2,918 $1,088  $625 $308   $2,195 $603  $1,085 $1,695  $1,013  $238 $1,212 

Facility Usage 2633 1632 2022 2651  2983 1546   2077 1942 2013  2935  2650 1834 2243 

Expenditures $6,989 $12,076 $12,603 $11,993  $8,585 $26,741  $19,668 $17,541 $10,287 $10,179 $10,033 $9,940  $13,053 

                            
T. C. Coley Community Center                         
Program Revenue $497 $1,130 $539 $280  $250 $167  $211 $237 $200  $164 $117  $220  $334 

Rental Revenue $1,890 $720 $450 $450  $450 $1,015 $1,015 $80 $490 $710 $550  $450  $689 

Facility Usage 197 73 170 193  210 154   177 197   175 314  218  199 190 

Expenditures  $1,874 $1,379 $2,203 $3,934  $6,644 $14,466  $6,706 $9,164  $6,005  $6,258 $5,127 $6,166  $5,827 

                            
Specialized Recreation                         
Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $36   $18 $0  $0 $0 $124 $0  $15 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $0  $0 $0   $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Facility Usage 190 182 98 98  45  74  166 184   134 373 126   94 147 

Expenditures $7,618 $8,447 $6,350 $6,729  $7,462 $11,736  $8,627  $5,612  $4,477  $5,627  $2,856 $4,180  $6,643 

Senior Programs & Pools                         
Program Revenue $0 $185 $0 $140  $11 $4,082 $8,749  $3,408 $930 $0 $455  $595  $1,546 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $400  $875  $700 $774 $0 $0 $0 $229 

Facility Usage 166 251 295 210  212 2383 2720  2025  175 164  158 142  742 

Expenditures $3,749 $5,489 $4,688 $3,818  $5,927 $20,543 $21,611  $15,760  $5,088 $1,245 $3,103  $3,057 $7,777 

Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                      
Program Revenue $65 $32,120 $23,050 $1,142 $5,780  $2,565  $45 $25,540  $1,605  $5,000 $9,920  $4,520  $9,729 

Rental Revenue $6,136 $0 $85 $0  $900 $0  $0  $1,950  $450 $350 $0 $300 $848 

Facility Usage 17550 19750 21900 22350  36285 21222  14380   15290 20025  25168 31089 32789  23150 

Expenditures $4,917 $9,557 $10,461 $10,886 $10,456 $33,132 $7,678  $14,900 $12,629 $64,318 $18,436
  $14,576  $17,662 

                            
Golf Course                         

Revenues $37,930 $32,709 $55,850 $48,454 $56,560  $73,812  $61,821  $63,590 $57,788  $52,418
  

$41,483
  $38,898  $51,776 

Expenditures $63,976 $35,563 $52,218 $36,482 $53,315 $60,208 $31,528 $83,528  $46,397 $56,788 $315,95
3  $67,229 $75,265 

Rounds of Golf 1200 1592 2788 1941  2309  2120 2110  2076  2153   1825 1227   1079 1868 

Net -$26,046 -$2,854 $3,632 $11,972 $3,245  $13,603 $30,293  -$19,938  $11,391  -$4,370 $274,470 $28,331  -$23,489 

                            
Special Events                         
Revenues / 
Sponsorships 

$0 $2,000 $0 $0  $1,600 $1,730 $1,659  $0 $0  $285 $0  $0  $606 

Participation 0 200 70 152  160 101   101  0 0 42  55  7500 698 

Expenditures $18 $911 $511 $94  $3,170 $2,194 $1,551   $0 $0  $1,443 $2,151  $1,649  $1,141 

                            
TOTAL REVENUE $71,480 $91,155 $107,328 $71,429 $78,782  $110,044  $89,565 $126,773 $73,997 $71,411 $67,454

  $63,817  $85,270 

TOTAL EXPENSES $95,883 $81,544 $96,571 $80,411 $109,186 $186,404  $105896 $156,254 $98,932 $168212 $423481
  $129842  $144,385 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $1,023,235          

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $1,732,616           

 



General Tasks

2024 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 4 1 3 3 3 14 3
Subdivison 3 2 1 1 1 8 2

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 3 0 1 2 1 7 1

Special Use 1 4 3 5 2 15 3
Annexation 1 0 1 3 1 6 1

Home Occupation 1 1 0 1 0 3 1
Historic District Commission

Commission Review 2 1 1 3 1 8 2
Staff Review 2 0 0 0 0 2 0

UDO Violations
Notice of Violations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Violations with Payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Notice of Violations (Require 
Lot Cut) 0 0 2 440 442 111

Notice of Violations
(Total NOV's Issued) 8 13 28 325 440 814 163

Grass Cutting 
Payments to Contractor $0.00 $805.00 $655.00 $1,335.00 $1,905 $4,700.00 $940.00

Unsightly Lot
Payments to Contractor 0 0

Tagged Vehicles 3 6 9 18 9 45 9

Illegal Signs Removed
56 90 123 339 322 930 186

Bags of Litter Picked Up
128 93 79 188 311 799 160

Code Enforcement 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
MONTHLY REPORT – May 2024

Prepared by:  Nya Watson

Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and residential building and sign permits.   Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings and has overseen 
contracted projects for the ADA Transition Plan, a marketing contract for GWTA and landscaping maintenance for Welcome to Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas. Staff 

continues compliance with the NCGS Legislative 160D updates. On-going projects include tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-related documents and 
preparation of case reports.

Planning Dept.



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
May 2024 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  June 4, 2024  
 
Total Part I Crimes (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle 
Theft, and Arson) for May 2023 was 226, compared to 226 for May 2024. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $360,235 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $146,246 was recovered and property damaged was $27,354. 
 
Officers arrested 103 people and issued 320 citations during the month. There were 9 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There were 5 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2024 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  

OFFENSE 
Homicide 1 0 0 3 1        5  
Rape 3       0   0  1 1                      5  
Robbery 3 2    6  1 0         12  
Aggravated Assault 21 15 20 13 21        90  
Breaking & Entering 22 38  23  21 33                137  
Larceny 159 96     145    114 156            670  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10  6 13  8 14               51  
Arson 0 0 2  0  0            2  
TOTALS 219 157 209  161  226             972  

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  
OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 1 2 2 0 0 0 0  3  0  2 10  
Rape 0 2 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 8  
Robbery 2 1 4 1 5 4 2 6 4 4 6 9 48  
Aggravated Assault     15 17 26 16 20 17 23 23 22 22 28 17 246  
Breaking & Entering 22 16 12 18 29 24 30 28 27 25 39 30 300  
Larceny 112 88 110 114 160 148 135 162 131 153 137 142 1592  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10 10 16 12 9 9 23 22 16 16 16 13 172  
Arson 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 1 2 0 6  

TOTALS 161 134 170 165 226 202 213 241 202 224 230 214 2382  

 

 
Revenue collected for May 2024 included:    

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

  686.00  
 Fingerprints   $      20.00  
 Special Events                                                                                 $ 200.00  
             Total     $   906.00   
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
May 2024 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: June 7, 2024 
 

Water Treatment Plant 
• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. Currently at 42% capacity. 
• Capital Projects: Replacements of the ATSs at the WTP and at the NRPS. Replace flow meters at the WTP. 
• The Water Treatment Plant is fully staffed and certified. 
• The intake structure screen at the Neuse River has damage to it and needs to be replaced. Staff are in the 

process of contracting with engineering service (Hazen and Sawyer for design, permitting, and putting this 
repair and dredging out for bid. 

 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing well. The average daily flow for 

April is 8.11-MGD. The yearly average flow for the WRF is 8.75-MGD. This puts the WRF at 62% capacity. 
• All the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. No major issues to report. 
• Capital projects: Generator at Westbrook L/S and Upgrade of the Public Utilities Telemetry System. 
• WRF is fully staffed, and 3 poisons are seeking certification. 
• Ash St. Lift Station upgrade with MOPCO is in service. River Bend Lift Station construction has started. The 

River Bend lift station will replace Big and Little Cherry lift stations. 
 

Compost Facility 
• Five hundred and forty-two cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in May 2024. 
• 2 Compost operators with no Class B driver’s license, but the Compost Facility is fully staffed. 
• Capital Project: Construction of Bay 8 enclosure contract has been awarded. 
• The engine for the wood grinder has malfunction and needs to be replaced. Staff have obtained the 

contract and PO. The engine has been ordered shipping of the engine should be here the beginning of June. 
 

Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average daily flows for each 
month. 
 

2024 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.95 5.88 5.84 5.97 6.05        5.94 
Sewer** 10.63 8.17 8.91 7.91 8.11        8.75 

Compost 161 866 970 1156 542        739 
*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 

2023 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.82 5.80 6.32 5.35 5.58 6.76 6.29 6.30 6.04 6.10 5.96 5.69 6.00 

Sewer** 7.23 9.94 7.81 9.94 8.64 7.87 9.69 8.82 9.76 7.27 7.33 9.59 8.66 
Compost 163 358 835 1509 888 866 822 845 226 1432 659 367 748 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 
 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
17.5 8.5 18.7 16.9 62.4 24.8
1.8 2.4 1.1 1.8 2.7 2.0
52 25 18 22 22 27.8
21 16 13 20 19 17.8
1 3 1 2 3 2.0
5 5 1 7 5 4.6

33 37 29 30 13 28.4
0 0 0 20 21 8.2
15 10 35 25 10 19.0

248 255 235 207 248 238.6

1.11 1.03 1.02 1.18 1.25 1.119
19 15 16 0 0 10.0
0.8 0.8 0.5 0.5 0.7 0.662

Cemetery Funerals 6 2 3 1 6 3.6

2 15 51 40 14 24.4
73 62 100 188 74 99.4

270.4 300 310 356.1 369.9 321.3
0.35 8.30 4.03 8.46 0.77 4.4
0.00 0.00 0.00 5.08 7.81 2.6
6 4 4 7 2 4.6

10.7 17.6 11.3 9.8 19.0 20.0 24.5 20.7 16.4 19.2 23.1 7.4 16.6
1.6 5.2 3 3.3 4.6 3.7 2.5 3.4 2.0 1.1 1 1 2.7
30 22 23 24 31 16 21 23 17 29 36 24 24.7
12 12 18 16 24 10 17 24 11 13 17 18 16.0
12 3 5 3 2 3 5 1 1 3 4 3 3.8
3 5 8 5 4 8 6 4 7 6 4 3 5.3

49 61 63 33 44 39 39 28 42 27 45 28 41.5
0 0 0 61 91 82 97 104 51 10 0 0 41.3
0 15 69 75 276 102 67 103 166 60 20 0 79.4

249 207 265 245 279 213 228 232 228 230 184 147 225.6
79$       74$       76$       75$       86$       77$       87$       92$       79$       74$       53$       61$       76.1

1.08 0.91 1.10 0.98 1.08 1.03 1.11 1.14 1.04 1.07 1.00 1.10 1.1
0 38 0 37 71 56 39 13 23 0 29 40 28.9
0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.7

5 4 5 5 4 0 1 1 3 5 0 6 3.3

9 8 23 17 32 20 15 25 11 5 4 0 14.1
70 65 105 145 113 110 88 40 34 153 92 195 100.8
49.7 102 170.8 130.2 190 196.5 229.2 275.9 277 300 254.6 208.4 198.7
4.05 2.07 2.16 2.43 0.00 0.40 0.38 1.95 1.29 4.1 1.43 0.4 1.7
0.00 2.85 0.00 0.00 50.48 7.91 3.68 11.80 18.41 15.56 25.16 0.00 11.3
1 3 1 7 4 0 3 1 1 3 3 3 2.5

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

2024

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Total Work Orders

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Public Works Department
May 2024
Prepared by:  Jamie Stanley
Date Prepared:  07 June 2024

2023

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage

Buildings & Grounds: Buildings & Grounds:   Mowed 10 vacant lots and street ROWs.  Supported 3 Center St. Jams, Foodie 
Friday, Three Eagles Beer and Wine Festival and setup/remove stage for Goldsboro High Graduation.

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 20 after hour calls--total of 30.5 hours. Completed 95 work orders.

Streets & Stormwater: Repaired 74 potholes, 6 trees in roadway, 97 sq. yds. concrete sidewalk.   7,810 LF of small 
ditches cleaned, Swept 369 curb miles, Jet Rod 150 LF storm pipe, cleaned 4 Manholes and 2 Catch Basins, 8 Hours of 
Call Duty. Repaired 2 storm water cave ins, Virginia Steet stormdrain project at 70% complete.



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
May 2024 
Prepared by: Amanda Justice, Candace Clarkson and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared: 6/04/2024 
 

• Total hotel revenue generated in April was $2,346,799 which is down -3.3% YOY. May 

revenue has not been yet released. 

• Organic traffic increased 97% year over year and site visibility climbed 9%. Organic sessions 

increased 27% in April compared to the previous month. "things to do in goldsboro nc" 

increased 1 position to #1. May numbers not yet available. 

• SJAFB Tour attendees - 31 

• National Travel and Tourism week activities – Proclamation by the City, I-95N Travel Day  

• Attended Foodie Friday at the Hub – 5/3/24 

• Amanda met with IT at new office location to review IT needs 

• Monthly GTC/TDA Meeting 

 

 

 

  
City Occupancy Tax Collections 

May Figures Have Not Been Released 

 
 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2023-24 $90,771 96,122 $82,030 $83,980 $88,871 $64,393 $92,315 $69,845 $72,017 $78,978    $83,835 

2022-23 $77,698 $88,942 $92,884 $105,264 $98,050 $90,136 $70,276 $64,615 $81,123 $88,849 $86,324 $100,0

 

$1,044,224 $87,018 

               

              

               

               
 
 



W







 



City of Goldsboro
Final Revisions Manager Reconmmended to Proposed Adopted FY25 Budget

General Fund Expenditures MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24 Totals
Total General Fund Expenditures 55,931,496.18$        55,931,496.18$        

Cut Health Insurance increase from 10% to 4% (215,360.00)$    (215,360.00)$           
Savings 2 Months - New CD Position Sal & Ben (10,138.88)$      (10,138.88)$             
Savings 3 Months -  New Minimum Housing Position Sal & Ben (12,046.30)$      (12,046.30)$             
Cut Capital Not Financed (55,000.00)$      (55,000.00)$             
Add - Equipment Storage Shed at Cemetery 42,000.00$        42,000.00$               
Reduce CMO - Consultant Fees (5,000.00)$         (5,000.00)$                
Reduce CMO - Dues & Subscriptions memberships (800.00)$            (800.00)$                   
Reduce DD - flags for Walnut & Carolina (8,000.00)$         (8,000.00)$                
Increase DD - missed recurring building maintenance 750.00$             750.00$                    

Employee $400 Net Bonus (NOT included in Manager's Recommended) 270,104.38$         270,104.38$             
NPO Funding (United Way) - Cut 50% (45,000.00)$          (45,000.00)$             
NPO Funding (United Way) - Cut 50% (5,000.00)$            (5,000.00)$                
Comprehensive Land Use Plan (Planning) - Cut 50% (87,500.00)$          (87,500.00)$             
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) - Add Funding $75K 75,000.00$           75,000.00$               
Friends of Seymour (Council) - Cut to $8,500 (7,625.00)$            (7,625.00)$                
Wayne Co Chamber of Commerce - Add Funding @ $15K 15,000.00$           15,000.00$               
Reimbursed by HUD Grant Funding CD Position (71,538.83)$          (71,538.83)$             

Reduce Operational Supplies (Council) (5,000.00)$            (5,000.00)$                
Reduce Clothing Allowance (Council) (1,076.50)$            (1,076.50)$                
Reduce Consultant Services (Appraisals) (City Manager) (5,000.00)$            (5,000.00)$                
Reduce Clothing Allowance (City Manager) (375.93)$               (375.93)$                   
Reduce for Health Insurance 4% to 0% increase (382,600.00)$        (382,600.00)$           
Reduce Property Tax Collection Fees (17,279.00)$          (17,279.00)$             
Reduce Property Tax Collection Fees NCVTS (5,844.00)$            (5,844.00)$                
Transfer to General Fund Capital Reserve 1,000.00$              1,000.00$                 
Totals - General Fund Expenditures 55,931,496.18$        (263,595.18)$    143,440.55$         (416,175.43)$        55,395,166.12$        

General Fund Revenues MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24
Total General Fund Revenues 32,030,303.18$        32,030,303.18$        

Property Tax Revenue 20,597,452.00$        (1,287,341.00)$     19,310,111.00$        
Property Tax Revenue NCVTS 2,200,000.00$          (137,500.00)$        2,062,500.00$          
Fund Balance Appropriated 1,103,741.00$          846,510.94$         1,950,251.94$          
Fund Balance Reserved - Cemetery Care Reserve 42,000.00$        42,000.00$               
Totals - General Fund Revenues 55,931,496.18$        42,000.00$        846,510.94$         (1,424,841.00)$     55,395,166.12$        
Net (Deficit)/Surplus -$                          305,595.18$      703,070.39$         (1,008,665.57)$     -$                          

GENERAL FUND

Fund Totals FY25 (Summary)_24 2024-06-16.xlsx Final Revisions Adopt 6-16 Prt 6/16/2024 9:14 PM



City of Goldsboro
Final Revisions Manager Reconmmended to Proposed Adopted FY25 Budget

General Fund Capital Reserve Fund MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24 Totals
Total General Fund Capital Reserve Fund Expenditures 1,000.00$                 1,000.00$                 
Contingency -$                          -$                          
Totals - General Fund Capital Reserve Fund Expenditures 1,000.00$                 -$                   -$                      -$                       1,000.00$                 

General Fund Capital Reserve Fund Revenues MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24
Total General Fund Capital Reserve Fund Revenues 1,000.00$                 1,000.00$                 
Fund Balance Appropriated -$                          -$                          
Totals - General Fund Capital Reserve Fund Revenues 1,000.00$                 -$                   -$                      -$                       1,000.00$                 
Net (Deficit)/Surplus -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          

Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24 Totals
Total Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund Expenditures 53,105.24$               53,105.24$               
Contingency -$                          -$                          
Totals - Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund Expenditures 53,105.24$               -$                   -$                      -$                       53,105.24$               

Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund Revenues MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24
Total Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund Revenues 53,105.24$               53,105.24$               
Fund Balance Appropriated -$                          -$                          
Totals - Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund Revenues 53,105.24$               -$                   -$                      -$                       53,105.24$               
Net (Deficit)/Surplus -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          

Stormwater Fund MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24 Totals
Total Stormwater Fund Expenditures 1,697,831.00$          1,697,831.00$          

Cut Health Insurance increase from 10% to 4% (5,808.00)$         (5,808.00)$                
Employee $400 Net Bonus (NOT included in Manager's Recommended) 7,237.88$             7,237.88$                 
Reduce for Health Insurance 4% to 0% increase (11,220.00)$          (11,220.00)$             
Contingency -$                          9,790.12$              9,790.12$                 
Totals - Stormwater Fund Expenditures 1,697,831.00$          (5,808.00)$         7,237.88$             (1,429.88)$            1,697,831.00$          

Stormwater Fund Revenues MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24
Total Stormwater Fund Revenues 1,697,831.00$          1,697,831.00$          

Fund Balance Appropriated -$                          -$                          
Totals - Stormwater Fund Revenues 1,697,831.00$          -$                   -$                      -$                       1,697,831.00$          
Net (Deficit)/Surplus -$                          5,808.00$          (7,237.88)$            1,429.88$              -$                          

GENERAL FUND CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND

STORMWATER FUND

Fund Totals FY25 (Summary)_24 2024-06-16.xlsx Final Revisions Adopt 6-16 Prt 6/16/2024 9:14 PM



City of Goldsboro
Final Revisions Manager Reconmmended to Proposed Adopted FY25 Budget

Utility Fund MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24 Totals
Total Utility Fund Expenditures 25,698,254.00$        25,698,254.00$        

Cut Health Insurance increase from 10% to 4% (35,904.00)$      (35,904.00)$             
Employee $400 Net Bonus (NOT included in Manager's Recommended) 44,743.26$           44,743.26$               
Reduce for Health Insurance 4% to 0% increase (63,360.00)$          (63,360.00)$             
Contingency -$                          -$                          
Totals - Utility Fund Expenditures 25,698,254.00$        (35,904.00)$      44,743.26$           (63,360.00)$          25,643,733.26$        

Utility Fund Revenues MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24
Total Utility Fund Revenues 25,139,789.00$        25,139,789.00$        

Fund Balance Appropriated 558,465.00$             (54,520.74)$          503,944.26$             
Totals - Utility Fund Revenues 25,698,254.00$        -$                   -$                      (54,520.74)$          25,643,733.26$        
Net (Deficit)/Surplus -$                          35,904.00$        (44,743.26)$          8,839.26$              -$                          

Utility Capital Reserve Fund MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24 Totals
Total Utility Capital Reserve Fund Expenditures -$                          -$                          
Contingency -$                          -$                          
Totals - Utility Capital Reserve Expenditures -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          

Master Bal. Sheet -$                          
Difference -$                          

Utility Capital Reserve Fund Revenues MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24
Total Utility Capital Reserve Fund Revenues -$                          -$                          
Fund Balance Appropriated -$                          -$                          
Totals - Utility Capital Reserve Fund Revenues -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          
Net (Deficit)/Surplus -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          

System Development Fees Capital Reserve Fund MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24 Totals
Total System Development Fees Capital Reserve Fund Expenditures 280,000.00$             280,000.00$             
Contingency -$                          -$                          
Totals - System Development Fees Capital Reserve Expenditures 280,000.00$             -$                   -$                      -$                       280,000.00$             

System Development Fees Capital Reserve Fund Revenues MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24
Total System Development Fees Capital Reserve Fund Revenues 280,000.00$             280,000.00$             
Fund Balance Appropriated -$                          -$                          
Totals - System Development Fees Capital Reserve Fund Revenues 280,000.00$             -$                   -$                      -$                       280,000.00$             
Net (Deficit)/Surplus -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT FEES CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

UTILITY FUND

UTILITY CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

Fund Totals FY25 (Summary)_24 2024-06-16.xlsx Final Revisions Adopt 6-16 Prt 6/16/2024 9:14 PM



City of Goldsboro
Final Revisions Manager Reconmmended to Proposed Adopted FY25 Budget

Downtown Development MSD Fund MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24 Totals
Total Downtown Development MSD Fund Expenditures 100,225.00$             100,225.00$             
Contingency -$                          -$                          
Totals - Downtown Development MSD Expenditures 100,225.00$             -$                   -$                      -$                       100,225.00$             

Downtown Development MSD Fund Revenues MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24
Total Downtown Development MSD Fund Revenues 100,225.00$             100,225.00$             
Fund Balance Appropriated -$                          -$                          
Totals - Downtown Development MSD Fund Revenues 100,225.00$             -$                   -$                      -$                       100,225.00$             
Net (Deficit)/Surplus -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          

Occupancy Tax Fund Expenditures MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24 Totals
Total Occupancy Tax Fund Expenditures 1,246,632.46$          1,246,632.46$          

Cut Health Insurance increase from 10% to 4% (1,584.00)$         (1,584.00)$                
Employee $400 Net Bonus (NOT included in Manager's Recommended) 1,973.97$             1,973.97$                 
Reduce for Health Insurance 4% to 0% increase (3,060.00)$            (3,060.00)$                
Contingency 103,225.00$             15,673.68$            118,898.68$             
Totals -  Occupancy Tax Expenditures 1,349,857.46$          (1,584.00)$         1,973.97$             12,613.68$            1,362,861.11$          

 Occupancy Tax Fund Revenues MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24
Total  Occupancy Tax Fund Revenues 1,349,857.46$          13,003.65$            1,362,861.11$          

Fund Balance Appropriated -$                          -$                          
Totals -  Occupancy Tax Fund Revenues 1,349,857.46$          -$                   -$                      13,003.65$            1,362,861.11$          
Net (Deficit)/Surplus -$                          1,584.00$          (1,973.97)$            389.97$                 -$                          

Fuel System Internal Service Fund MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24 Totals
Total Fuel System Internal Service Fund Expenditures 1,361,421.00$          1,361,421.00$          
Contingency -$                          -$                          
Totals - Fuel System Internal Service Expenditures 1,361,421.00$          -$                   -$                      -$                       1,361,421.00$          

Fuel System Internal Service Fund Revenues MGR02 Total
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24
Total Fuel System Internal Service Fund Revenues 1,361,421.00$          1,361,421.00$          
Fund Balance Appropriated -$                          -$                          
Totals - Fuel System Internal Service Fund Revenues 1,361,421.00$          -$                   -$                      -$                       1,361,421.00$          
Net (Deficit)/Surplus -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT MSD FUND

OCCUPANCY TAX FUND

FUEL SYSTEM INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

Fund Totals FY25 (Summary)_24 2024-06-16.xlsx Final Revisions Adopt 6-16 Prt 6/16/2024 9:14 PM



City of Goldsboro
Final Revisions Manager Reconmmended to Proposed Adopted FY25 Budget

TOTALS - Expenditures

Manager 
Recommended 

6/15/24
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24
General Fund 55,931,496.18$        (263,595.18)$    143,440.55$         (416,175.43)$        55,395,166.12$        
General Fund Capital Reserve Fund 1,000.00$                 -$                   -$                      -$                       1,000.00$                 
Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund 53,105.24$               -$                   -$                      -$                       53,105.24$               
Stormwater Fund 1,697,831.00$          (5,808.00)$         7,237.88$             (1,429.88)$            1,697,831.00$          
Utility Fund 25,698,254.00$        (35,904.00)$      44,743.26$           (63,360.00)$          25,643,733.26$        
Utility Capital Reserve Fund -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          
System Development Fees Capital Reserve Fund 280,000.00$             -$                   -$                      -$                       280,000.00$             
Downtown Development MSD Fund 100,225.00$             -$                   -$                      -$                       100,225.00$             
Occupancy Tax Fund 1,349,857.46$          (1,584.00)$         1,973.97$             12,613.68$            1,362,861.11$          
Fuel System Internal Service Fund 1,361,421.00$          -$                   -$                      -$                       1,361,421.00$          
Total Expenditures all funds 86,473,189.88$        (306,891.18)$    197,395.66$         (468,351.63)$        85,895,342.73$        

TOTALS - Revenues

Manager 
Recommended 

6/15/24
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24
General Fund 55,931,496.18$        42,000.00$        846,510.94$         (1,424,841.00)$     55,395,166.12$        
General Fund Capital Reserve Fund 1,000.00$                 -$                   -$                      -$                       1,000.00$                 
Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund 53,105.24$               -$                   -$                      -$                       53,105.24$               
Stormwater Fund 1,697,831.00$          -$                   -$                      -$                       1,697,831.00$          
Utility Fund 25,698,254.00$        -$                   -$                      (54,520.74)$          25,643,733.26$        
Utility Capital Reserve Fund -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          
System Development Fees Capital Reserve Fund 280,000.00$             -$                   -$                      -$                       280,000.00$             
Downtown Development MSD Fund 100,225.00$             -$                   -$                      -$                       100,225.00$             
Occupancy Tax Fund 1,349,857.46$          -$                   -$                      13,003.65$            1,362,861.11$          
Fuel System Internal Service Fund 1,361,421.00$          -$                   -$                      -$                       1,361,421.00$          
Total Revenues all funds 86,473,189.88$        42,000.00$        846,510.94$         (1,466,358.09)$     85,895,342.73$        

TOTALS - Net Revenues-Expenditures

Manager 
Recommended 

6/15/24
Final- 5/27/24 

Changes
Final 6/5/24 

Changes
Addtl Changes 

6/13/24
Proposed Adopted 

6/17/24
General Fund -$                          (305,595.18)$    (703,070.39)$        1,008,665.57$      -$                          
General Fund Capital Reserve Fund -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          
Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          
Stormwater Fund -$                          (5,808.00)$         7,237.88$             (1,429.88)$            -$                          
Utility Fund -$                          (35,904.00)$      44,743.26$           (8,839.26)$            -$                          
Utility Capital Reserve Fund -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          
System Development Fees Capital Reserve Fund -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          
Downtown Development MSD Fund -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          
Occupancy Tax Fund -$                          (1,584.00)$         1,973.97$             (389.97)$               0.00$                        
Fuel System Internal Service Fund -$                          -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                          
Total Net Changes all funds -$                          (348,891.18)$    (649,115.28)$        998,006.46$          0.00$                        

Fund Totals FY25 (Summary)_24 2024-06-16.xlsx Final Revisions Adopt 6-16 Prt 6/16/2024 9:14 PM



Z— 

Moi

V1

vi

O

m

vi

N

O

vi . 

O1.
4

o

M

0

M

rl %

0

0

0

r1

e .. 

bq

U

Ocn

oc1--:, 
rr

co

o00
O

c 

r. 

O

c

U

v; 

1= 

o

ri

m

o

v, 

Uzi

to

Q\ <

r

o

to

V1 

o

o\ .-, 

U

s-' >' „ •; 

m

69

M

r

p ;

9

b

S". 

th

U .. 

U .

0

N

U

cd

Pr-

41

v

i " 

U

f

i >  

4- 

X +- 

cd

v 

O > ." ' 

Q, 

UA. 

cd

s, 

pa

o

o

rMi

v

vi .•. 

M

vi

O

vi

O •--

1

i-

1

3.. 

Q., 

t?

Q

cd

O +-' 

C/

5 ' 

U

y '—' ° 

cn

0

0

o
c 

a ' 

U

O

O

U

00, + - 

O

4 

co
r- 

ri

v, 

o

o -

r

e 

U , 

U

U

O

7

vA

N , 

v

U

c 

N , 

p

ETd

fn

vo

D

M

N

M

Oo > . 

O

O " , 

X

U =

cn >, 

U > >, ' 

b

v

Ir

Ir

O

In

cd '

C 

p

v, 

rr

ao

4 ' 

4" 

r, 

S." 

cG «

3

cz

U

cd

M

Cd

1.

01

u

cd

N

O

O

cd

3

y

C

U

o

c -

d

U

cd

U

U

4 

C, 

cd

4- 

U , 

O

r

4° 

k

r.

iC

U

Q) 

U '

C

O

V7 '

Inn

U

H
4:. 

4 

O

C 

cC

U

cl

v

cn

Q

cd> 

N

ra

i

U

U '

C

cin

sU. >, 

cd -. 

O_ 

cd

b

Y

SU ° 

U

Go 

j

y

y }' 

SU . 

SU

av

d { 

n
I

v

U„ 

N¢ 

U

cd

O

r

O

fs5

U

v

w_ 

sr, 

N

Cd

O

N 

O

M

d

Irj

U

U

H

t` 

O

p

1

3

OG

F' 

c 

cd ., 

a . 

r

s- 

U

c

o

W

i •

v

w

a 

U '

7a

S

A

U

p

0

U

c}, 

U  

U

U• "' 

U  

U >, 

O

p

U -° '

C . , 

U

U

c}- 

p

U > 

Ld

U) 

v

P ?• 

w

Cr

b

OC

t 

p

U

U

V1

C/] 

C/] }

cd, '

O

U

ycd. 

V1

to

Cl) 

Cd

Cd

3

cn

O

U

cd

cn

cn

t7 (

n

Cl

0

0

u . 

v,) 

w

F-
4 > : 

Q, 

ct



a

cd

a

C

N41

N

O

Q

y

N

cd

tU

7, 

N

cn

7:
1

113

N

C." 

N

o

o

U

a

cnm

cn

ct

N69

N

VU

0

0

y

4. 

U

a

o

Q

Q

y

rn

U

p

OU

U

U

N

z

1t

c. 

cd

CIS

ct

p

yN

Cd

o

m

w

p

U

o

Ju. 

3

a? 

w

a

a

un

ct3

vcq3
O

O

cn

cl

cd

U

U

fl

U

U

7 

t4"

Cd

UU

U

N

d

aji. 

03N
C'

3cv

ti
O

ri

l

O , 

N

N

x

N= 

N> 

dq

O

p

O

G) 

O

c

3

C/ 

O

O

cn

O

0

O

p

cn

to

w

L

N

CU

O

O

41u. 

u

0j)" 

o

o

ct. 

cn

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

N

UD

V/ 

N

CA

N

C/) 

C/) 

N

C' 

N

N

O

O

O

O

O

O

73

N

O

Q

y

tU

7, 

N

cn

C." 

o

o

U

a

cnm

cn

ct

N69

N

VU

y

4. 

U

a

o

Q

Q

y

rn

U

p

OU

U

U

N

z

1t

c. 

cd

N

p

yN

cd

w

p

U

Ju. 

LtL

3

w

a

a

ct3

vcq3

O

O

cn

cl

cd

U

t," 

U

7 

t4"

Cd

UU

U

N

d

aji. 

03N
C'

3cv

tiO

ri

l

O , 

N

N

x

N= 

N> 

dq

O

p

O

G) 

O

c

3

C/ 

O

O

cn

O

0

O

p



O

In

Vr

O, 

W, 

N

w

O

1

tri

O -• ' 

N

M

10

M ' ' 

O

O

r

CO

jr, ' -

4

r

4 ^-

I

p

pp

pp

pp • 

M

O

p

N

a, 

f4 `

O

I'`

I

N

d

y

n

O

8

b

O

N

v, `

O

O

O

O

O

O

aMo

pMp

o`"

o , 

t 

n -

t

n

eY

n .-. 

N. 

ti

O

p

GO

N '

0 ,

n

Oi
O\ 

N •• 

t+

i

V1

N

h

M

S
p

M

w

O7+ 

1

O
r- 

M

v

00? 

o. 

O

n

v

b

b

N

M '

o

r

Y, 

b

M '

Y

N .-. 

1r, ,-. 

ry

N

v; 

ri

r -

i

In

w

vJ

rl  

Wr 04

V1W

q

74

W

W

P : ° 

u ` 

w

W

o

H

H

P

rx

A, 
u

v

1Hi

v

a 

W

y " 

u

A

bli

ca

A " ;,

x

ova
A

m 

Nm "

x

boar "
x

baa

U

oa

O

ao

w

xmO " 

G "`^ 

I -

a '

G

I

a '

0

H

U > '

G

V '

O

w

w

w

o

gig" 

w

G

v {

W 

j' 

q " 

a •

r

v

o

nJ

v

u

v

y

o

u

u

v

a

v'

u

OTJ
as• 
v -

0

U

o

v

a

C

H '

C7

w

to

v

N

WJN
O _• 

y 

O

w + 

o

N

O

O

1-

7

P

w

P4u
H

00'. 

w

H

I

H

u

H

H

H

H . ` 

o

H

U , 

bn ` 

o

ff -

1

bn

o

H

H

O

w

O

w

o

O

O + 

c

u

O !-+ 

a

O ;;; 

O

Oa
O

U

v

a

O

w

O

O

U' 

H

GG

U

U

I

H

0

H 

H

U% '! 

H

ua

U

U

I. ' 

H . 

U

U 

H

i 

H

4

H

rr [- '

f

H

A

H

Cl ' 

H

O

9

U

V

i

a

H  

U '

e

H

H



N

WU  

N

N

1) 

Yp " , 

pG ; 

F  

A

A

A

r^ 

W

U) 

W

Y

s

cj

A  

a

l

tea( 

ow

Y

A

v

ppyy

x .. , ' ' 

o

as

A

wal
K

o

G

N

yr

p

P4PL4
A4W

0 

o

rn

an

f

i'

t, 

Sr, 

o

r

W

v ,. 

o

O

W ,, 

O

W ,, 

O

v ,. 

0

0

a

v ,. 

0

0

O

O

O

o

o

O

v

v

o

O

w

C7

O

C7

F 

W

W

U

A

H

U

H

t9

H

H

U

H (- 

rn

r/ 

A

H

U

H

i- 

O

A

H

U

H . 

H

H

v

w

H

A

A

U

H

O

U

H

A

U

H

O

cn

00 %

O

r- -

t

0 

r- 

O

N

o0

M

W) 

ON

r-. 

C

O

If, p

CjQ

OQ

nO

p

O

O

O

V, 

M 

O

as

OV) 

tN

et 

O

Mfn

OQ

OQ

N

O

Q

0 

T

N

Y

ON

r, O

U

O 

O

O

GD

O. 

N

r

CQ

00

O

oo

C7

00

00

7C
7

CT

N

CO

O

O" 

t .-

i

ryV,^ 

p

yM

ON

N

0% — 

0
i

Ci

p

n• •. '•

00

N

O

f— 

M

V, 

r` 

M -.

r

f

V, 

f, 

r

00

Vl

r" 401,"

O0%

00 %

0

O

00
N

04

O

V, 

N .-

1

V 

O

V-, -

t

O .-, 

O •.- 

N

Vi

10 '

r, 

M

1

N

N

N

P

n

u

W

Y ^ 

N

WU  

N

N

1) 

Yp " , 

pG ; 

F  

A

A

A

r^ 

W

U) 

W

Y

s

cj

A  

a

l

tea( 

ow

Y

A

v

ppyy

x .. , ' ' 

o

as

A

wal

K

o

G

N

yr

p

P4PL4

A4W

0 

o

rn

an

f

i'

t, 

Sr, 

o

r

W

v ,. 

o

O

W ,, 

O

W ,, 

O

v ,. 

0

0

a

v ,. 

0

0

O

O

O

o

o

O

v

v

o

O

w

C7

O

C7

F 

W

W

U

A

H

U

H

t9

H

H

U

H (- 

rn

r/ 

A

H

U

H

i- 

O

A

H

U

H . 

H

H

v

w

H

A

A

U

H

O

U

H

A

U

H



y

y

U

U ' 

U

i

OcdCd ' 
U

O

U , 

U

N

U

d

cd

U

U

N

m

Url
U

czN

Cd

O

p

O
fin. ¢ 

U

N

C

U (

A

U

O

C

Cd

C/) 

C

cd ° 

U '

G ° 

U

O

cd

cd

r. 

s

U

O

O

U

cyd

O

U) 

cd

O

O

cd

cd

4.

4. 

O (

J

cn (

73

Cd

Cd

cd

U

o ° 

Uo

Lt -° 

p

ca '

d ^

C3

U

a) 

O -

d

U

N

U

Cl) 

cd

m

Cd

U

4° 

cd

V

cd

U

U -+ " 

U

U) 

Cd

9

U

cd

i" 

p

cd

U " 

U

cd

cd

bA

iG

aQ

Q

bA

O

p [— 

U - 

p " 

cd '

C

cd '

0

U

O , '

C

U

CdbA
cd

O

r-' ' 

i. '

t3

O

4 

U

cd

U

r

N

U

NID '
C

cd

U

U • 

O

U "

d

U

r ° 

4 

4.- 

1n
U

C,

3

Tzs

O

O

o

U

U  

4. 

Cn

Q ° 

O

O

ca

UD

O

N

Up

CtCO
N

bAU

y

U

V

O

U / 

p +

U ^

t7

U

O

U

H

U

cd

O

r 

U

cd

N

rn

N

U

U

U

O

U¢ 

U

U

s. . . 

bA

4

z

C44 -

0

p ° 

U

S".  

Q

n

U

U

Q

W

w0

03

x

U

CdO

U

V] 

H

T3

cn '

d  

OUu "" 

k

O

4-
4

U

U

4 

U

5



61

ryD0WLnWff

a a LL0

r

L

n

N

N

0N

N

v

ONLL

Q



ffD' 

N

m

m

r-
1

Q

N

Ln

ko

n

w

gyp

r -
I

N

r -
I

W

u

I

r -
I

r-
1

W

U

N

N

w

06

cv

X

a

N

t

v

NO

V ! 

LLO

LL

O

0

m

LL

J

Ol

w0

cu

r -
I

N

m

m

r-
1

NICT
Ln

ko

n

w

O

r -
I

N

r -
I

r-
1

r -
I

I

r -
I

r-
1

r -
I

N

N

N

O

m

Ol

CL

ai
4--+ 

m

cn

tl. 

O

O

L

U

C

QJ

O

N•+ 

m

4-

J 

iJ

C

U

E

N

Op

N

w

co

cv

CL

Q

A

i

4- 

V

N

E

M-- 

0

cCC n

U

w

a

s

C7

C07

s

ii

d

U



cOOD

Y

O

co

c

O

4

O

O

co

C

O

cocl

Q

oca
C) 

OU_ 

O
O

UC

O

O

coO

c

LO
YJ

N

OE
Y

O

NF

7

N

ON

L

O

O

Uto
LD

NQ

NN

c

c6

I , 

Cc

N

c

O

OO

m

a; 

O

m

U

Q

W. 

Y

N' 

70

cnN

O

m

m
c' 

cco

to

LU

G ! 

cc

m

m
aE

cnbo

Q
n

U- 

U

m

cc" 

aa) 

coo

W' 

4- 

y— 

U- 

C

y

co

L

U) U

o

6

B

N

E

G

m

a6

a`ni

a
v

OL

Oc

m

Iy' 

m

O

U
c

11

N

M

X -

0

O

cofn

OaA

i V
m

E

c

c

o

Oo

ai

co

C

co

OU

O

L

C3

O

O

C

M

Oc0

w

U

cn

a

f

0a m

coc

vN

oY

Om

3CN

O_ 

O

0

0

0

0

co

N

O

L

L

a

N

O

co

76

O

hA

N

O

co

Uc

c

Oto

0

i-% 

iaO

1co

7O

oIq

cco

C

O

N

cco

cN

U

M

L) 

c

cn

ca

o

N

NO

Oc

m

cp

Lo

Q

cU

coNh

N

N

N

N

Q

y

E

m

N

O

a) 

N

O

C

T

LL

O

O

U

N

UO

O

Y

o

FL- 

ri

a

OL

OU

D



0

0

0

0

C

0

0

0

0

d

o

o

Ui

Lri

A --

i

v- 

tr} 

L
I. - 

cuCL
MM

t/} 

a) 

O

yLCL

hL0

m

ul

w

C

LN

C

W
f

U

CL

M

m

v

ip

L

LL

N

tA

w

o

L

L

Ca
Cy0

W
U

cm

Y

L

aJ

U

Q

m

O

a) 

ii

W

a) 

N

L 0

0

0

0

C

0

0

0

0

d

o

o

Ui

Lri

A --

i

v- 

tr} 

L

I. - 

cuCL
MM

t/} 

a) 

U

hL0

CL ? 
a) 

a

u

m

U

CL

L

v

ip

L
Mj_ i

LL

W
U

Y

L

aJ

U

Q

m

O

a) 

ii

s

a) 

N

L

U

O

a

LU

Q) 

m

v

m

L

u

u

N

0

m

WLU

LL
E

C

c

v

v

Q. 

m

v

a

o

CO

Ln

F- 

oc

a

N

0

U

U

U

0

a) 

v

v

U

U

U

m•+ +° 

a

a

a

ajU

U

u

a)

a) 

a) 

L

L

L

0Ln

C) 

0

VIj- 

tn
A/') - 

UUCL ? 
a) 

a

uU

CL

ip

LMj_ i

mLU

M

Q

O

a) 

ZW

N

a) 
to

O

m

LU

pV
m

0

M

CLL G

Q

a) 

O

N

0

i/

D

m

WLU

LLE

C

c

LL

o

g

a, 0L

L

L

L

a

a

o

CO

v

W

m

L

a

o

LL

Q

v

2



Q) 

E

LL
O

LIAs

m

w

D

N

0

Heq

l 

V

d

O

o1>- 

v

C

o

LA.., 

111tYQ

W

L

fC

u

V
m

Q) 
Q) vvLYLu

U

U

ac0i

dd

Qp

Q

O

O

00

i

p

M

U

U

OM

O

O

y

Q

Q

i11

N

O

O

G

4! 

V1

O

I

I

a+ 

V1y, 

4^ 

NAll, 

p
O

O

v° Q

o

o

O

M

d

V? 

t? 

V) Yi0O
uim

Q1
G1LLi

CN E

fa

A

Y

y

Qi

o

d

U

E

E

LL

N

@

N

O

Q

of

U

LL

N

U
N

cM G



rf

VIt-, 

a

O

0 ,.., 

C

O

O

D

0

0

0

0

0

6

6

O

0

0

0

0

0

0

cr

Cn

O

U

N

O

O

O

O

O

O

d

D

W) L

fl

64

63

44

EA

tR

to

OCL

O

cacic

66- 

fR

eq

d
cc

W

tU

0E

c

a

c0U

O

Ln

t

c

Q

O

Wcc
Ny

O

O

O

a

OL

3

cr1

OO' 

CU

CO

a

U) L

o  . 

o

ao

0

N

rf

VIt-, 

a

O

0 ,.., 

C

O

O

07

6

6

6

O

O

C

O

O

O

7

E

6

6

OO

CDO

CD

O

O

O

CD

L

t4

N

CU

O

CD

CD

CO

tsi

EA

cr

t

H

a

W} 

CL

cl

O

O

4) 

01

W) L

0- 

GS

cn

OCL

O

dcc

W

tU

0E

c

c0U

a

Ln

t

cO

WccNy

Jc

O

O

C

OL

3

cr1

OO' 

CU

CO

U) 

L

o  . 

o

ao

0

N

NO

ad

L

UD

O

CDC6

C :Co

cc

LJ ! 

C

C

U  

N

m

cc

A
a

O

w

U-) 

O

O

C

U!

J

U

0

CoU

U

0) 

C 

U. 

C

C) 

m

w

a

7- 

to

a

w

a

arc

w

a

m

Ct0

w

c

C. 

c

y

j

w

z

Lu

Cm G

0

p

O

c"
c

V

i

o

a

D

d

LL

6

cCn

H

J

NIr

y

C. 

U

U

O

LV

cc

a

U

c

aco

D

C

O

N

o

O

CL

N

3

Z

cc

C

m

U

nn
69

c

c

c

n

o

LU

to

U

C

C

0

J

J

U

h

C

Co

m

O

T

O

c

L) 

@

cin

c

3

vQ

Q

LL

co

W

E

2:

i 

c

m3

cn

2

Z

rf

VIt-, 
a

O

0 ,.., 

C
O

O

07

6

6

6

O

O

C

O

O

O

7

E

6

6

OO

CD

O

CD

O

O

O

CD

L

t4

N

CU

O

CD

CD

CO

tsi

EA

cr

t

H

a

W} 

CL

cl

O

O

4) 

0- 

GS

cnO

cnwLULLZOUWaNZLLLac

O

O

O

o

Lri

Cfl

rl

N

t!? 

03 

aQ) nnmUCVcoE
C) Qma

a 
c

3

ui

CV

C

0

O

Co

U

N

CUO_ C

C > O

N

U  

a) 

a

oo

L

N

iU

O

N

co

z

v— 

LL

Lu

is

Q

0Of

0000000000
0

0

0

0

0

O

LC) (

fl

CD

CD

N

N

fA

6q {

f} 

t0.). 

CO

O

U

O_ 

a

U

0

3

C

O

N

cn

C

Cn

cn

N *' 

cu

a

o

bD

w

p 

U

U   UO

U

E

E

C

O

U

O

cn

0

w

a

a

acr
4) 3dcccacOa

Jc

O

O

C

OL

3

cr1

OO' 

CU

CO

U) L

o  . 

o

cc

O

Y

O

ad

L

UD

O

CDC6

C :CoU  

N

m

o

U

t: 
C

C

U-) 

O

O

C

U!

J

U

0

CoU

U

0) 

U

C

CD

0Cl

LD

UN . 

U- 

C

C) 

m

w

a

7- 

to

a

w

cnwLULLZOUWaNZLLLac

O

O

O

o

Lri

Cfl

rl

N

t!? 

03 

a
Q) 

nn
mUCVcoE

C) 

Qma
a 

c3

ui

CV

C

0

O

Co

U

N

CUO_ C

C > O

N

U  

a) 

a

oo

L

N

iU
O

N

co

z

v— 

LL

Lu

is

Q

0Of

0000000000

0

0

0

0

0

O

LC) (

fl

CD

CD

N

N

fA

6q {

f} 

t0.). 

CO

O

U

O_ 

a

U

0

3

C

O

N

cn

C

Cn

cn

N *' 

cu

a

o

bD

w

p 

U

U   UO

U

E

E

C

O

U

O

cn

0

w

a

a



o

r-

000
O.

Eoo

06000
o '

oo00

00
O

O

V-

rr-= -

000
o

0

0

0

c

o' 

Qo
0

0

o

E

o

0

0

a) 

o

0

o

o0 (

00o

0u
i

a

U

6

U
r,:-, 

666
c

cr

o

O

X000D (

D

D

0LO00
O

O (

D

00oLo0
u7

O

Lo

N

to

D

LU

u7

O

O
I\ 

00 (

D

O (

D

D (

D (

D

O

00

DEA

C

N

H& 

to

fA

I\ 

jo

b9

40   

EA

H} 

Efl,  

N

N

r

O

O

Q

is .

64

64

r

O

fR

b4

ACV

Z &

T

EA

tfi

ffl

4fl

iA
O

fA (

fl

coLOcc
69

O

Q

ad

0

CL

0

o, VQ

N

U

o

L

a) 

c= 
E

11

Q

03

m

ato

L

MCL0)

cu

0

Qi

Qi

No
0

c

W

E

a

te} 

3

U

a) 

3

0

LL

0) 

W

D

W

a) 

J

c

i

N

W

D

C

W

3

0

7

c

a

6
U) 

L

0

J

a

R

C

W

C

E

O

io

D "S

m

GG

a

O

a

W

p

1

y

T

0) 

Nr

o

I

a) 

1= 

a

5

N

o

Ute—° 

0) 

N

ii

a) 

m

x

Ja
a) 

o

N

a

LU

y

oC

m

3

a

o

a

a) 

lt 

C

Cl) 

c

a

y

L

a) 

a

6

n

o

X

n

CD

ami

W

O

a) 

7

O

O> 

crJ
E

C

WU. 

O, 

a

a) 

O

m

O

Q

p

U

m

0 

aa

Y

O` 

F

Q
a

n0

U0

a: 

CC

0- 

0

6

6U

0

b=
0

O

U

p

c6

v- 

i_ 

Z

O

W

I

x

N

O

m

0

0

0

O

V- 

cr

6

N

J

cBL

U

O

U

I

Q

a) 

y "

O

Q' 

C

J

00

3

Q

C

n

O

O

V
O

O

C

N

O

H

n

0

O

0

0Eco

Op

O

Z

a

O

a

a) 

E

C

E

Q

m

a) 

6

a) 

cn

@

V

un

Lo

LL
r, 

r` 

V

M

o

m

E

a

o

m

U

a`) 

i

r

o

c

aa)) 

a

L

o

W

d

U

c

C

L

W '

C

C

0

O

O

a) 

0

O

c

0

3

C

a) 

Q

bA

O

O

O

U- 

F- 

N (

0

V

M

E

a) 

a) !? 

a) 

a) 

U

a

E '

O

D

H

O

E

CO

O

F

L

co, 

L

U

U

E

n (

n

E

a

O

3

E

3

w

a

n. 

a) 

E

E3. 
a

O

O

tf0

c

E@

O

Q)

LO

rn
a) 

Qa) . 

CD

a) 

D

o

o 

Q

Q

a) 

o

a) * 

ac

m

o

3 *(

nC
i 

2

W

Q

LL

W

A

LL

n =_ -

N

Z

0

Z

C

7 

H

U

Lr

U

Z

m

LL



mcc

00

r

4f
4=

Q

X00

0

O ' 

0

0

07

Q

Q

U

0

0

C) 

In

N

Cl) 

N (

n

a) 

000000000

O

O

CD

O

L

O

O

r

i!

i

4& 

ifl

Efi

64

mcc

c `

o

O

6

c

cr

O

O

c

i

o

O

CD

O

O

O

a

69

O

69

b4

4. 

t4

b4

N

6UOOiii

co000o.
E-

000

00

000

a) 

X00
0

O ' 

0

0

0

0

0

E

0

0

0

co

0

0

C) 

Q) 

D

0

0

0

c

a) 

000000000
00

000

L

LO

I-- 

U) 

0

0

0

W

W

W

O

O

0

0

C)+ 

O

U

r, 

N" 

a) 

C

W

4& 

r

N

N

iA

49

69

N— 

O

D

H

Q

O

6% 

69

64

t4

4& 

6R

iR

iA

N &} 

a3
0

Lo

D

y

a

0

m

tf

C

C

Q

a7t

69
a

C

u

E

a) 

a) 

u

CDOL

cn

C

Q

69

y

w

N

CL

N

CD

a

M

0

iR

y

G1

cc

U

LL

N

c (

n4. 
y

4)) 

i

O

cH
LU

w

cc

0

3

c

aO

O

C

3

i

f0

N

JQ

o? 

C

a) 

Lij` 

c

m

w

w

U

C

d

O

U

C

CD

ZZ

cc

U) 

C

Q

W

O0

w

C

c

OCD

3

a

C

cc

J

O. 

C

i

a

a) 

UU

O

O

C

U

Q

O

a) 

O

m' 

4

a

Y

NQ

a) 

C

cao

c

Z, 

WW

OH

c

o'

60

o

L

6

O

c .. o ` 

o

m

o

o

m + +' 

Ea) 

a 

U

v

cr

a) 

o

c

U

w

Uma

N

V = 

C6

iLL

CO  

Cn

a

an

w

s

as

N0

C

co

J

7

7

0

7

a) 

Z

to

m

V

C

V

c>> 

C

7

co

a) 

C

E

o

c

ocO

o

yU
U

L

U

U

ai

c

c

o

t

0

c° 

cn

V) 

o

B

O

o

o

v

o

LO
T- 

0

I

L

O 

U

0U
11

o

o

o

OL

40

a1

r

a

i

N

O

N

a

L

w

a. 

U- = 

U

cc

cC

U

W

c `

o

O

6

c

cr

O

O

c

i

o

O

CD

O

O

O

a

69

O

69

b4

4. 

t4

b4

N

6UOOiii

co000o.
E-

000

00

000
a) 

X00
0

O ' 

0

0

0

0

0

E

0

0

0

co

0

0

C) 

Q) 

D

0

0

0

c

a) 

000000000
00

000
L

LO

I-- 

U0

O

W

0

0

0

0

W

W

W

O

O

0

0

C)+ 

O

U

r, 

N" 

a) 

C

W

4& 

r

N

N

iA

49

69

N— 

LoLO
a) 

a) 

4& 

Q

O

6% 

69

64

t4

4& 

6R

iR

iA

N &} 

a3

U

Q• 

D

y

a

DLO

tf

iH

C

C

Q

a7t

69
a

Ocl

7

a) 

a) 

u

CDOL

Q

69

LO

cr- 

O

N

CDiR

CO

U

a 

6

O

c

o

o6

a

a7t

u

V

cr- 

CO

O

U

O

O

c

a

pJ

w

O

C

i

C7

N

o? 

c

m

w

w

U

0

U

C

CD

Q

O0

w

c

OCD

3

EMC
cc

O. 

C

i

a) 

UU

O

O

C

U

Q

O

a) 

O

4

O

cn •— 

Y

NQ

a) 

Ccao

c

a 

c

o'

60

o

L

6

O

c .. o ` 

o

m

o

o

m + +' 

E
a) 

a 

U

v

cr

a) 

o

c

U

w

Uma

N

V = 

C6

CO  

Cn

p

cc

ca

w

s

u

N0

C

co

J

Ucn

O

Al

toC

O

a) 

to

m

V

C

a) 

c>> 

C

7

U

c

a) 

C

E

C

C

C

o

O

Ua 

U

L

U

U

ai

c

c

o

oCO

c° 

cn

V) 

E

a`) E

a`) 

E

E

v

o

a

c .

c

0° 

M

o

o

o

OL

o

c

N

O

N

N

d* 

w

a. 

U- = 

U

cc

cC

U

W

o

o

W

o

o

a 

Dmaws
vOi

siLcn

UU

UU

z



cc0WWa00WOwctl

N
L. mtv

N

M

I

to

N

LL. 

O

O

N

o

i

O

L

f0cm
0; 

O

c

O

UDC) 

N(

D

r -

64

WOa) 
4 - 

CLO. OQ

Ca) WCLOaN
c0

cn

CL

cc

C

waJ
JaOWJMaQLUW

LL0OZ2WF- = 
Cn

H

Q

LL

0crCDmT) CDmC: ma

na
CS

3

a) 

o

cn

Y

a

U

a) 

ca

CD

m

0Occ0dE0U

O

O

O

O0000
Lf) 

LO

O

O

N

N (

D

CD

to

EA

A

c

O

0

0CD0

E

O

O

O

O

0

Ln

O

V) 

r

CD

LO

CO
I 

EA

64t9FRtf? 
Q. 44co

3QLO
r- 

40

O

CL

O

0

0

0

a) 

0U)
O

O

a) 

0

r

r

a) 

o

o ° 

c

O

o

c! > 

t'

D

LO

LLD

O

cT) 

toi -

6q *

9

w. 

C

O

o'

O

000

O

O

O

O' 

O

O

O

O

O

O

06
O

l0O

O

Cf) 

LO

O

CD
I- 

U-) 

Cl) 

r

a

N
1  

iR
i -

Ft

EA

Efl

fA

ff? 

U) 

u) 

Q

O

U

n

U) 

CD

LL

11

lL

LO

cnco

a) 

O7

Z

I= 

OC

lL

Il

L

iA

mLUa0

00,

000

CD

O

a) 

O

O

t

O

L

O

O

Q -

6qa).

fR

FA

co

cn

3

3

a

n

O

O

LO

Ln

N

N

4,

13, .

6q

D
dLLc

O

cr

E

Q

OV

cn

d

O  

co

Y

Cna) 

nc° 

E

a) 

a) 

n

o

W

O

Cl) 

r

a) 

U) 

cn

O

E

n

YC

c - 

3

Q .

Q

co

i

3

a) 

U) 

u) 

Q

cn

U

n

U) 

CD

LL

11

lL

0

cnco

a) 

3

Z

I= 

OC

lL

Il

L

a) 

a) 

co

n

a

3

@

CO

c

a

a) 

cbD

bD

w

02

c

3

L

a) 

a"
i

ui

U

1

Q
a) 

m

3

cn

E

U

U

cc

cO

U

O

8.

scn

CO

UO

3m

cmlo

Q

S

O

N

7m

4-- 

Em

3

co

c

o

LO

m

Q

cn

cn

Q

U

cu

cn

3

c

haal)
w

7Z

O
i

E

O

OO

r
c

3

Co

O

O

M

O

o

ccm

E

c

CD

cc

O

co

CO

Y

E

C0

r

3

c

O

C) 

O

FL- 

H

mLUa0

00,

000

CD

O

a) 

O

O

t

O

L

O

O

Q -

6qa).
fR

FA

co

cn

3

3

a

n

O

O

LO

Ln

N

N

4,

13, .

6q

DdLLc

O

cr

E

Q

6bc

D

a = 

00
o

c

O  

CO

o

m

ma) > 

U

cr

nc° 
E

a) 

a) 

n

o

W

O

Cl) 

r

a) 

U) 

cn

O

E

n

YC

c - 

3

Q .

Q

co

i

3

a) 

U) 

u) 

Q

2  

m

E

a) 

a) 

n

U) 

CD

LL

11

lL

0

mLUa0

00,

000

CD

O

a) 

O

O

t

O

L

O

O

Q -

6qa).
fR

FA

co

cn

3

3

a

n

O

O

LO

Ln

N

N

4,

13, .

6q

DdLL

O

O

N

LO

Ef3

ER
co
a) a) 

UCOa) cCBCDE

a) 

Y

E -

o

co

aU) 

U- 

U) 

a) 

E 

D

OO
O

J

V. 

LOco
1

LO
D

iia

a) 

w

to . m

U

J (

0

iO

3
co

M

47

Cn

CD

c7m

c

N

6bc

D

a = a) 

a) 

W

O

m

Z

o

E ~ 

w

Oo  

U_ J

Q

r

Wco

a+ 

a 

w- 

E

QC

tco >, 
O

c

c

U) 

U

O

O

E

4) 

Y

Qc

Q - 

Z
I= 

OC

lL

Il

O

O

N

LO

Ef3

ERco
a) a) 

UCO
a) 

cCBCDE

a) 

Y

E -

o

co

aU) 

U- 

U) 

a) 

E 

D

OO
O

J

V. 

LOco
1

LODiia

a) 

w

to . m

U

J (

0

iO

3
co

M

47

Cn

CD



h

C/) 

Y

a) 

CQ + .
Q

ca

to

E

C ~ 

CA

a7

Cl) 

co

E  

c '

ao ` 

a) 

lH

wO
C

n

bA '

O

J

O

0 .

E

O

aC

Er

cD

a) 

cn

N -

0 

O

a) 

fn

O

O

to

to

E

tp

0

0

C

7

0 (

n

cn

w

O

c

c

a'

o

cA

0

a) 

E

c

no

x

o

a) 

EO

p

U

rn

m

V

c

N

m

a

m

Ca

U

U

c° 

c ' 

cncn .

Q

4-

1

a> +, 

c

a) 

iv

m

CO

o

df > > 

2

p

cA

c

m

as

O_ • 

m

O

c° ' 

c

c

c

o

c

c 

n

D- 

E ° •

o

ca > 

E

co

m ' 

w .

CB

LL

a

c

O

a

O

cn

m +, > 

C

c° 

E

o> :

E

n

m

E

E > 

o

m

ca

QQQUUUwwiiLLwciU
a. 

6-

w

n

00000000
O

O

o

o

O

o

O

O

O

O

O

o

O

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

00
0

0

0

0

0

0

00
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

00
0

0

0

0

0

0000000000000000

00000000
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

c0

CO

uJ

cD

O

to

Cp

M

O

CD (

O

O

CO (

O

c0 (

D (

D

CO

D (

D

fD

to

D

CO (

fl (

D (

O

CO

tD (

D

c0 (

D

CO

CO

t0

f0

CO

CO

c0

CD

6q

lfl
61) ,

612)

4469
IA

iA

44

164
t9> -

60 -

rA
6

4& 

409-

40

409 -

64

64 {

6R -

69 -

ca

t6? 

Gq

14
lb

iO3

tf3
4 ? 

160- 
i

i

i6} 

G

fi

161) 

16444

h

C/) 

Y

a) 

CQ + .Q

ca

to

E

C ~ 

CA

a7

Cl) 

co

E  

c '

ao ` 

a) 

lH

wO
C

n

bA '

O

J

O

0 .

E

O

aC

Er

cD

a) 

cn

N -

0 

O

a) 

fn

O

O

to

to

E

tp

0

0

C

7

0 (

n

cn

w

O

c

c

a'

o

cA

0

a) 

E

c

no

x

o

a) 

EO

p

U

rn

m

V

c

N

m

a

m

Ca

U

U

c° 

c ' 

cncn .

Q

4-

1

a> +, 

c

a) 

iv

m

CO

o

df > > 

2

p

cA

c

m

as

O_ • 

m

O

c° ' 

c

c

c

o

c

c 

n

D- 

E ° •

o

ca > 

E

co

m ' 

w .

CB

LL

a

c

O

a

O

cn

m +, > 

C

c° 

E

o> :

E

n

m

E

E > 

o

m

ca

QQQUUUwwiiLLwciU
a. 

6-

w

n

0W

u

0111

m

m
w

C

N

mCL

r_ 

W

D

u

V ! 

O

Q
Q

ILL

N

c

4- 

L6

Yp

w0

J

CD

f0

J

rfn' 
w

Q

V 

0

a) 

W

ECB

O

UU- 

co
C

d

O

cr

Q

C

n3
L

E

J

U

U

LU

c)

m

co

ti

2

m

c

7a

YAU.•

O

E
E

b0

D

fl

C +' 

O

W

a) 

U

O

C7E2
can) 

0c

to

D

E° 

co

w

O

Cl)

i

L=

w) 

a) 

E

ooC

a`> 

a 

n` 

m

to

Z

z

0

a) 

CO ° 

cl

a o

o

U

@

E

w

E

ha) 

E

cn

c

a

bo

cc

v

dS

a 

o

oU

o

@

to

o

a) 

S, 

cn

YCL a> 

a 

E

E

cn

mO

O +• 

d

n

v

Q

w

m

o 

o

c

m== 

o

a

c

o> 

f- 

a

a3

o

U

E

2

a

c

oc

cn

U

o

ii

E

a; 

c

m  

D

o

o

m

a
E

a 

m

o° 

m

N

o+- 

aci

a

M

E

Q

w

0

0

0

0

W

ii

LL

ii

w

0

2

j

i

0

a

cc

U) 

H

i= 

h

C/) 

Y

a) 

CQ + .Q

ca

to

E

C ~ 

CA

a7

Cl) 

co

E  

c '

ao ` 

a) 

lH

wO
C

n

bA '

O

J

O

0 .

E

O

aC

Er

cD

a) 

cn

N -

0 

O

a) 

fn

O

O

to

to

E

tp

0

0

C

7

0 (

n

cn

w

O

c

c

a'

o

cA

0

a) 

E

c

no

x

o

a) 

EO

p

U

rn

m

V

c

N

m

a

m

Ca

U

U

c° 

c ' 

cncn .

Q
4-

1

a> +, 

c

a) 

iv
m

CO

o

df > > 

2

p

cA

c

m

as

O_ • 

m

O

c° ' 

c

c

c

o

c

c 

n

D- 

E ° •

o

ca > 

E

co

m ' 

w .

CB

LL

a

c

O

a

O

cn

m +, > 

C

c° 

E

o> :

E

n

m

E

E > 

o

m

ca

QQQUUUwwiiLLwciU
a. 
6-
w

n



Y' 

000

000

000

coo

OO

Hm

W

LtD' 

Ucv

m
a) 

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

M

N

O

O

O

a) 

aa o

1

J

V / 

a) 

N

O

LL

D

lD

O (

D

In

O

6% 

N

In

i6} 

N

In

o

LL

O (

D (

D

it

tf) 

b9

i!

3

O

W

c0

D

a) 

a) 

2: 

m

tt

nn

O

V
m. 

4& 

00cc

000

000

000

coo

OO

O

O

Ocoo

to

bo, 

L
tD' 

Ucv

m
a) 

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

a) 

J

J

a) 

O

D

co

EA

EA

D

lD

O (

D

In

O

6% 

N

In

i6} 

N

In

InN

O (

D (

D

it

tf) 

b9

i!

3

O

D

a) 

a) 

O

N

O

EA -

6s-

6q

iq

4& 

40

O

O

O

O

to

m

Lq

Lq

Lq

c

r- 

N

N

iA

fA

FA

a) 

O

O

O

o

a

aIn04

CO
mcom

o

c

N

m

a

to

a

Lcn
c

O

cn7

E

O

c
0

a3

0Y a) 

C 
C

O

L

E

NYa) 

Us

U

E

O

U) 

O

a) 

h

O

O

m
c

UJ

w0
3

m

L

O

LL

O

O

Z

C

m

a) O

m

U

U

G) LL

NO

T>

O

C

iO

O

C

CO

n

W

m

U

U

E

n

O

C

U

C

N

U

w

1

O

y

a) 

a) 

O' 

er

a

s

b

n

o

a) 

p

m

w

to

s

a) 

E

QCD

ma

d

c

N

O

U) C. 

ca.

Z

a

H

U

V

a) - 

U

INn

o

a) 

m

a@

y

m

in

r

p

U

A

a

Cm

O

F- 

CO

m

U

o

U

cc

cmj

m

C

a) 

a) 

LL

O

i
c

QO

O

W , 

J

LL.

m

C

C0

4.,, 

ti

L

a) 

U

C

m

N7

LL

LL

U

m

m

a) 

o

a) 

m

7

3
4' 

i

C

o

O

L

In

0

J

Z

0

m

mC

a) 

CO

a) 

to

W

a) a) 

n (

n

a) 

O

O

C

41

c

3

O

U

n (

n

6

O

U

O

L• 

a) 

N

D  

0 .° •

0

oC

m

m

w

o

Z

ami

w

CO

0

Lu

o

o

c

U' 

0

2

0

n

Co! 

t. 

g

un

LU

bD

tt0

C

Y

m

E

O

C

w
a) 

C

O

O +' 

W () 

C

L

CL

a) 

cnO
CoC

C

Lto

C

C

Q

tom

O

O

U

3

J

J '

O

6

3

a) 

a) +' 

O

Q

a) 

a) 

L

O

bD
c

w

c0

co

N '

O •

O

m

m

C

a) 

E

C

O

7

N. 

J

a) 

0

O

Wco

O

O

m ) 

D

JO

O

m

V '

U

W

cn
m • 

55

0 + 

a

C

E

E

a) 

J

a) 

a) 

O

U

U

E

a

u) (

n

i

y 

a 

N `) 

a

w

a) 

un ., 

4a
a) 

a 

a) 

o  

a) 
o

J

m

d

o

ILL, 

ii

CO

m

0

cc

OC (

n (

n

Z

o

m "- 

o

n

m



i+ 
C

a

V

YM

i

CLL
LU

Ln

X

mN _

CC

H

rW V / 

G

OL.
L}

a

m

a

o'

er

o

W

LH

mw
D
C

ttVO^ 

am

0

0

0
0

0

8

S

o

0

0

0

a

o 

0

0

0

0

o 

0

0

0

M

Ln

rl

v

v

Ln

m

Ln

ro

Nv 

m

O

v^ 

MQ

c

c

c

c

c

c

c

h

N

N

U

U

U

U

U

U

3

O

3

03U
0

U

u

U

U

U

U

U

C

C

no

m

on

cn

ocn

o

OD

c0) 

0J

CJ

Ol

O1

O) 

01

H

N_ 

H

VYf

h

C

C

CC

3

3

3

CC

E

C
0

E0

CC E0

E

E

3a

3a

3a

I

3a

a

a

a

Q

Q

Q

Q

Q

Q

Om

m

E

p

3

a

AW y

b0

Y . 

v

LJ. 

3

3

WC

O

fC01

Yc

v> 

y

01

V

Np

C

C

v

01

Q

QjE

0

V

in
O

or

a

Q

3

@

C -

I

3

N

f0

NC
6

C

110

O

p

L

C

rp

C

O

0J

C

O

io

c

Q

U

O

O

v

x0
O

O

Y

9

Z
U

Ul

F

Ou

E

i

l7

xw

Ln

zCWCN

z

3

ca

W

W

LLI

G

z

W

z

a

z

g

c

C7

CA

uO

W

t— 

z

of

J

N

zO

u

Q

z

W

m

N

Wz
I- 

LL

C

Ln

m

H

Q

V) 

I

CA

OucoUC7OUTL70NOLY3NmQJ

toc
mLUOYU30) L41YfC



4.

0c

a

DI1i

N

G

o1j

tm

s

a

Ln;

Ln

O

m

LU

N

C_ 

p
1

cn

C

0

m

0

O1

a

0

0

o! 

I.- 

0

U-

o

O

i

O

O

Lo

ui

O

ui
N

ov1

41

yy

E— m

m

f

W

Nin

1  

in

V? 

co , 

CL

C7

aam

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

O

O

O

O

o

C) 

ui

o

o

ui
N

ov1

41

O

Ln

m

f

N

Nin

1  in

V? 

CL

SNlT

VST

Lr) 

Oa

C

YUY

v

v

a

Q

N

v

O

O

O

O7

7O

7p

2

T

T

S

N

a

S

a, 

o

co

nn

v

onC

Y

c

Qj

Q

c

C

C

O_ Q

@

E
fucu

m

p

Y

N

V1

oY

roY

v

raY

fvY

C

U

O

o

a

Q

a

v

4

Q

a

Q

Q

U

n

LL

t6

C "

q

LL

ccC

CC6

L

G

ZO

y

Ln

i+ 

H

W

J

Y

m

Z

N

C

E

t

of

2
U

WZ

O

N

ZLL
W

OF

O

a

Ccn
N

NO

v

Qz

Qv_ 

u

Efl

c

V

W

W

a

LL

0

C

Oy

O

f0

V1O

p

LU

a

c

E

c

K

Q

O

d

Ll

a

v~
i

Ln

U

nOi



O6q
VN

yLLL

C61N

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

n

o

vi

o

6Nq

69

N
d

008go
vi

o

0

69

6q

g069O

d

t
d0' A

O
0

vi6qpO

LL

0

pp
0

0

L

p

0

0

0

Cl

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

O

E

O

ul

C

N

m

0, 

N

a

LnIi

C

h

h

O

vl

N

n

N

N

R

N - (!

i

V) 

f!

i

6q

6q

b9

Qj

LLL

N

4- 

C

y

0

i+ 

6R

69

69

O

69 . 

A

IW Q

3

v

v
C

n

cidYa

O6q

VN

yLLL

C61N

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

n

o

vi

o

6Nq

69

0

0

0

0

o

O

0

0

0

0

0

o

00
0

0

0

0

O

O

H

O

69

69p

008
go

vi

o

0

69

6q

g069O

o006qp
S

td0' A

O
0vi6qpO

p

p

O

O

O

O

p
O

O

pp
0

0

pp
0

0

0

p

0

0

0

Cl

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

O

O

00

O

D

O

7

7 /

1

O
v'
i69

O

O

t 

O, 

n 

n 

n-^ 

N

69

69

M

0

0

0

0

69

69 

O

N

vl
f 

v1

O 

O

N /

1

69

N

M

10

69

69

6q

h

h

O

vl

N

n

N

N

R

N - (!

i

V) 

f!

i

6q

6q

b9

7

7

6q

6n

6q

O6q

ff3

y

69

6A

G04

b9

69

6R

69

69

O

69 . 

A

69

69

b9

LLN

o6q

N

s0mmv

amu' 

My
0

y

5ao

y

v

mom

N

u

CC

N

m

N

d

T

i

4

U

v

io

3

d

W

C

C

W

v

J2

o

n= 

v

a

c

a

a0

O

0

u

c

ea
S

w

3

L

Q

y

o

y

m

LL

m

11

W  

G

N

W

fi

O ~ 

Z

L

Q

l7

T

3

W

y=
j

m

Z> 

a

u

E -

3

c

n

Q

N

C

J

L

O

0

h

ti

u

4

y

h

0 °

O

E

E

w

H= 

Q ° 

LL

C

N

N

Z

O

C

E_ 

E

E

W_ 

7

O

T

CV

E

CS

d

F

Q

V

a

O

O

N

W

O

L

U

E

G

a

o° 

a

E

W

U

5

W

7

3

3

3

E

v

O

77

ZW2

aYvi

O

aCA

m '^ 

m

U

V

W

Z

Oh

N'O

NiCOn

Nv0

O3

Fa

00

CCQa
OQU' 

a

LLm

HWLL

W1a- 

Wa

ON

NWu. 

GfN

C1

al3= 

ddiO

N

N

OUF- 

F

ZZ
ViJWn

3

OOgW
LLGI

4-:- 

EN:. 

x_ 

SQ 

N•-:- (

T, 

Ud

O

C

O

LL

cmE

O

t= 

dO
U

3.

EE
OQ < - 



LOLUWOEOONW aOxW

d, wK

C

S

S

S

S

S

O

S

O

S

Q

Q

c

88
0

0

8

8

Z

Z

3
v

Lri

c

0

LLN

N

N

N

N

N

N

N

NN

N

c

E mOO

h[ 
u

z

o

d

i

0

I

L

u

M

a0

D

O

L

O

v

h

LL

o

E

c

H

E

O

O

O

N

O

v_ 

O

N

p

OO
O

O

O

S

S

O

O

O

O

W

m\ 

m

l7

Q

a

3

S

O

O

O

r

n

S

S

O

S

H

F

In

Ql

lA
L!

1

N

N

O

ll1

O\ 

In

OD

L

C

O

N

N

N

N

M

V

U

z

Naj
C

w

4! 

C) 

W

Q

L

N

O
L

o

o

n

o

O

lfl

ry

ry

c

O

D

o

4

v

cC

d, wK

Oc3v0dc

EOO

h[ 

u

z

oa

i

0

I

L

u

M

D

O

L

O

v

h

LL

o

E

c

H

E

O

O

O

N

O

v_ 

O

m _ '

D

o

cc

W

m\ 

m

l7

Q

a

d, wK



V) 

ry - 

2u

J

1

7 & 

r

m

4

LAJ

0

LL-

o

4- > 
0

LL2

gypƒ 

Vd

kk2



0

0

a

n

a

n

N

w

w

c

o

w

w

w

W

w

w

W

w

u

u

O

W

r ,

7

MwN

a

w

w

w

O

O2

w

c

M

ry

tD

w

w

w

n

G

n

G

O

Vt

00

V1

NC

N  

l+

1

N

N

d

w

w

w

w

y

w

w

w

w

H
WW

a, 

a

I0

x

W
W

L

3

W
J

a

a

CnW

C

N

w

7

ry

m

N

ry `

n

W

WU
y

a

p

I

w

w

w

w

d

w

w

w

w

Z

2

Q 

n^^ 

c

a

IA

No

W

lO. 

LL

W

U

LL

q

JW, C! 

a

o. 

o 

V ,
m

G

Wx
rO

0

LL

to  C

p

co

G

r

c

a

v

y

E

o

c __ 

w

O

Y

S

U= 

Y

d

N

Ot

o

3

3

3

c

3

3

3

3

r

E

i

0

c

0

0

OC

0

0

a

2

2

2

a

w

a

s

Om .

0

m

eo

Y

0

m

oo

y

o

vat

i

m

y 

qM

YI
N

aQ

a

a

w

O

3



HL° msUC

N

m

4

H

NO

L

N

O

LL

io3cm

a OdtH
a.+ 

C3OEmmCL

d
01LLf0

uOJC
O2

O

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

Ln

o

o

ui

o

vi

0

0

0

o

ui

Li

o- 

o

Ln

I, 

o

Ln

n

Vl

r

O

Ul

01

lO

N

N

In
1, 

If) 

lD

m

m

e-

1

m

to

m

m

m

V} 

vT

r-

4

N

Ol

m

l0

V} 

VT

Vn

VT

VT

to

Vt

VT

tn

VT

V} 

VT

VT

to

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1n

to

N

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

S

O

O

O

O

O

O

N

N

tD

O

O

O

O

Vn

O

O

O

O

O

o

O

O

O

O

O

o

ifi

in

in

tf1

ui

v1

u1

in

vi

O

O

v, 

o

in

Ln

oo

v

r+ 

0

0

v, 

vi

O

O

Ln

N

O

O

O

Ln

O

Ql

W

O

O

O

O

O

to

N* 

a

N

N

c

r-

4

N

In

O

N

1n

N

N

e-
1

14

VT

VY

VT

VT -

41n
m

N

m

In

m

N

m

V? 

V? 

N

N

W

m

to

H

V} 

VT

N

VT

VT

VT

Vn
U 

to

m
e-

1

n

VT

to

VT
V} 

N

Vn

to
t/? 

N

Vl

to

to

VT

VT

VT

to

In

to

V} 

VT

V? 

t/} 

YO

YN

Y

0

3

U

L

d0

N

O

C:) 

3

3

O

u - 

O

OZ
O

H

Q

l0

C

d

3

O

3

m ' 

O

3

L

i

Q

N

L

O

3

a

iLn
L

3

LnO

F

C

m

H

C

L

C

C

3 > 

3

y

v

O

N

m

O

N

d

io2
Lt

4u

v

C

N

p

O

3

3

C

C

u

L

O. 

O

O

C > 

4/ 

pp  

fi

O

O

C "

O

m

m

3

VfC

C

Y

N

cu

d

d

E

D

o

i' 

o ._ 

m

0

Q-> 

m

3

C

L 

W` 

c

m

m

v

Y

m

U

Y

NN
C    

00

OD

00

N

N

Y

i

m

m

Y

J

O

C

C

s

Q

d 

i

Y> 

Ox

cn

U

u

v0
V

d

v

z

u

m

N

O

C

u

L

Y

y _ 

G1

w

N

0

ti

41

Q

w

C -

o

3

w

V

m

U , 

w

u

L '

O

U

v

vll
d

0

yl

j

j

to

L

a

c

E ) 

fi

r

1- 

m

s .

n

O _ 

of

U

N

C

O

a+ 

W

30
Q

L

C '

O

LL

o

O

v

w

Ey

v

r`

a

v

v

oa

v

o= 

v

w

u° 

m

z

u

C

O

O. 

O. 

C - 

O

E

C~'

aC
3

W

4

u

2! 

G

3

O

iD

O

O

m

N

u

V

C. 

U

0

O. 

U

O

N

v
U

Q

N

O

u

N

C1

41

N

V1 -

1

v

m

w

y

v

a
Q

c>>>> 

Ln

O

C

m

U

U

y

U

U

U

V

X

X

v

c

v

p

O" 

v

is

m

v

y

U

O

O

U

3

O

3

3

7

Mr- 
L

m

s

s

H

m

m

H

m

u

Q

Q

Q

Q

Vn

V) 

H



O

O

O

O

O

O

v

N

OUl) 

O1

O

O

O

C

vM

OLQQ

Q

4-

0W

cr
1

m

w

U

0

Ln

U

W

C

N

W

H

a

ru

O

LL

LL. 

N

L. 

a

s

E

U

U

0

LL. 

4! 

N

JW

LL

LL

LJ

I

C

O

L

L

N

to

f0Ln

yWy

Cbn
0

r-

i
N

d" v
r, 

v

om

4LJ

wCw

Cw

E

C

0

C

L

CL

C
L

p1

L

LL

L

J

m

O

m

E
I:

A

Ln

N

L

O
O

r? 

Q

tofa

fV

f6

Li

LL

U

Ln
L/) 

LL

LL

IL

rl



L

UW
a

W

G

1

LL } 
w

f0V

a) t

r&

rflr 

m

A LV

O

L

I

LL

ii

Cl

O

LL

Oa

w

6

u 

Q

M

C '^ 

OO

v
CYJ

Z

V

n 

LIM
aN+ 

WCC

L

EQ
F

CD (

n  

L

c

t[ 

O

WCL

c

a

L

9LUCLOWJiLLJ

O

JQ

Pa LL

a) acU
7

N
cOU

mU0z

OI
OI
N

V
I

O
I

O

O

O( 

O
I

O
I

O
I

O
I

O
I

I

O
I

O
I

O
I

O( !) 

In O
I

O
I

O
I

I

O
I

O

0

0- 

0q
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

O

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Lo

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

LO
In

O

O

0

w

N

0

0

0

CD

m

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

W

w

U) 

M (

D

CN

CN

04

C3

0

0

0

0

0

6

o

U
W
a

W

r&

rflr 
va 

6»

ur
r

r

s» 

r 

u 

M

O

OO

Z

V

0

o

LLj

LL

a

LL

a) t

Z

O

m

o

O

N

a

0

JQ

Q) 

WOC

2U) 

cca

Nn

WLC

Y

a

Om
Qf

Q) 

E

Q

UW

W

N

Y

Q) 

a7

0m

1N

m

r0- N

3: 

Y

d

Q

U.

LL

O

O

W

4) 

ma. 

6
a

O> 

6

O

N

C
O

W

F- 

O

O

N

U

c

W

m

O

C

d

o

T

v

o

E

v
o

n

a

m

w

Z

cn
c

0C

m

o

N

v

o

a) 

m

o

Lo

a) 

i

c

CO

N

Q) 

O

OO

N

C

a) 

J

LC

d

O

a) 0

Q

m

co

a) a) 

a) 

N

V

O

O. 

O

O

N

L

Z

LLLG

C

U) 

U
U

N
v- 

0

0

a) 

0

a) 

N

O

W

Cm

0

00

O

N

m

Q

o

0

0

0

0

J

Q

o

U

a

a

o

0

O0

M

Q

n

m

E

E

E

E

E

m

m

m

y

U

O

co

0

0

0

c,
r

o

9

0

o

o

0

0

o

U) 

1

0

0

E

m

c

CC

O

O

O

d

0

O

O

6

a) 

a) 

to

L

NmC
O

m

pn

O

Ooo
u7
7

to

V) 

V) 

O

Y

a) 

nom
YUn0

Y6nn

E

0

O

O

ZO

rn

a' 

0a

o

N

E

a) 0

a) 0

a) 0

m

m

m

na) 

u) Q) 

oY

n0

U

C) 

o

0

x
0

x0

0

00

0

1-- 

1-- 

02

0

0

0m

Ea) 

nonm

a0

c

c_ 

am

a

n

0

0

a

W

E

m

a) 

0

L

m

0

E

E

E> 

C

E

E

E

cc>, 

II

7

N0
Q

YC

YC

YC

C

C

N

a

YC

YC

O

CO

O

LL

O

Q

m

m

0

D 

0

m

0

Q) 

a) 

a) 

N

to

cn

0

O

6

d

3

U

cn

com

com

m

J
J

E
E

E
E

a

n

0

a

E

E

Et, 

E

E

E

m

mc

m
c

i

3

a

a

a) 

0

a) 

m

a) 

Q

O0

0

r

m

E

Cm

m

m

Cm

c0

U

0

o

E

E

o

a

0Q

0Q

S

S= 

no

0is

0C7

0D

LL

Q

Q

Q

Q

Q

m

m

m

U- 

U

U> 

C

CO

LL

LLL

LL



a ocCCQ

D
r

00MEfi

00f} 

O00Nr

o00+ fVN

aoNO

oO0Nr

0

v

0

0000000
LOto

0Of} 

CLOi

0OE0- 

0Of0- 

W

uU0

L.

ii

cnL

O

C) 

o

2

Q

LL

cvLL

d

WLY0

Cfu

c

LLJ

2iV
2

0

a 

ocCCQ

0Lf) 

oLOffi

00MEfi

00f} 

O00Nr

o00+ fVN

aoNO

oO0Nr

0YOO

0uiE0- 

0

0000000

LOto

0O
f} 

o0

0Ot0- 

0OE0- 

0Of0- 

O01

0Lf) 40- 

DO0

O

2

0

o

Q

a) 

LLU- 3ca

@

m

co
F

m

ai

Qi

a, 

L

cu

a`) 

f

C

aa) 

M3

Llii

a) 

L

aa) 

m

aa)) 

@

aa)) 

ani

a

c

m

m

m

2

Li - 

U

v

Uco

m

O

L

U

cu

a)>

m

C13

CO

na

C

U -

J

a) 

Li

N

a) 

E

U

U

V

W

J

uo

LL

O

O

M

N

0

co

O

U

a) 

Q

X

Q

Ua) CC

COU

OUa) 

Q) cc

rna) 

0

cn

a) 

cn

a) 

a) 

L

U

a) 

LLa)+-' 

LL

LL

LL

0

L

o

c2: 

m

a

m

O

a) 

2a) 

c

m

o

cn

cC

CJ



a a@Ca)

Ln

DO
Q

oON

oo

LOO
r- tq

O0

0o

oOU1
7

o

00OMEA

0
0

NN69- 

00LnMiia

0
0

MMff} 

L

00d• 
T

64-

E4

00LOC14

00O0

0
w

U

00MN
k? 

N

cocr
MLn  

rN

V

x0

a) 

O

O

LL. 

N

Q

O

LL

W

a) 

VP
M

x

Mro

O
O

fC

000

C

9

B
C

a a@Ca)

Ln

DOQ

oON

oo

LOO

r- 

tq

O0

0o

oOU17

o

00OMEA

0
0N

N69- 

00LnMiia

0
0MM

ff} 

0
0OTH

00d• T64-

E4

00LOC14

00O0

00L6

00Lnrf6
i

00Uiif} 

00MN
k? 

OV

Dw
a) 

a) 

lo

O

O
O

CoDO

C

9

BC

O

7

O

to

CO

O

a) ai

v

v

cfl

a> 

cn

Mc

Y

a) 

CC

OU

Ca) 

Ca) 

CO@

c

U

C

mJ

O_ 

OJ

Cl

Co7
J

coQ

Q
cc
C

aO+ 

In

jO

7N

m

Ccc: 
OO

C7

UU

7O

C

CO

7

nO

N0

L

U) D

O

7

70

cr

U) 

n

N

C: 

QE

a

0." E

OsE

a

0

0

a) 

Q

Qm

3

U

Cm

w

x

w

p

p

co

p

co

aD

w

co

cn

Ea> ^ 

c

cn

D

U- 

a) 

a> 

CO

LL .- 

a) 

O +

J
a 

a) 

Z5

N

Enc

m

a

E

a) 

bo

N

CU

cnOQO

OU

CO

c 

cn

U



0
a' 0

a m

IO

COYQD '} 1

W0, 

3oylE- 
D

cnI

2

UmLi. MOCL

Ln

E

N

OV

N

O

N

OLLvim6Q



0

0

0

D0
0

C

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0Q

0Q

0

0

0

0

0

ala

X11

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Ln

1-

4

0

0

0

0

to

n

l0

N

to

w

r` 

a

n

V

V

O

O

m

m

O

n

N

Z

2

Ln

V

1

N

N

1-

4N
NS

111VT
V} 

V} 

rlVT
V> 

V} 

VT

VT

VT

VT
V) 

V} 

V? 

VT

L

O

Y

v

3

o

c

E

m

c

O
O

ai

L

7

E

a

fc - -

o --.

z

O

o

C

L

CO

d

o

Y

t

a

o  

v

v

VT

E

Y °

c°

L'' 

O

o

v = 

v

a

7

Z

L

a1

L

V

2

Q

Y

a1

O

L

a

N

Y

i

a ° 

Z

Z

CL

E

m

c

0 — 

Y

v

mn

N

O

v

r

Z

Oro
Y

O ~ 

O

O

V1 ? 

O

E

o

0

1

m

L

C

U

Ln

E

i- 

o

tw

C

o

u

yZ

C
DaE

Q

OZ

V
O

n

a/ 

w

E

oLn

m

o

L

E

2

o

Q

Eo

N

L

u

O (

r

al

X

V

E

a '

O

Z

QM

O

O

y

C

W

O

N

O

O : 

Y

U

OC

Ln> pp

O

o

o

aj

E

m

U

CL

OZ

v

u

V)

aj

f- 

a~ 

a

a

Q

C > 

Q

Y

O

Q

u

CN

OLL

OLL

OLL

O

Qj

w

U

W
I

m

N

LL1

NO

LL

N

mY

0C) 

LL. 

v

W

dQj

N

v

cr

ba

a

Wrr' 

u

a

o

3v

o

Y' 

v

E

v

Z

3

E

Vn

ai

E

3

s

c

Q

o

OU) 

O

ai

3

E

L

N

u

LL

n

E

Q

Q

C: o

C

Qa

aiQ

c

nac

m

Q

O

E

m

n

ai

O

n

n

z

a
I- 

u 

E

p

0

m

6

o-

6

a

v

O

ar

C

Q

Ln

C

m

O

0

m

Q

U

C

aj

C

m

U

U

i

c

co

c

m

a

c
o

Qf

O
O

p

1

Q

y

Q

C

C

C

C

C

C

SV
n

a

H

Nw

o

E

t

Q

Q

Q

Q

Q

a) 

7

p

N

aJ

a1

al

al

a1

T

v

C

K
Q

Q

O_ E

d

Q

QE

QE

Q

U, 

m

a1

O

O

to

to

to

LL

LL

cc

j

Q

j

U

LL

U

N

Ln

L

to

In

N

C

C

C

C

aiE

0
Q

0
Q

0Q

0Q

C

O

Y

a1a1
ll

t

to

E

o. 

alQ

al
a

aJQ

a)> 

o

Q

Y '£ 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Z

o

Ln

1-

4

rl

N

NN
N

l0

f6

L

Yil

tD

U

OV? 

OV} 

i
V} 

mV? 

0

3

L

O
k-- 

E

u

ff

N

Z

2

L

ES ~ 

E

010

L

O

Y

v

3

o

c

Ec

ai

L

7

E

a

fc - -

o --.

z

o

C

L

CO

d

o

Y

t

a

o  

v

v

E

Y °

c°

L'' 

O

o

v = 

v

a

7

Z

L

a1

L

V

2

Q

Y

a1

O

L

a

N

Y

i

a ° 

Z

Z

cu = 

H

a

E

E

m

c

0 — 

Y

v

m
n

N

v

r

Z

Oro

Y

O ~ 

O

O

V1 ? 

E

o

0

1

m

L

C

U

Ln

E

i- 

o

tw

C

o

u

yZ

CDa
E

OZ

VOn

a/ 

w

E

oLn

m

o

L

E

2

o

Q

Eo

N

L

u

O (

r

al

X

V

E

a '

O

Z

Q
M

O

O

y

C

W

O

N

O

O : 

Y

U

OC

Ln> pp

O

o

o

Q

E

m

U

CL

OZ

v

u

V)

aj

f- 

a~ 

a

a

Q

C > 

Q

Y

O

Q

u

CN

OLL

OLL

OLL

OLL



X



RESOLUTION NO. 2024 — 76

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE WATER RATES AND

SANITARY SEWER RATES FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO

WHEREAS, the present rate structures administered by the City of Goldsboro for water and sanitary
sewer service became effective on July 2023, July 2022, July 2020, July 2019, July 2005 and January 1987
respectfully; and

WHEREAS, the City engaged Stantec, a utility rate consultant, in September, 2019 to assist the City with
assessing the rate structure for managing the City' s water and sanitary sewer systems; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the utility rate study it is necessary to increase the water rates in all rates and
classes two percent ( 2%), sewer rates in wastewater volumetric charges all rates and classes two percent ( 2%), 

sewer rates in capitalized sewer volumetric charges per 1, 000 gallons inside and outside classes seventeen percent

17%), and capitalized industrial bulk sewer volumetric charges per 1, 000 gallons inside and outside classes four
percent ( 4%) to provide for the cost of service and crucial capital improvements to the system. 

that

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina

Customers inside the City, the monthly water rate shall be four dollars and twenty- nine cents
4.29) per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons and eight dollars and sixty-one cents ($ 8. 61) per one

thousand gallons ( 1, 000) for outside City customers. The industrial bulk monthly water rate for
customers using twelve million five hundred thousand ( 12,500,000) gallons or more per month inside the City, 
shall be three dollars and fifty cents ($ 3. 50) per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons and six dollars and

thirty- five cents ($ 6. 35) per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons for outside City customers. All customers
shall be billed in ten ( 10) gallon increments. 

2. Each water customer outside the City shall pay a monthly minimum charge based upon meter size, 
provided that this charge shall not provide for any water consumption. 

Meter Size FY 2024- 25 Minimum Charge

3/ 4" 25. 10
151

26. 42

1 1/ 2" 28. 63

2" 31. 35

3" 39. 82

4" 51. 21

6" 77. 71

8" 123. 07

10" 202. 46

3. Each water customer inside the City shall pay a monthly minimum charge based upon
meter size, provided that this charge shall not provide for any water consumption. 

Meter Size FY 2024- 25 Minimum Charge

3/ 4" $ 18. 16

1" 18. 82

1 1/ 2'
9

19. 92

2" 21. 29



Meter Size FY 2024- 25 Minimum Charge

3" $ 25. 52

4" 31. 21

6" 44. 46

8" 67. 15

10" 106. 04

4. Any person discharging wastewater into the sanitary sewer of the City shall pay a sewer service
charge of nine dollars and thirty cents ($ 9. 30) per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons for in -City service, 
and eighteen dollars and fifty-nine cents ($ 18. 59) per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons for outside -City
service. Industrial bulk rate for customers using twelve million five hundred thousand ( 12,500,000) gallons
or more per month inside the City the monthly rate shall be eight dollars and thirty- two cents

8. 32) per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons and sixteen dollars and sixty- eight cents ($ 16. 68) per one

thousand ( 1, 000) gallons foroutside City customers. The charges shall be based upon the actual metered
water consumption in ten ( 10) gallon increments. 

5. The capitalized sanitary sewer rate for FY 2024- 25 shall be four dollars and seventy- two cents ($ 4. 72) 

per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons of metered water usage for in -City service, and nine dollars and
forty- four cents ($ 9.44) per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons of metered water usage for outside City
service. The capitalized sanitary sewer monthly rate for industrial bulk customers using twelve million
five hundred thousand ( 12,500,000) gallons or more per month inside the City shall be three dollars and eighty- 
two cents ($ 3. 82) per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons and seven dollars and sixty- three cents ($ 7. 63) 

per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons for outside City customers. 

6. The Late Fee of $5. 00 for utility bills past due and the Service Penalty of $15. 00 assessed on utility
bills after the expiration of the extended payment period will both remain in effect. The reconnection
fee shall be $ 30. 00 for customers disconnected due to nonpayment and will be charged before water

service is restored. Same day service reconnection fee of $80 will apply for same day service paid after
3: 00 pm. 

7. The water tap fees for new and replacement taps shall be charged as follows: 
i. 1" Water Tap $ 1, 200. 00

ii. 2" Water Tap $ 2, 200. 00

iii. Above 2" Water Tap Cost + 10% 

8. The sewer tap fees for new and replacement taps shall be charged as follows: 
i. 4" Sewer Tap $ 1, 200. 00

ii. Larger than 4" Contractor

9. When a customer is found to be responsible for damaging an MXU, a fee of $175. 00 will be assessed. 

10. The deposit of an advance payment for all new single-family residential domestic utility customers
shall be $ 100 inside the City limits and $ 125 for those customers located beyond the corporate

boundaries of the City. 

11. The deposit of advance payment for new non-residential users ofCity of Goldsboro utility service shall
be equal to the projected bi- monthly utility bill of each metered account, but not less than $ 100 nor

greater than $ 5, 000 for each metered account. 

12. The new rates shall become effective with the August 1, 2024 billing. Fees for late payment, service
penalty, reconnection, tap fees, other utility fees, and deposits are effective July 1, 2024. 



13. All other rates and fees are hereby levied as previously established and authorized. 

14. Rate Table is presented below: 

City of Goldsboro, NC Utility Rate Sheet
Rates Effective for Billings on or after August 1, 2024

Water Charges

Inside City Outside City

Water Volumetric Charges

Rate per 1, 000 gallons 4. 29 8. 61

Industrial Bulk Rate per 1, 000 gallons 3. 50 6. 35

Water Minimum Charges

Meter Size

3/ 4" 18. 16 525. 10

V 18. 82 26.42

1 1/ 2" 519. 92 28. 63

2" 21. 29 31. 35

3" 25. 52 39.82

4" 31. 21 51. 21

6" 44. 46 77. 71

8" 67. 15 123. 07

10" I
Charges

S106. 04 202. 46

Wastewater

Wastewater Volumetric Charges

Rate per 1, 000 gallons 9. 30 18. 59

Industrial Bulk Rate per 1; 000 gallons 58. 32 16. 68

Capitalized Sewer Volumetric Charges

Rate per 1000 gallons S4. 72 59. 44

Industrial Bulk Rate per 1, 000 gallonsl 3.821 57. 63

15. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the 1" day of July 2024 as adopted by
the City Council on this 17' day of June, 2024. 

Attested by: 

J'a 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, IV

Mayor


	Agenda 6-17-24
	Ws item b - Parklet
	Item A1 - Special Meeting Minutes 5-28-24
	The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Special Meeting to discuss the FY24-25 Budget in the Large Conference Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 28, 2024.
	UCall to Order.U  Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.
	URoll Call.
	Present:  Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding
	Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews
	Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones
	Councilman Chris Boyette
	Councilwoman Jamie Taylor
	Councilwoman Beverly Weeks
	Councilman Rod White
	Also Present:  Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager

	Item A1-2 - 5-28-24 Exhibit
	Item A2 - Minutes 6-3-24
	Item A2-2 - 6-3-24 Exhibits
	Item B - James “Ted” Best - Retirement RES 6-17-24
	Item C - Gun Violence Awareness Month 2024
	Item D - PTSD Awareness Day 2024
	Item E - Juneteenth 2024
	Item F - AAP
	Item G - SU-12-24
	Item H - SU-13-24
	Item I - Z-4-24
	Item J - GWTA
	Item K - Oak Forest
	Item L - Idemia
	Item M - Agenda 2024-06-17 FY24 Audit Contract Award Forvis_0
	Agenda Item 2024-06-17 FY24 Auditor Selection_0
	RES Fy24 Audit Forvis LLP Contract 06-17_0

	Item N - Agenda 2024-06-17 FY24 Operating Amendment_0
	Agenda Memo Op Funds 2024-06-17_0
	ORDINANCE Op Amend 2024-06-17_0

	Item O - Agenda 2024-06-17 C2101 C3101 HUD CDBG & HOME amend_0
	Agenda Memo C2101-C3101 CDBG HOME 06-17-24_0
	ORDIN C2101-C3101 CDBG HOME 06-17-24_0

	Item P - Agenda 2024-06-17 G1105 2018 Street Bonds CPF amend_0
	Agenda Memo G1105 2024-06-17 Ord Amend_1
	ORDIN G1105 2018 Steet Bonds CPF 2024-06-17_1

	Item Q - Agenda 2024-06-17 G1108 Comm Relations SRF amend_0
	Agenda Item G1108 Comm Relations SRF 2024-06-17_1
	ORDIN G1108 Comm Relations SRF 202-06-17_1

	Item R - Agenda 2024-06-17 G1109 State Approp Grant amend_0
	Agenda G1109 State Approp Grant 06-17-24_1
	ORDIN G1109 State Approp Grant 06-17-24_1

	Item S - Agenda 2024-06-17 P3101 Fed & State Drug Forfeiture SRF amend_1
	Agenda Memo Fed State Forfeiture P3101 2023-06-20_1
	ORDIN P3101 Fed & St Forfeit 2024-06-17_2

	Item T - Agenda 2024-06-17 S1102 Ph IV Sewer Rehab close amend_0
	Agenda S1102 SRF Ph IV Sewer Rehab 06-17-24_0
	ORDIN S1102 Ph IV Sewer Rehab SRF 2019-06-17_0

	Item U - Agenda 2024-06-17 T2201 Stormwater CPF amend_0
	Agenda T2201 Stormwater Cap Proj Amend 2024-06-17_1
	ORDIN T2201 Stormwater CPF 2024-06-17_1

	Item V - Monthly Reports - May
	Monthly Departmental Reports - Cover Page - May
	Community Relations and Development Monthly Report
	Community Relations and Development Monthly Report Addendum
	Downtown May 2024 Monthly Report - Prepared June
	ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT - MAY 2024
	Finance - 2024-05
	Finance 2 - Cash & Investment FY2024_11 May
	5-31-24

	Finance 3 - Budget Transfers Summary FY24_10
	Transfers May

	Finance 4 - Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2024-05 May_1
	Grants 2024-05 May

	Fire - Monthly Report
	HR - May 2024 - MonthlyRpt
	Info Tech Monthly Report May 2024
	Inspections - MoRepMay2024
	Paramount Monthly Report-May 2024
	Parks - May  Monthly Report 2024 FLB
	Planning - May 2024
	Police Monthly Report May 2024
	Public Utilities Department Monthly Report - May 2024
	PW Council Report - May 2024
	TT May 2024 Directors Report

	Item W - Agenda 2024-06-17 FY24-25 Budget Ordinance_0.pdf
	Agenda Item FY24-25 Budget Ordinance 06-17-24 (Rev_0)
	Final Revisions for FY25 Proposed Adopted budget_0
	Final Revisions Adopt 6-16 Prt

	ORDINANCE FY24-25 Budget (Rev_0)
	Manual of Fees and Charges COG FY25_0
	Cover
	Index
	Summary of Changes
	General
	Engineering
	Inspections
	Planning
	P & R
	GEC
	Golf
	Paramount
	Police
	Fire
	PW
	Compost
	WRF


	Item X - Agenda 2024-06-17 FY24-25 Utility Rate Resolution_0.pdf
	Agenda Item FY24-25 Utility Rates Resolution_3
	Resolution for Water-Sewer 24-25 (Rev_3)

	ADPEFF8.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	�
	Slide Number 3
	Option B Goldsboro GWTA Site: 
	Conceptual Rendering as Provided by Camiros
	Pocket Park Overview
	Construction timeline
	  Questions, Comments, or Final Thoughts:��
	�West Oak Choice Neighborhood Plan; Steering Committee Goldsboro City Council Update on the West Oak Choice Neighborhood Plan JanJuuanrey 33,0 2, 0220424




